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The board of directors (the “Board”) of REXLot Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) submit herewith their report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries and joint ventures are principally engaged in lottery
system and games development business and distribution and
marketing of lottery products in China.

JOINT VENTURES AND SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the Company’s joint ventures and principal subsidiaries
are set out in notes 20 and 50 to the financial statements respectively.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the state of the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the

financial statements on pages 56 to 191.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there were additions
of HK$59,294,000 (2014: HK$65,542,000) to property, plant and
equipment to expand the Group's operations. Details of movements
in property, plant and equipment during the year are set out in note
16 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2015,
calculated under Part 6 of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), amounted to HK$759,451,000 (2014: HK$837,932,000).
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) or the laws in Bermuda, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 192.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME
Particulars of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group are set out
in note 38 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

On 28 June 2012, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“2012 Scheme”) which, unless otherwise terminated, will remain valid
and effective for a period of 10 years from 28 June 2012.

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to enable the Company to grant
options to eligible participants as incentives and/or rewards for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
the Group.

According to the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to the
eligible participants as defined in the 2012 Scheme to subscribe for
such number of shares as the Board may determine. Options granted
should be accepted within 30 days from the date of the letter of
grant. Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company by way of consideration for the grant. Subject to the
terms of the 2012 Scheme and all applicable laws, the Board has the
power to determine the period within which payments or calls must
or may be made.

The exercise price of options shall be determined by the Board, which
shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and
(i) the nominal value of a share.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHE (&)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company on the date of approval
and adoption of the 2012 Scheme provided that the Company may
at any time seek approval from its shareholders to refresh the limit
to 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval by the
shareholders in general meeting where such limit is refreshed. Options
previously granted under any share option schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with
such schemes or exercised options) will not be counted for the

purpose of calculating the limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) to each eligible participant
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant
unless such grant has been duly approved by ordinary resolution
of the shareholders of the Company in general meeting at which
the relevant eligible participant and his associates abstained from
voting. Options granted to substantial shareholders or independent
non-executive directors or any of their respective associates in
any 12-month period in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued
share capital on the date of grant or with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must be approved in advance by the Company's
shareholders.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no
options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. There is no general requirement that an option must be held
for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The 2012 Scheme
will expire on 28 June 2022.

No share option has been granted during the year ended 31
December 2015. Subsequent to the year ended date, option in
relation to 2,000,000 shares has lapsed. As at the date of this
report, the total number of ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the
Company (the “Shares”) available for issue upon exercise of the
options outstanding under 2012 scheme was 120,000,000 Shares
(representing 1.2% of the Shares in issue as at the date of this
report).
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The following table discloses details of the movements in the share
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TREBENBE_ZT-—AFT_A=+—RHILFER

options granted under the 2012 Scheme during the year ended 31 BT -——FHERECEREZHFE-
December 2015.
Number of share options
BREHE
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At Exercise
Category of 1 January during during during 31 December  Date of price  Exercisable
participant 2015 the year the year the year 2015  grant per share  period
R-Z-1% R=Z-1%
SEALES —-R—-H FREH ERTHE FREA¥M T=A=+-BH REBH BROTEE  fTHEH
HKS
BT
Employees & & 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 07/01/2014 1.090 13/01/2014 -
06/01/2016
160,000,000 B - (40,000,000) 120,000,000 27/06/2014 0.910 15/07/2014 -
26/06/2016
Total 5t 162,000,000 - - (40,000,000) 122,000,000
DIRECTORS =2

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the financial
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Chan How Chung, Victor
Boo Chun Lon

Independent Non-executive Directors
Yuen Wai Ho

Chow Siu Ngor

Lee Ka Lun

In accordance with bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, Mr Chan How Chung,
Victor and Mr Lee Ka Lun shall respectively retire and are eligible for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr Chan and
Mr Lee offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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CHANGES IN THE INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Mr Chow Siu Ngor, an
independent non-executive Director, resigned as a non-executive
director of REX Global Entertainment Holdings Limited (formerly
known as China Gamma Group Limited) on 22 September 2015.
Details of the updated Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management is set out on pages 38 to 39 of the Report.

Save as disclosed above, there were no changes in the information
required to be disclosed by the Directors pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election and re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract, which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 22
September 2015, 7 October 2015 and 29 October 2015, Kingly
Profits Corporation (being a holder of the 4.5% convertible bonds
due 2019 (the “2019 Bonds”), wholly-owned by Mr Chan How
Chung, Victor, who is a Director and a substantial shareholder of
the Company), has provided an Undertaking to the Company (the
“Undertaking”), among other things,

(

) to provide a valid block voting instruction in favour of the

relevant revised extraordinary resolution;

(i)  to provide, subject to certain conditions, an unsecured
and interest-free shareholder’s loan in the amount of
HK$100,000,000, with a one-year term, for the Company's
partial redemption obligations;
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(iii)

(vi)

to provide, subject to certain conditions, an unsecured and
interest-free shareholder’s loan in the amount of approximately
HK$3,000,000, with a one-year term, for the Company's general
working capital;

to provide, subject to certain conditions, an unsecured
shareholder’s loan in the amount of approximately
HK$15,000,000, with a one-year term, with an interest rate
equal to the coupon rate of the 2019 Bonds for the Company's
general working capital;

to, from time to time, if it shall receive any Early Redemption (as
defined in the announcements) payment (in respect of the 2019
Bonds it holds) from the Company, provide a further unsecured
shareholder’s loan to the Company in the amount equal to such
Early Redemption principal payment so received by it; and

not to exercise the put option in relation to a “Relevant Event”
as stated in the announcements in respect of the 2019 Bonds it
holds.

During the year, shareholder’s loans in the aggregate amount of
HK$118,000,000 (as mentioned in (ii) to (iv) above) have been

advanced to the Company pursuant to the Undertaking.

Particulars of directors’ interest in other transactions are also set out

in the section headed “Connected Transactions and Related Party

Transactions” in the Directors’ Report.

Save as disclosed above, no other significant transactions,

arrangements or contracts in relation to the Group’s business to

which the Company’s subsidiaries or any of its holding companies

and fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the

Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report (continued)
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the "SFO") or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”), were as follows:

EERBETRAEZER
R-ZZF-RFFT-A=+—"RH EZRKERITERAER
VA R 1% 55 2 5 B N0 AR R Sl (AR AR B DR B 2 AR
- HERDIEFTPEECHEEARTREIESFR
HEGD (TRFRBEGRD]) E3GEFEZS
MEZRAEIAR  ABRBE LT ETAZESTETES
ZHMBESTR ([BESFE ] EMAGEARA KRB
FreztEmso R

Long position in the Shares and underlying Shares in the REATDRGREEARG ZHFR
Company
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Number of underlying issued share capital
Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held Shares held Total of the Company
i LN IRE S
34 EEitE FERoEE HERHOHE st BRABHBD L
Chan How Chung, Victor  Interest of controlled 1,494,941,855 208,029,197 1,702,971,052 17.06%
e corporation (Note 1) (Note 2)
REHARER (Hizt1) (Hfz2)
Notes: Mt -

(1) Among these Shares, 1,187,640,997 Shares are held by Keen Start
Limited and 307,300,858 Shares are held by Kingly Profits Corporation.
Both Keen Start Limited and Kingly Profits Corporation are indirectly
wholly owned by Mr Chan How Chung, Victor.

(2) Kingly Profits Corporation is deemed to be interested in 208,029,197
underlying Shares to be derived from the 4.5% convertible bonds due
2019 in the aggregate principal amount of HK$285,000,000 issued by the
Company on 8 July 2014 at the applicable conversion price of HK$1.37
per Share.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review, the
Directors or chief executives had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its other associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year under review was
the Company, its holding companies, its fellow subsidiaries or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules, details of the interests
held by the Directors in businesses that are considered to compete or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group, are disclosed as follows:

Name of company

DAEEH

2
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WEMAT:

Competing business

BEMER

RPI Finance Limited (“RPI")
WEMBERAR ([HRME])

Mr Chan How Chung, Victor is a director and deemed to be the
substantial shareholder of RPI. The terms and conditions of the
financing loans of RPI are market driven and agreed at arm’s length
between the borrowers and the financier. When making decisions
on the above competing business, the relevant director, in the
performance of his duty as a director of the Company, has acted and
will continue to act in the best commercial interest of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Bye-laws provides that every Director or other officers shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they shall or may incur or sustain in or about the
execution of their duties in their respective offices or otherwise in
relation thereto.

A permitted indemnity provision that meets the requirements
specified in section 469(2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) for the benefits of the Directors is currently in force and
was in force throughout the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 38 to 39 of this report.

Money lending
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RERBRELERDEUB2EE THRERZ AR ZE
BRFR -BRFB2UBERZGERRIGHATSE
M YHEEETEAFHERE - NEIR] L EF
MREBZARE BEHES (RETRER/AAAE
EZRBBER)EEYHSEERDTAAEERER
EMNR 21T

BAETFHREERKRX

AEMAETR SRESREMSRBE AR
ERANTRESAZBBZBME SIS S T4
EEARRZAAHRM KA BER - BB BELH
XEBUARRZEEFEHZBEREREZIBE-

BRIERFREIMER AAGHAEE AR A
FAEB (REER) (5622F)FE469(2)1%5 A 2
BEZERETNBEE -
EENEREBAERER

EELSRAERABEENERNAREEIBES
39H -

Annual Report 2015 —Z—AFFHR 1 1



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEEeHE (&)

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
following parties (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FTERRERS

RZZE-RF+T-A=+—0 BEAQRAREBEIFRX
HEHEIE3B6HFATEZELMME - THI5H (K
FRAREBEFHLRHITHABIN) RAREKRSD RIEH
TR < EamsdokRMT

Long position in the Shares and underlying Shares in the Company REARBRGREEARG ZHFR
Number of
Number of underlying Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Shares held Shares held Total issued share capital
BREREB/HE BEnE FRoEE FisHEBRD 8 E o HFERTREAED
Smart Ease Corporation Interest of controlled 1,494,941,855 208,029,197 1,702,971,052 17.06%
corporation (Notes A and B)
RS AR (MiZARB)
Keen Start Limited Beneficial owner 1,187,640,997 - 1,187,640,997 11.90%
EHBEEA (Note A)
(HitA)
Kingly Profits Corporation Beneficial owner 307,300,858 208,029,197 515,330,055 5.16%
EHBEEA (Note B)
(His7B)
Polaris Capital Investment manager 707,608,964 - 707,608,964 7.09%
Management, LLC hEEE
Mutual Fund Elite Custodian corporation/ 679,707,497 - 679,707,497 6.81%
approved lending agent
HERR/RUBERE
Notes: HaE -

A.  These Shares are held by Keen Start Limited as beneficial owner. Keen
Start Limited is wholly owned by Smart Ease Corporation, which in turn,
is wholly owned by Mr Chan How Chung, Victor. The interest disclosed
herein was included in the interest of Mr Chan How Chung, Victor
as disclosed in the section headed “Interests of Directors and Chief
Executives” in this report.

B. These Shares and underlying Shares are held by Kingly Profits Corporation
as beneficial owner. Kingly Profits Corporation is wholly owned by Smart
Ease Corporation, which in turn, is wholly owned by Mr Chan How
Chung, Victor. The interest disclosed herein was included in the interest
of Mr Chan How Chung, Victor as disclosed in the section headed
“Interests of Directors and Chief Executives” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2015, the
Company had not been notified of any other person who had an
interest or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group made
approximately 22% of its entire sales to five largest customers
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to
approximately 4%. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers
accounted for approximately 25% of the total purchases for the year
and purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to

approximately 11%.

None of the Directors, or any of their respective associates or any
other shareholders, which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had
any beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers and five
largest suppliers during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Particulars of transactions and balances with related parties of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in note
48 to the financial statements.

The subscription of convertible bonds by a director and a substantial
shareholder, as detailed in note 36 to the financial statements, and
the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute a non-exempt
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 7
October 2015 and 29 October 2015.

(i)  All the shareholders’ loans made by Kingly Profits Corporation
to the Company pursuant to the Undertaking as disclosed in
section headed “Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts” in the Directors’ Report,
represented financial assistance received by the Company from
a connected person on normal commercial term or better, and
therefore they were fully exempted under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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(i)  The payment of the consent fee to Kingly Profits Corporation
was regarded as a connected transaction under the Listing Rules.
The applicable percentage ratios in respect of the amount of
consent fee paid by the Company to Kingly Profits Corporation
were less than 0.1%, and therefore was fully exempted under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the other transactions with related parties
did not fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

BANK BORROWINGS
Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2015 are
set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at the
date of this report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The Board hereby presents the annual results of the Group for the

financial year ended 31 December 2015.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
During the year under review, the Group was principally engaged in
lottery system and games development business and distribution and

marketing of lottery products in China.

The Chinese lottery market comprises two lotteries, namely, the China
Welfare Lottery and the China Sports Lottery. The Group provides
services to both lotteries.

Lottery Business

The Group’s lottery business can be broadly divided into System
and Games Development Business (“SGDB") and Distribution and
Marketing Business (“DMB”). Revenue of the lottery business
accounted for 100% of the Group's total revenue.

Revenue of the lottery business for the year decreased by 7.9% to
HK$1,554,394,000 (2014: HK$1,687,953,000). Profit before taxation
was HK$205,358,000 (2014: Loss HK$141,541,000).
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In 2015, regulatory development in the Chinese lottery industry
caused changes in market condition and operation environment.
Internet lottery distribution channel has been suspended since March
2015 (the "Internet Suspension”) and the regulatory approval process
in relation to new lottery products and distribution channels has
been extended. The PRC authorities implemented these changes with
an aim to improve transparency and eliminate malpractices in the
industry. As a result of these regulatory developments, the Chinese
lottery market experienced a short term set back and a decline of
total lottery sales over the year. The performance of both the Group's
SGDB and DMB divisions were dampened to different extents due to

such changes.

The Chinese lottery market witnessed a healthy sales growth in
the second half of 2014 and the use of internet lottery distribution
channel prevailed among lottery players since the 2014 World Cup.
At that time, none of the market participants could have foreseen
the industry-wide impacts brought by the Internet Suspension and
the regulatory development that followed. The Group, like other
industry participants, was by no means immune to such impacts.
The internet used to be one of the major distribution channels for
the Group's Single Match Games (“SMG") business, therefore, the
Group’s SMG business was adversely affected as a result of the
Internet Suspension. Furthermore, the Internet Suspension prevented
consumers from buying lottery ticket online which eventually put
pressure on the lottery sales in the Chinese lottery market. Other than
SMG, the growth of the Computer Ticket Games (“CTG") products
was hindered by the Internet Suspension due to the reduced sales
contribution from internet channel. Thus, the performance of the

Group's Welfare CTG business was also affected.

Surmounting Challenges

Although the harsh operating environment had put heavy pressure
on the Group's financial results, the Group managed to steer through
this challenging year and made significant progress on its long-
term strategic development in addition to the ongoing development
of its existing businesses. Further, in response to the regulatory
development in the Chinese lottery market, the Group had completed
a series of strategic reviews and initiated its transformation efforts to
focus on driving its long-term growth.
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Reference is also made to the announcement of the Company dated
29 March 2016. During the year under review, put options in relation
to (i) the 6.00 per cent. bonds due 2016 (the “2016 Bonds”) and
(i) the 2019 Bonds (together with the 2016 Bonds, collectively “the
Bonds”) issued by the Company were triggered as a result of the
Company’s shares being suspended from trading for more than 30
consecutive trading days. The Company is committed to fulfilling
its redemption obligations and entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (as supplemented and amended on 23 February 2016) (the
“Sale and Purchase Agreement”) shortly after the reporting period on
4 January 2016, in relation to (i) the sale and purchase of the entire
issued share capital of Multi Glory Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company; and (ii) the assignment of the entire amount owing
from Multi Glory Limited to the Group, at the cash consideration of
HK$2,150,000,000 to dispose of part of the Welfare CTG business
under the Group's SGDB division (the “Disposal”). It is intended that,
subject to completion, the net proceeds from the Disposal will firstly
be applied by the Company for redemption of the Bonds with respect
to which put options had been exercised by the relevant bondholders
(by giving redemption notices) pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the Bonds (the “Put Bonds”).

As disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 18 March
and 29 March 2016, respectively, the Disposal has been approved
by the independent shareholders at the special general meeting of
the Company on 18 March 2016 and all the conditions precedent to
completion of the Disposal, save for those relating to the obtaining of
the relevant approval and registration from the relevant PRC authority
in relation to the restructuring under the terms of the Disposal (the
“Qutstanding Restructuring PRC Approval”), have been satisfied as at
29 March 2016. The seller and the purchaser have agreed to extend
the long stop date under the Sale and Purchase Agreement to 29
April 2016, so that completion of the Disposal may take place on or
before such date, subject only to the satisfaction of the conditions
precedent relating to the Outstanding Restructuring PRC Approval.
The Company has proposed to seek bondholders’ consent to allow
sufficient time for the Company to complete the Disposal and obtain
sufficient offshore cash resources to satisfy its redemption obligations
under the Bonds.
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It is expected that the Company will have sufficient offshore cash
resources to satisfy its redemption obligations in relation to the Put
Bonds once the Disposal is completed after obtaining the Outstanding
Restructuring PRC Approval. It is also expected that after completion
of the Disposal and repayment of the Put Bonds, the overall cashflow,
gearing and liquidity position of the Group will improve substantially.
As such, it will put the Company on solid financial footing and allow
the Company to focus on growing its business in high growth sector
in the industry.

The Disposal will cover part of the business operations in the Group's
Welfare CTG business which focuses on traditional lottery market. It
marks an important step forward in transforming the Group's lottery
business. The Group assertively undertook the reorganization in
accordance with the outcome of its strategic review during the year
under review. In 2006, the Group first commenced its participation
in the Chinese lottery market through its Welfare CTG operations.
Over the last decade, the Group played a key role in supporting the
development of Welfare CTG market and at the same time benefited
greatly from the rapid growth of this market segment. With the latest
development of Welfare CTG market, the Group believes it was an
appropriate time to reposition its operations in this market segment.
The Disposal will provide the Group with a good opportunity to
realize one of its long-term investments with accretive valuation and
refocus on growing its business in various sectors with high growth
potential in the industry.

As a part of the Group's vision to refocus on the development of
new lottery products and distribution channels which demonstrate
significant growth potential, the Group is committed to drive
profitable growth for shareholders through the implementation of its
transformation strategy to more effectively align its operations with
the latest trend emerged in the Chinese lottery market. The updated
strategy will leverage and optimize the Group's resources against the
greatest growth opportunities available in the Chinese lottery market
by reinvigorate its respective businesses and concentrate investment

towards such areas.
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In the meantime, the Company continues its efforts to further the
progress and publish the clarification announcement which will
contain a detailed response to address the allegations in a report
issued by Anonymous Analytics during the year under review. The
unexpected changes in regulatory landscape of the Chinese lottery
industry coupled with the turbulence and turmoil in capital market
provided a window for entities to launch attacks towards the
Company. The clarification announcement is subject to clearance by
the Stock Exchange and it will be published as soon as practicable.
Shareholders of the Company should note that the Group’s lottery
business continues its operations as usual and is unaffected by these

allegations.

Chinese Lottery Market

Chinese lottery market registered total lottery sales of RMB367.9
billion in 2015, decreased by 4% compared with 2014 and posted a
decline for the first time since 2004.

Total sales of Welfare Lottery was RMB201.5 billion, decreased by 2%
compared with 2014. Welfare CTG accounted for about 71% of total
Welfare Lottery sales; Welfare Scratch Cards was about 8% and Video
Lottery Terminals (“VLT") took about 21%.

Welfare CTG sales in 2015 was RMB142.3 billion, decreased by 4%.
Welfare Scratch Cards sales was RMB16.3 billion, down 12%. VLT
sales increased 13% to RMB42.5 billion. Sales of Keno was RMB0.43
billion, decreased 50%.

Total sales of Sports Lottery was RMB166.4 billion. Sports CTG
accounted for about 92% of total Sports Lottery sales and Sports
Scratch Cards was about 8%.

Sales of Sports CTG, including SMG, decreased by 5% to RMB152.4
billion. Sports Scratch Cards sales was RMB14.0 billion, down by
11%. Total sales of Sports VLT, which launched since January 2015,
was RMB5.71 million.
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System and Games Development Business

The Group’s SGDB is an active participant in the provision of lottery
systems and specialized equipment for both CTG and scratch card
products in China. During the year under review, performance of
the Group's SGDB was indirectly affected by “Internet Suspension”.
In addition, the Group continued to face the impact of a softer
than expected scratch card market. In the light of this, the Group
undertook a thorough business review and initiated its efforts to
re-engineer its business to align with the latest trend in the Chinese

lottery market.

Welfare CTG Business

In 2015, total sales of Welfare CTG in the Chinese lottery market
was RMB142.3 billion, decreased 4% over 2014. As reported in the
Group's interim report, total sales of Welfare CTG market managed
to registered positive growth of 4% in the first six months of 2015.
However, total sales of Welfare CTG in the second half declined 12%

over the same period in 2014.

With the strong presence established in this segment over the last
decade, the Group's Welfare CTG business continued to maintain its
leading position and withstand the temporary headwind presented in
the Chinese lottery market. It is generally believed that the decline in
Welfare CTG market was mainly attributed to the Internet Suspension
as lottery sales in this segment was impacted by losing a particular
consumer demographics who used to buy lottery tickets online. It
is notable that the Internet Suspension impacted both traditional
products (including lotto and number games) and high frequency
games. As a result, the overall operating performance of the Group's
Welfare CTG business was affected and its margin also encountered

downward pressure in 2015.

With the latest development of Welfare CTG market, the Group
believed that it was an appropriate timing to reposition its operations
in this market segment. Shortly after the reporting period of year
2015, the Group announced a plan to realise its investment in the
relative mature segment of Welfare CTG market and to dispose of
part of its Welfare CTG business. After completion of the Disposal,
the Group will continue to participate in the Welfare CTG market with
an updated strategy focusing on lottery games and peripheral lottery
system development which will prove to be robust growth drivers with

long term growth prospects.

A 2f

Directors’ Report (continued)

EEgeHE (&)

FEREBEMRER
AEBENRFRERFAEXEBRESTEEHE R
REERREXERZGLEARE -NLOEFA K
SENAGRERAEETRAEAEINEBREEF
PS8 ot sh AL BAES B RE TS RESRR
BOFE-FENIL AEEDETREZEBIR

RIGEFEREER BMPBEXENEEHBS -

BEEBHERYE

REZTE—RAF FEEEMSZEBLEKEBHEES
BARE14A23BT BT —UF T #%H4%  HOK
SEFHREME2®R BLEKEMSER -2 —RF
BAEANEEEEEBI%ER R BEEKE
THENEHERRE T NERPTHKI2% °

BETFRIZERABE AEEZ
E%%%F@fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm& RPBEYER
RHRZ BRI E - TS ERERRBEYE
TS TETEAREBBEEEME Stz
EHERARAEENRLBENRZEERPEM
TE-ERIENES ERREFRBREEESR

N

4

=
i

]]

°

y @

(BREELBFER) RSEBER - Bt A%
%E%T¥F2¥“m%§ﬁﬁ_f HEXE
HAEAEY THES-

IUN*"* ﬁ?m g0 o %\%I %\ﬁl Hli"é( ft i

WO W KRR

ERBYEMETSZ&RER ARERGHDE
MEMUET S MEBNGERER - R _T—AFR
SR AEEENFEHERANELERED
GREEKASB2RE THEBNRBEYEMER
B-MHEEHEZKRER AEEBEE2ERYEN
Emp MEKBEBESHUYEEEREEYRER
B ARAESERRRYERG N TAER
EIERATS -

Annual Report 2015 —Z—HF4Fif

19



Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHE (&)

Welfare Scratch Cards Business

The Group involved in the validation and printing business of Welfare
Scratch Cards in China. In 2015, the softer than expected Welfare
Scratch Card market, which posted a decline of 12% in total sales
over 2014, affected the performance of the Group’s Welfare Scratch
Cards Business.

The Group has jointly controlled interests, through 1t & 1 FI#6
BB MR A A (Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co Ltd*) (“Guard
Libang”), in Welfare Scratch Cards validation services. Guard Libang is
the validation system and specialized equipment provider for Welfare
Scratch Cards in the Chinese lottery market. The decrease in revenue
of the validation services in 2015 was in line with the decline in total
sales of the Welfare Scratch Cards market.

Through a cooperative venture with Shijiazhuang Offset Printing
House, one of the three entities authorized to print for the Welfare
Scratch Cards programs, the Group continued to participate in
Welfare Scratch Cards printing business during the year under review.
Although the trend of the Welfare Scratch Card market stabilized
in the second half of 2015 compared with its performance in the
first six months of the year, the full year performance of the Group's
printing business was inevitably impacted due to the shrinking market
volume. Despite that, the Group's printing operations rolled out new
scratch cards with different designs and launched certain reprint of
well received games to support the revitalization initiatives taken by
lottery authorities. Most of the scratch cards designs rolled out by
the Group’s printing operations managed to gain traction among
lottery consumers. The Group's design capability has proven to be
instrumental in expanding its market share in the printing business of
Welfare Scratch Card.

Sports CTG Business

The Group’s Sports CTG business was engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of CTG terminals to provincial Sports Lottery Centres across
China serving the needs of traditional CTG segment and supporting
the development of SMG.

During the year under review, there was a continuous demand for
replacement of Sports CTG/SMG terminals. This was driven by the
need to modernize sales equipment in the physical lottery distribution
network, which was aimed at providing retailers with an opportunity
to take advantage of the full array of functionalities of the latest
lottery terminals. The Group actively participated in the procurement
bidding of CTG/SMG terminals and delivered its Sports CTG terminals
in different provinces.
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Distribution and Marketing Business

The Group’s DMB is a major participant in the downstream lottery
operations in China. It has successfully established a comprehensive
distribution platform which consists of a widely diversified and
recognized physical retail network and a portfolio of innovative and

advanced electronic lottery distribution channels.

The Group pledged to provide reliable, efficient and innovative lottery
services to address the needs of end consumers in lottery market and
assist lottery authorities to promote and develop the Chinese Lottery
market in sustainable manner.

During the year under review, the regulatory development in the
Chinese lottery market and the Internet Suspension created a
challenging market environment for the Group’s DMB. Leveraging the
Group’s competitive edge across the downstream lottery market, the
Group undertook various initiatives to rise to these challenges.

Scratch Cards Distribution Business

The Group’s scratch cards distribution business focuses on the
distribution and sales of scratch cards through a physical lottery
distribution network. This network comprised of a widely diversified
and recognized sales distribution channels located in selected prime
locations. The Group’s DMB is one of the largest distributors for
scratch cards in terms of sales value and number of point-of-sales
established.

The Group remains cautiously optimistic about the scratch card
market, even though this segment has been facing strong competition
presented by other lottery products which remained the major
challenge for scratch cards in the past year. In addition, performance
of scratch cards sale was affected by seasonal factors. For instance,
physical distribution outlets recorded lower footfall because of the
hot weather during the last summer. Nevertheless, momentum of
growth appeared as a result of various regional marketing campaigns
and promotional efforts initiated by lottery center throughout the
year. Sales of scratch cards stabilized and showed improvement in the
second half of the year.

Since the commencement of the Group's scratch cards distribution
business, the Group has established its distribution network featured
with a unique supply chain solution by cooperating with its business
partners. The ability of these points of sales in engaging consumer'’s
daily life and increasing impulse purchase of scratch cards has been
the key selection criteria for constructing the entire distribution
network.
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During the year under review, the Group stepped up its efforts to
optimize its existing distribution network in order to strengthen its
performance amid the challenging market condition. In addition,
the Group undertook strategic initiative to explore new distribution
channels for scratch cards. With this initiative, the Group expects
it will not only reach out new consumer demographics but also
maximize the inherent entertaining element of scratch card products

to bring about a meaningful improvement in sales performance.

Single Match Games Business

The growth rate of SMG sales in 2015 declined substantially as
compared to 2014 because of a high sales during the 2014 World
Cup and the negative impact of Internet Suspension. For the first half
of 2015, the impact of the Internet Suspension on SMG sales was
diminished by a one-off sales surge triggered by the extremely strong
performance during the AFC Asian Cup in January/February. The
negative impact of the Internet Suspension was gradually reflected in
the second half of the year. During the year under review, the Group
continued to operate the SMG business through physical distribution
network and kept pace with the changes in consumers demand by
improving its professional services.

The Internet Suspension in 2015 may have hindered the valuable
opportunity for the market to cultivate those relative new SMG
consumers introduced by the 2014 World Cup, who were generally
engaged by electronic lottery distribution channel. However, the
potential long-term benefits behind this short-term impact should
not be neglected. Once the relevant regulatory framework has been
clarified and licensing regime of internet lottery distribution channel
has come in force, this will rebuild confidence among consumers
and pave the way for the positive development in the long run.
The Group anticipates the market consolidation, which is going to
separate the wheat from the chaff, will greatly benefit the operations
of www.okooo.com (“Okooo"). The Group continues to have interest
in the internet lottery platform Okooo. With enormous long-term
potential of this market segment, the Group continues to view Okooo
as a crucial vehicle for the long-term success within the Group's
portfolio.

Mobile Lottery Business and Mobile Electronic Lottery Platform
The Group’s mobile lottery business consists of two generations of
mobile technology. The traditional mobile lottery business provides
subscribers with the latest lottery information and allows them to
purchase CTG tickets through SMS text messaging. During the year
under review, the Group has completed migration of users from
traditional mobile channel to Mobile Electronic Lottery Platform
(“Mobile ELP”). The current generation Mobile ELP utilizes mobile
apps to allow customers to buy lottery tickets and receive latest

lottery information.
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The Group's Mobile ELP offers a multi-functional back-end system
with convenience interface to facilitate lottery distribution over the
mobile channel. Mobile ELP improves the convenience of lottery
purchase by connecting players directly to the centralized system of
provincial lottery centre, enabling a safe and reliable lottery purchase
experience. The adoption of Mobile ELP provides provincial lottery
centres with technological breakthrough to better connect with
players located in their respective provinces and attract purchases
from the locals.

During the year under review, certain provinces adopted a rather
conservative approach in promoting mobile lottery distribution
services while awaiting interpretation of the relevant measures
governing mobile lottery distribution. The performance of the Group's
mobile lottery business was therefore affected. As the approval
process for new mobile distribution channels had been extended
due to the latest regulatory development, the expansion of the
Group’s Mobile ELP was hindered. Nevertheless, the development of
Mobile ELP for Guangdong Sports Lottery Administration Centre is
in the final phase pending a trial run test before proceeding to the
final deployment. The official launch of Guangdong platform will
accelerate the Group’s expansion strategy over mobile channel by
targeting the growing demographics of lottery consumer using mobile
channel. With the Group's existing penetration of the mobile channel,
the Group is confident that it is well positioned to seize enormous
market opportunities driven by the overall growth in this lottery
distribution method.

Sports Video Lottery

The Group was honored to be chosen as one of the first companies
to play an active role in supporting the launch of this new lottery
product for Sports Lottery. The maiden launch of Sports VLT in the
past year not only supported the tourism development in Hainan
Province but also broadened the product range of Sports Lottery.

The Group's first franchised lottery outlet, located at a five-star hotel
in Sanya city, has commenced soft opening in January 2015 allowing
players to experience the excitement offered by this brand new lottery
product. Development of Sports VLT is still at its infancy stage. The
Group is confident on the long-term growth of this lottery product
and its potential contribution to the lottery market.
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Outlook

Looking ahead into 2016, the Group expects market conditions to
remain challenging. Yet, the fundamental advantage of the Group
remains unchanged. With the transformation efforts and progress
made over the past year, the improved financial strength and refined
business portfolio will provide flexibility for the Group to proactively
address the evolving lottery market. As the regulatory development
continues to progress going forward, Chinese lottery market will be
revitalized and plenty of valuable opportunities will arise. The Group
will never shy away from pursuing those opportunities to accelerate
its growth in the years to come and initiatives already underway are
going to drive sustainable profit growth by reinvigorating the Group's

underlying business.

Over the years, the Group took full advantage of its earnings
performance to substantially invest in growth and set a firm course
to expand its position in the downstream lottery market. Through
the strategic investment in various lottery distribution services,
which maintained a balanced portfolio across physical and electronic
platforms, the Group managed to diversify its sources of revenue and
to rise to the challenges presented in the lottery market. Perhaps most
important of all, electronic platforms for lottery distribution, including
both the internet and mobile channels, are set to rapidly take shape
once the respective regulatory framework for the administration
and supervision over these lottery distribution channels have been
clarified. In view of this, the Group believed that it was a wise move
and timely decision to transform the Group's business by shifting its
focus from relative mature segment towards other areas with high
growth potential. The Group will be starting to harvest the financial

reward of its efforts in the near future.

After the disposal of part of the Welfare CTG business, the Group
will, among other existing operations, continue its participation in the
upstream lottery market by providing peripheral lottery system and
specialized equipment for Welfare Lottery focusing the non-traditional
market. Alongside its devoted efforts made in the upstream is an
equally strong focus on developing lottery distribution channels
which allows the Group to capture any tremendous growth potential
identified in various lottery products. Performance of the Group's
lottery distribution channels the DMB has proven to be a key growth
driver of its lottery business, and will continue to be a high priority of
the Group in the year ahead.
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The Group’s DMB has unique advantage of starting from a very strong
base and is well positioned to embrace another wave of exponential
growth led by game development in the Chinese lottery market.
Depending on the progress of industry-wide regulatory reform, the
Group will continue to invest efficiently and smartly in expanding
its lottery distribution services for other lottery products, in order
to reach out new demographic of lottery consumers. Initiatives are
underway over the Group's mobile lottery platforms as well as the

Group's scratch card distribution business.

On SMG front, the Group continues to have interest in the internet
lottery platform Okooo. The internet lottery distribution of Okooo
is currently suspended. The Group expects that the PRC authorities
will introduce a licensing regime to regulate the internet lottery
market. Depending on the requirements of the licensing regime,
it is planned that the Group will apply for a licence after the PRC
authorities announce the application procedures. By providing
innovative and high quality lottery services and information for SMG
consumers through Okooo, coupled with its reputation for integrity
and reliability, the Group will have a significant advantage over
competitors in the market. During the Internet Suspension period, it
has been reported that illegal and offshore bookmakers have been
actively luring domestic consumers with their competitive odds and
high variety of bet types offerings. While these activities pose serious
threats to the development of SMG in China, they also demonstrate
the potential of domestic SMG market and the demand for changes in
game play. Therefore, the Group will concentrate its effort to develop
the SMG business. The Group expects to see benefits of its investment
over the course of coming years pending the launch of licensing

regime.

With the solid fundamentals of its business and a strong financial
position after the fulfilment of redemption obligation under the
Bonds, the Group is poised to accelerate its growth rate in the future.
The strategic transformation successfully executed over the past
year is considered an essential step forward to achieve the Group’s
medium and long-term success. Looking ahead, the Group’s ongoing
initiatives will facilitate not only the continuous improvement of its
business to generate sustainable shareholder value over time, but also
the development of Chinese lottery market which makes significant
contributions for the good causes that benefit the general public in
China.
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Major Risks and Uncertainties of the Group
The followings were the major risk and uncertainties of the Group
during the year under review.

Macroeconomic Environment

The gross turnover of lotteries in PRC is closely related to consumers’
lottery purchase behavior. Any change in consumers’ lottery purchase
behavior resulting from changes in global and domestic economic
conditions could materially and adversely affect the Group’s business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Regulatory risk

The Group’s lottery business is subject to regulations and measures
promulgated by the relevant authorities in the PRC. Any change in
these regulations and measures in PRC could materially and adversely
affect the Group’s business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Uncertainty in the implementation of internet and telephone lottery

sales services

The rules and regulations on internet and telephone lottery
sales services in PRC are subject to interpretation by the relevant
authorities and may involve uncertainties in their implementation. Any
unfavorable new regulatory requirements or amendments could have
a material adverse effect on the business, financial condition, results
of operations and prospects of the Group.

Renewal of cooperation agreements

The Group operates part of its lottery business pursuant to fixed-
term cooperation agreements with provincial lottery centres and
strategic partners. There is no assurance that these cooperation
agreements will be extended or renewed on favourable terms or at
all. The occurrence of any of the above situations may materially
and adversely affect the Group's business, results of operations and

financial condition.

Weather

Extreme weather conditions in regions where the Group’s lottery
distribution network, suppliers, customers and lottery consumers are
located could adversely affect the business and results of operations
of the Group.
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Corporate Environmental and Social Responsibility

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its various
businesses and the local communities where we operate. The Group
also recognizes the importance of the views and interests of its
stakeholders such as shareholders, regulators, employees and the
public in making its business decisions. The Group continues to make
constant progress in areas such as corporate governance, energy
saving, the remuneration of employees, and general social welfare.

Environmental protection

The Group supports environmental protection programs and is
constantly looking to reduce the impact of business activities on the
environment. The Group also encourages employees to save energy
and improve efficient utilization of resources through the use of
energy-saving lightings and recycled paper, minimizing the use of
paper, reducing energy consumption by switching off idle lightings,
computers and electrical appliances.

Employees care and training

The Group promotes the personal development and professional
growth of its employees. The Group aims to offer a learning
atmosphere to its staff in enriching their work practices. In addition,
the Group strives to provide a safe and congenial workplace for all
employees. The Group also encourages employees to take part in
work-life balance activities and community service.

Community involvement

The Group is committed to being a responsible member of the
community and aims to make a positive impact on the local
community. The Group encourages employees to participate in various
voluntary events, creating a strong social network and providing
assistance and supports for the people in need, which could provide
an opportunity for them to connect outside the workplace, and
inspire teambuilding experiences while contributing to the local
communities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Result

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group recorded a revenue
of HK$1,554,394,000 (2014: HK$1,687,953,000), representing a
decrease of 7.9% over that of the last year. The decrease was mainly
attributable to the Group's lottery business in China.

Profit attributable to equity shareholders for the year was
HK$150,879,000 (loss attributable to equity shareholders for 2014:
HK$103,692,000). The earnings per share was 1.51 HK cents (loss
per share for 2014: 1.12 HK cents). Diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2015 is the same as the basic earnings per
share as both the share options and the Bonds outstanding during the
year had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share.
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The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2015. The Group's total dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2014 amounted to 3.10 HK cents per share.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Funding

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s total equity amounted to
HK$6,085,403,000 as compared to HK$6,140,106,000 at the end of
the previous year.

At 31 December 2015, the Group (including the Disposal Group
as defined in Note 15 to the financial statements on page 121)
had cash and bank balances of approximately HK$1,242,791,000
(2014: approximately HK$1,293,032,000). This balance includes
approximately HK$330,000 (2014: approximately HK$332,000) of
clients’ funds that were kept in designated segregated bank accounts.

In 2011 and 2012, the Company issued the 2016 Bonds in principal
amount of HK$964,700,000 and HK$429,000,000 respectively. Each
2016 Bond is convertible into fully paid ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each (the “Shares”) of the Company at the applicable conversion
price of HK$0.5600 per Share. The 2016 Bonds bear interest at the
rate of 6% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears. In 2014,
conversion rights attached to the 2016 Bonds of HK$618,100,000
in principal amount had been exercised by the holders thereof.
During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no conversion
of the 2016 Bonds into Shares by the bondholders of the Company
(the “Bondholders”). On 30 November 2015, the Company made
a partial payment of 5% of the principal in respect of all the 2016
Bonds for the amount of HK$17,385,000. As at 31 December
2015, the principal amount of the 2016 Bonds outstanding was
HK$330,315,000 (2014: HK$347,700,000).

In 2014, the Company issued the 2019 Bonds in principal amount
of HK$1,900,000,000. Each 2019 Bond is convertible into fully paid
ordinary Shares of the Company at the applicable conversion price
of HK$1.3700 per Share. The 2019 Bonds bear interest at the rate of
4.5% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears. In 2014, there was
no conversion of the 2019 Bonds into Shares by the Bondholders and
no redemption of the 2019 Bonds made by the Company. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, there was no conversion of the 2019
Bonds into Shares by the Bondholders. On 30 November 2015, the
Company made a partial payment of 5% of the principal in respect
of all the 2019 Bonds for the amount of HK$95,000,000. As at 31
December 2015, the principal amount of the 2019 Bonds outstanding
was HK$1,805,000,000 (2014: HK$1,900,000,000).
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The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2015 was 35.70% (2014
33.09%). The gearing ratio was derived by dividing the total
borrowings including the convertible bonds, obligations under
finance leases and bank borrowings includes those classified
as part of liabilities associated with assets classified as held for
sale of approximately HK$2,172,736,000 (2014: approximately
HK$2,031,895,000) by the amount of total equity. The liquidity ratio
of the Group, represented by a ratio between current assets over
current liabilities, was 347% (2014: 2,082%), reflecting adequacy
of financial resources. The decrease of liquidity ratio mainly due to
the reclassification part of the convertible bonds from non-current

liabilities to current liabilities for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings at 31 December 2015
of HK$71,429,000 (2014: HK$87,500,000). The bank borrowings of
HK$71,429,000 was loaned to the Disposal Group in 2015. The bank
borrowings were denominated in Renminbi and interest bearing at
prevailing commercial lending rates. The Disposal Group’s land and
building were pledged to secure the bank borrowings. We expect that
all these borrowings will be repaid by internal generated funds.

Taking into account the financial resources available to the Group
including internally generated funds and available banking facilities,
the Group has sufficient working capital to meet its present

operational requirements.

Impairment Loss on Goodwill
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group made a provision
of HK$99,321,000 (2014: HK$748,530,000) for impairment loss on

goodwill.

The impairment loss on goodwill HK$99,321,000 was recognized
for the Group's cash-generating unit which is principally engaged in
provision of mobile value-added services. The goodwill was arisen as
a result of the acquisition for the cash-generating unit provided the
traditional type of mobile value-added service. During the year, most
of the traditional type of the mobile value-added service has been
replaced by a high technology mobile value-added service, therefore
full impairment of goodwill of HK$99,321,000 was recognized.

Pledge of Assets

At 31 December 2015, the Disposal Group’s land and building with
total market value of approximately HK$122,500,000 was pledged to
banks to secure the bank borrowings granted to the Disposal Group.
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Share Capital

23,470,628 new Shares were issued and allotted by the Company
during the year pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme in respect of
the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, the total number of issued Shares was
9,983,495,338.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the Company’s
capital structure during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Convertible Bonds

The 2016 Bonds

The Company issued the 2016 Bonds in 2011 and 2012 respectively
which shall, upon conversion, be convertible into fully paid Shares at
an initial conversion price of HK$0.6175 per Share. Pursuant to the
adjustment provisions in the initial terms and conditions of the 2016
Bonds, (i) adjustment has been made to the conversion price of the
2016 Bonds from HK$0.6175 per Share to HK$0.6100 per Share with
effect from 19 June 2013 as a result of the approval and declaration
of the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012; (ii)
further adjustment has been made to the conversion price of the
2016 Bonds from HK$0.6100 per Share to HK$0.6000 per Share with
effect from 31 October 2013 as a result of the declaration of the
interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2013; (iii) further
adjustment has been made to the conversion price of the 2016 Bonds
from HK$0.6000 per Share to HK$0.5800 per Share with effect
from 19 June 2014 as a result of the approval and declaration of
the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013; (iv) further
adjustment has been made to the conversion price of the 2016 Bonds
from HK$0.5800 per Share to HK$0.5700 per Share with effect from
31 October 2014 as a result of the declaration of the interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2014; and (v) further adjustment
has been made to the conversion price of the 2016 Bonds from
HK$0.5700 per Share to HK$0.5600 per Share with effect from 19
June 2015 as a result of the approval and declaration of the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no conversion
of the 2016 Bonds into Shares by the Bondholders. On 30 November
2015, the Company made a partial payment of 5% of the principal
in respect of all the 2016 Bonds for the amount of HK$17,385,000.
As at 31 December 2015, the principal amount of the 2016 Bonds
outstanding was HK$330,315,000 (2014: HK$347,700,000). Each
2016 Bond will be convertible into fully paid Shares at an applicable
conversion price of HK$0.5600 per Share upon conversion. The
2016 Bonds was listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited.
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Further updates of the 2016 Bonds are set out in the sections headed
“The First Proposals in relation to the Bonds” and “Latest Proposals in
relation to the Bonds"” below.

The 2019 Bonds

The Company issued the 2019 Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$1,900,000,000 in 2014. Each 2019 Bond will be convertible
into fully paid Shares at an initial conversion price of HK$1.4070 per
Share. Pursuant to the adjustment provisions in the initial terms and
conditions of the 2019 Bonds, (i) adjustment has been made to the
conversion price of the 2019 Bonds from HK$1.4070 per Share to
HK$1.3900 per Share with effect from 31 October 2014 as a result
of the declaration of the interim dividend for the six months ended
30 June 2014; and (ii) further adjustment has been made to the
conversion price of the 2019 Bonds from HK$1.3900 per Share to
HK$1.3700 per Share with effect from 19 June 2015 as a result of the
approval and declaration of the final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there was no conversion
of the 2019 Bonds into Shares by the Bondholders. On 30 November
2015, the Company made a partial payment of 5% of the principal
in respect of all the 2019 Bonds for the amount of HK$95,000,000.
As at 31 December 2015, the principal amount of the 2019 Bonds
outstanding was HK$1,805,000,000 (2014: HK$1,900,000,000). Each
2019 Bond will be convertible into fully paid Shares at an applicable
conversion price of HK$1.3700 per Share upon conversion. The
2019 Bonds was listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited.

Further updates of the 2019 Bonds are set out in the sections headed
“The First Proposals in relation to the Bonds” and “Latest Proposals in
relation to the Bonds"” below.

Relevant Event in relation to the Bonds

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 20 August
2015, pursuant to the terms and conditions of each of the 2016
Bonds and the 2019 Bonds, a “Relevant Event” occurs when, among
other things, the Shares are suspended for trading for a period equal
to or exceeding 30 consecutive trading days on the Stock Exchange.
Notice has been given by the Company to the holders of the Bonds
that a “Relevant Event” occurred. Each holder of the Bonds had the
right at such holder’s option, to require the Company to redeem all
or some only of such holder's Bonds on 2 November 2015 at their
principal amount together with interest accrued to such redemption
date,
conditions of the 2016 Bonds and the 2019 Bonds. Upon redemption

in each case in accordance with the respective terms and

of any of the Bonds, such redeemed Bonds will be cancelled.
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The First Proposals in relation to the Bonds

As stated in the announcements of the Company dated 22 September
2015 and 7 October 2015 respectively, given the occurrence of the
“Relevant Event”, the Company formulated proposals (the “First
Proposals”) to the Bondholders to, among other things, delay the
original “Relevant Event” redemption date to 31 March 2016 (the
“March Relevant Event Redemption Date”) and extend the relevant
put period end date to the date falling 30 days prior to the March
Relevant Event Redemption Date. The First Proposals were approved
by the Bondholders on 29 October 2015 and took effect on 2
November 2015. Accordingly, the “Relevant Event” redemption date
was delayed to 31 March 2016 and the relevant put period end date
was correspondingly extended.

Detailed information regarding the First Proposals and the relevant
meetings of the Bondholders are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 22 September 2015, 7 October 2015 and
29 October 2015, respectively. Based on the redemption notices
received by the Company by 1 March 2016 (being 30 days prior to
the March Relevant Event Redemption Date), the aggregate principal
amount of the Put Bonds subject to redemption on 31 March 2016 is
HK$1,848,415,000. Further updates in relation to the Bonds are set
out in the section headed “Latest Proposals in relation to the Bonds”
below.

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rate Risk and Interest Rate
Risk

The Group's assets, liabilities and transactions are mainly denominated
either in Hong Kong dollar or Renminbi. Since August 2015, the
exchange rate of RMB fluctuated significant, the Directors are aware
that the fluctuation in exchange rate between Hong Kong dollar
and Renminbi may give rise to potential foreign currency risk. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy and
will continue to monitor and evaluate the Group's foreign currency
exposure and take actions as appropriate.

In terms of the interest rate risk exposures, the Group does not have
any significant interest rate risk as both the borrowings of the Group
and the interest rates currently remain at low levels.

Capital Commitments

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company had capital
commitments contracted for but not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements of approximately HK$383,000 (2014:
approximately HK$1,203,000) and approximately HK$84,000,000
(2014: approximately HK$84,000,000) for purchase of property,
plant and equipment and increase in registered capital of a subsidiary

respectively.
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Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, certain subsidiaries of the
Group have issued corporate guarantees in respect of the finance
lease obligation under a sales and leaseback arrangement granted
to a subsidiary of the Group which will expire when the lease is
terminated. The Group has not recognised any deferred income and
the related expenses in respect of such guarantees, as in the opinion
of the Directors, their fair values cannot be reliably measured using
observable market data and their transaction price was nil.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against these subsidiaries under
any of the guarantees.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries
The Group had no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2015.

Human Resources
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 1,213 employees.

The Group remunerated its employee mainly based on the individual's
performance and experience. Apart from the basic remuneration,
discretionary bonus and share options may be granted to eligible
employees by reference to the Group’s performance as well as
individual performance.

Final Dividends
The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 0.80 HK cent per Share).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Disposal of subsidiaries — Major and connected transaction

On 4 January 2016, REXCAPITAL Financial Group Limited (the
“Seller”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (as supplemented and amended on
23 February 2016) (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with Sunjet
Investments Limited (the “Purchaser”), in relation to (i) the sale and
purchase of the entire issued share capital of Multi Glory Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company; and (i) the assignment
of the entire amount owing from Multi Glory Limited to the Group,
at the cash consideration of HK$2,150,000,000 (the “Disposal”).
It is intended that the net proceeds from the Disposal, expected to
be in the amount of approximately HK$1,942,000,000, will firstly
be applied by the Company for redemption of the outstanding Put
Bonds.
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The Disposal constituted a major and connected transaction of the
Company under the Listing Rules. By a resolution passed at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 18 March 2016,
the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder has been approved by the independent shareholders of
the Company. As stated in the announcement of the Company dated
29 March 2016, the relevant conditions precedent under the Sale
and Purchase Agreement have not been fully satisfied as a result of
that the Outstanding Restructuring PRC Approval has not yet been
obtained. Having consulted its PRC legal counsel, the Company
expects that the Outstanding Restructuring PRC Approval should be
able to be obtained, and completion of the Disposal should be able
to take place, by no later than 29 April 2016. Therefore the Seller and
the Purchaser have agreed to extend the long stop date under the
Sale and Purchase Agreement to 29 April 2016. As at the date hereof,
the Disposal has not been completed.

Details of the Disposal are set out in the Company’s circular dated 29
February 2016 and further information relating to the status thereof is
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 18 March 2016 and
29 March 2016 respectively.

Latest Proposals in relation to the Bonds

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 29 March
2016, if completion of the Disposal did not take place before 31
March 2016, because the Outstanding Restructuring PRC Approval
could not be obtained in time, the Company would not have
sufficient offshore cash resources to satisfy its redemption obligations
in relation to the Put Bonds on 31 March 2016, which would result
in an event of default under the Bonds. The Company therefore
is requesting the Bondholders of each of the 2016 Bonds and the
2019 Bonds to agree to delay the March Relevant Event Redemption
Date to the date notified by the Company to the Bondholders and
the trustee of the Bonds no later than five Hong Kong business days
prior to the date on which payment is to be made (which payment
date shall in any event be no later than 29 April 2016) (the “Delayed
Relevant Event Redemption Date”) in relation to the Relevant Delisting
Event (as defined in the Company’s announcement dated 29 March
2016) (collectively, the "Latest Proposals”). The Latest Proposals are
subject to the obtaining of the approval by the Stock Exchange in
accordance with Rule 28.05 of the Listing Rules. Such approval was
granted by the Stock Exchange on 30 March 2016.
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As completion of the Disposal has not taken place on 31 March
2016, the Company was therefore unable to satisfy its redemption
obligations under the Bonds on 31 March 2016, and the Company
would, starting from 1 April 2016, be in default under the
Bonds, unless and until the Written Resolutions (as defined in the
Company’s announcement dated 29 March 2016) were passed by the
Bondholders (and the Latest Proposals were effected by no later than
12 April 2016 if the relevant conditions are satisfied) or all relevant
payment obligations of the Company under the Bonds are duly
satisfied, as the case may be.

The Directors expect that the Company would be able to complete
the Disposal by no later than 29 April 2016, whereupon the Company
would receive sufficient offshore cash resources for redemption of
the Put Bonds, by no later than 29 April 2016 should the Consent
Proposals be approved.

Upon default under the Bonds, the trustee or the Bondholders
through the trustee may take legal actions against the Company in
respect of Bonds. In that case, the business of the Group and the
interests of the Company and the shareholders may be materially and
adversely affected. However, the Company, having consulted its legal
advisers, expects the possible courses of actions to be taken by the
trustee would not have substantial impact on the Company provided
that the completion of Disposal takes place before 29 April 2016.

Conditional Special Interim Dividend

On 21 January 2016, the Board declared a conditional special interim
dividend of HK$0.011 per Share (the “Conditional Special Interim
Dividend”) which was conditional upon completion of the Disposal
and the fulfillment of the redemption obligation by the Company
under the Bonds by 31 March 2016. Details of the Conditional Special
Interim Dividend are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 21 January 2016.

As completion of the Disposal does not take place by 31 March 2016,
the Conditional Special Interim Dividend will not be paid. It is the
intention of the Board that, subject to completion of the Disposal
and the fulfillment of the repayment obligation of the Company
under the Bonds, a special interim dividend of HK$0.011 per Share
(payable in scrip form with a cash alternative) will be declared. Further
announcement will be made by the Company in this regard as and
when appropriate.
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Directors’ Report (continued)

EEeHE (&)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance practices. Further information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 42 to 52.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including
the review of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015.

AUDITOR

By a resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 11 June 2015, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited (“"THKC
CPA Ltd.”) has been appointed as the auditor of the Company to fill
the vacancy arising from the retirement of Messrs. Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan as a result of their internal corporate structure reorganisation.

Details of the change of auditor are, among other things, set out
in the Company's circular dated 30 April 2015 and the Company’s
announcements dated 31 March 2015 and 11 June 2015 respectively.

THKC CPA Ltd. retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for re-appointment of THKC CPA Ltd. as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has adopted
the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

APPRECIATION

The Board expresses its sincere thanks to all the shareholders,
bondholders, business partners and professional advisors for their
support throughout the year, and to our management and staff for
their ongoing dedication to the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chan How Chung, Victor
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016

* The English translation of Chinese names or words are for information
purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBEAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN How Chung, Victor, aged 54, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 4 July 2002. Mr Chan is responsible
for the strategic development and overall operations of the Group.
He holds a LLB degree and is a professionally qualified accountant.
Mr Chan has over 26 years of experience in corporate restructurings
and reorganizations, mergers and acquisitions, primary and secondary
capital raisings, wealth management and corporate finance.

BOO Chun Lon, aged 51, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 14 September 2004 and is responsible for the
development of the Group. He holds a bachelor’s degree of arts from
the University of Winnipeg in Canada. Prior to joining the Company,
he has been the marketing manager of Great Tone Limited, an

international manufacturing company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

YUEN Wai Ho, aged 56, obtained a master of business
administration from the University of Bath in England in 1988. Mr
Yuen is a fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, an associate member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
& Administrators. Mr Yuen has more than 26 years of experience
in auditing and commercial fields, 10 of which were working in
multinational companies. He is currently a partner of a firm of
certified public accountants.

CHOW Siu Ngor, aged 60, is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong.
Mr Chow graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
1981 with an honors degree in Social Science. He then obtained an
honors degree in Laws from the University of Birmingham in England
in 1987. Mr Chow was admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court
of Hong Kong in 1990 and has been in private practice since then.
Currently, Mr Chow is a Partner of King & Wood Mallesons, Solicitors.
He also serves as an independent non-executive director of CCT Land
Holdings Limited (formerly known as CCT Tech International Limited)
and CCT Fortis Holdings Limited, both of which are listed companies
in Hong Kong. Mr Chow was a non-executive director of REX Global
Entertainment Holdings Limited (formerly known as China Gamma
Group Limited), which is a listed company in Hong Kong, from April
2006 to September 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management (continued)

EERS

LEE Ka Lun, aged 61, is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom. Mr Lee has
over 20 years experience in banking and auditing. He had been the
Deputy Chief Executive of Lloyds TSB Bank plc, Hong Kong Branch
and Regional Director — Finance and Operation of Lloyds TSB's
operations in Asia for over 15 years and has extensive experience
on corporate banking, private banking, treasury, operations, IT
developments and general management. Mr Lee also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings
International Limited, Yuexiu Property Company Limited, Chong Hing
Bank Limited and Medicskin Holdings Limited, all of which are listed

companies in Hong Kong.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WOO Ming Wah, aged 45, is the Chief Financial Officer of the
Group. Mr Woo is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr Woo has over 19 years of

experience in the field of auditing and financial management.

NG Yuen Yee, aged 46, is the Company Secretary of the Company.
Ms Ng is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. She has over 23 years of experience in the field

of company secretaryship.

YAU Sheung Nei, aged 43, is the Director —
and Investor Relations of the Group. Ms Yau has over 20 years of

Corporate Development

experience in the field of investor relations and equity research. Prior
to joining the Group, she had worked for a number of Hong Kong

listed red chip companies and a global asset management company.
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Mcmagemenf for Lottery Business

FEEXEKBKEE AR

ZHANG Beiguang, aged 46, is the Executive Vice President (Lottery
Operation and Overseas Markets) of the Group. Mr Zhang graduated
from the Peking University with a bachelor’'s degree in arts. He has
over 15 years experience in strategic development and management.

WANG Xiangbo, aged 53, is the general manager of it R -{EF|
H R B PR A &(Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co Ltd*) (“Guard
He joined Guard Libang in 2004. Mr Wang graduated
from the Hunan University with a master's degree in Business

Libang”).

Administration. Prior to joining Guard Libang, he was appointed as
vice president of China Southern Airlines Power Machinery Company
in 1993 and was responsible for sales. He specialized in large scale
operation management and international venture, especially in
nationwide marketing management. He was the general manager of
Tianjin Nankai Co Ltd, a listed company in China between 2000 to
2003.

ZHU Yi, aged 49, is a director and the general manager of &3l
B 28 2 i 1 4T A R A B)(Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd*)
and is in charge of the marketing functions. He graduated from
Chongging University in the department of Electrical Engineering
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering. Since 1993, Mr Zhu has
been working in the lottery industry of China. He has long been
engaged in the research and development of the lottery market,
and is responsible for the sales and marketing of the Welfare
Computer Ticket Games project of more than ten provinces in China.
He has extensive experience and has outstanding achievements in
anticipating the development trend of the lottery industry, capturing
marketing opportunities and market operation.
LI Xue Jun, aged 43, is the deputy general manager of &I & 44
4B B 1T B BR & B)(Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd*), and
is in charge of technical matters. He graduated from Chongging
University in the department of photoelectric equipment and
mechanical engineering with a master degree in Engineering.
Mr Li has been responsible for the planning and development of
the lottery issue and management system. He has completed the
implementation of the technological solutions and engineering tasks
of the Welfare Computer Ticket Games issue and management system
in 17 provinces in China, with which he was awarded the prize of
"Excellent New Product” of the Guangdong Province and a number
of national patents. With extensive experience in the planning of total
lottery solutions and the development and implementation of relevant
products, he has exceptional insights into and practical experience of
the application of relevant lottery technologies and their development
prospects.
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Management for Lottery Business (continued)

JIANG Libin, aged 43, is the general manager of /& /I %4153 %l
B R R F(Guangzhou Latech Technology Co Ltd*) (“Guangzhou
Latech”).
extensive experience in mechanical and electronic engineering

Mr Jiang joined Guangzhou Latech in 2000 and has

research and related business operations. He graduated from the

faculty of power control in Beihang University.

QIAOQ Jin, aged 47, YT & B
fii & fR A &)(Shenzhen Kingsail Software Tech Co Ltd*). Mr Qiao
graduated from Chongqing University and holds a M.Sc. degree from

is the general manager of

the Department of Applied Mathematics and a Ph.D degree from
the College of Optoelectronic Engineering. He has over 10 years of
experience in the field of information technology and engineering,

specializing in comprehensive information system application.

TSANG Lung Fai, aged 52, the Chief Executive Officer of 4t R {E% &

# BHE B BR A &)(Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd*) and
is responsible for the overall management of the printing of lottery
tickets. Mr Tsang holds a master’'s degree in Business Administration
from Massey University in New Zealand. He has worked in C & C
Security Printing Company Limited for around 20 years and was
experienced in security printing. He was formerly the general manager
of Hong Kong and Dongguan plants of RR Donnelley, an international

printing firm.

ZHONG Wu, aged 52, is the Chief Operating Officer of 1t & {5 % &

BB PR A B](Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery Technology Co Ltd*) and is
responsible for the overall operation of the printing of lottery tickets.
Mr Zhong graduated from Beihang University — School of Economics
and Management, with a master’s degree in business administration.
He has over 10 years of experience in product development and
logistic management and business planning.

TUNG Wai Ching, aged 51,
ML HERBR AR

is responsible for the overall management of the sales of lottery

is the general manager of ib & %
(Beijing Lohowin Marketing Co Ltd*) and

tickets. Mr Tung holds a master’s degree in Business Administration
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has over 10 years of
experience in sales & marketing and management and has thorough
understanding to the Chinese market.

* The English translation of Chinese names or words are for information
purpose only, and should not be regarded as the official English
translation of such Chinese names or words.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERKE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the "CG Code") in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”).

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize
a quality board of directors, sound internal control, principles and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the Company.
The Company has complied with the code provisions (the “Code
Provision(s)”) under the CG Code throughout the accounting period
covered by this report except in certain circumstances which are
provided and discussed in the latter part of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are collectively
responsible for the oversight of the management of business and
affairs of the Group of the best interest of the shareholders of the
Company.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) currently comprises a total of
five Directors, with two Executive Directors namely Mr Chan How
Chung, Victor and Mr Boo Chun Lon and three Independent Non-
executive Directors namely Mr Yuen Wai Ho, Mr Chow Siu Ngor and
Mr Lee Ka Lun. A list containing the names of the Directors and their
roles and functions is published on the websites of the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 38 to
39. To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships between
members of the Board.

Throughout the year under review, the Board at all times met the
requirements under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules respectively relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise and the Independent Non-
executive Directors represent at least one-third of the Board.

All Independent Non-executive Directors are financially independent
from the Group. The Company has received the annual confirmation
of independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors and confirmed with all Independent Non-executive Directors
as to their independence with reference to the factors as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

The Board is collectively responsible for formulating of the Group's
overall strategy, reviewing and monitoring the business performance
of the Group, preparing and approving financial statements,
recommending the Directors’ appointment or re-appointment,
considering and approving material contracts and transactions (in
particular those may involve conflict of interests) as well as other
significant policy and financial matters. The Board also gives clear
directions as to the powers delegated to the management for the
day-to-day operation, management and administration functions of
the Group. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the management and the

Board has the full support of them to discharge its responsibilities.

There were seven Board meetings and one general meeting held for
the year ended 31 December 2015. The following was an attendance
record of the Board meetings and general meeting during the year:
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Number of Number of

Board general

meetings meetings

attended/held attended/held

HE BT HE BT

Name of Directors EEME EESEEAY BERERE

Executive Directors HITESE

Chan How Chung, Victor PR 2= B2 717 1/1

Boo Chun Lon Al B2 7/7 11
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTEE

Yuen Wai Ho e 717 1/1

Chow Siu Ngor FNE 717 11

Lee Ka Lun TR 7/7 1/1

The Directors have disclosed to the Company the number and nature
of offices held in other public companies or organization and other
significant commitments in a timely manner and will provide updates

to the Company on any subsequent changes.

All Directors have been provided with monthly updates by the Group’s
management, giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’s performance, position, recent developments and
prospects in sufficient detail to keep them abreast of the Group’s
affairs and facilitate them to discharge their duties under the relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)
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TEERBRRE (&)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman and the
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set out
in writing.

The Company does not at present have a Chairman nor a Chief
Executive. Nevertheless, the main duties and responsibilities of
a Chairman and a Chief Executive are currently held by separate
individuals with written guidelines for the division of responsibilities
with a view to maintain an effective segregation of duties between
the management of the Board and the day-to-day management of the
Group’s business and operations.

The Company will continue to review the effectiveness of the Group's
corporate governance structure and consider the appointment of
a Chairman of the Board and a Chief Executive if candidates with
suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be identified
within or outside the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, the
Independent Non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific
term, but are subject to retirement by rotation at the Company’s
annual general meeting as specified in the Bye-laws.

The Company has complied with the requirement of the Code
Provision on considering the independency of an Independent Non-
executive Director who has served more than nine years for his further
appointment. Mr Yuen Wai Ho, who has served on the Board for more
than nine years, was re-elected as Independent Non-executive Director
at the annual general meeting held on 11 June 2015 (“2015 AGM")
by passing separate resolution at the 2015 AGM. The Board’s view on
Mr Yuen's independent status was set out in the 2015 AGM circular.
The re-election of Mr Lee Ka Lun, Independent Non-executive Director
who has served the Board for more than nine years, will be considered
by a vote on a separate resolution in the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board has established relevant board committees to assist in
discharging its responsibilities.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 29 March 2012. It
currently consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors namely
Mr Lee Ka Lun (as Chairman), Mr Yuen Wai Ho and Mr Chow Siu Ngor
and one Executive Director namely Mr Chan How Chung, Victor.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of candidates
for directorship, appointment or re-appointment and succession
of Directors, and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors. Details of the duties and powers of the
Nomination Committee are set out in its written terms of reference
which are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy since August
2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board, and sees board diversity is an essential element in
achieving a sustainable and balanced development. In reviewing
Board composition, the Nomination Committee will consider balance
of a number of factors, including but not limited to age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on merit,
having due regard to the overall effective function of the Board as a

whole.
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There was one Nomination Committee meeting held for the year HE-_Z-RAF+-_A=+—HLEE REZE®T

ended 31 December 2015. The following was an attendance record of BRIT-—REE-UTARFRRITZREEZESEE
the Nomination Committee meeting held during the year: Egpleel R ok >

Number of

meetings

attended/held

HE BT

Nomination Committee Members REZEERKE RPN

Lee Ka Lun FRB 1/1

Yuen Wai Ho B 12 5 1/1

Chow Siu Ngor HNE 171

Chan How Chung, Victor Rk 2 B2 11
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During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included (i) determining the policy for the nomination
of directors with reference to the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board; (ii)
reviewing the annual confirmation of independence submitted
by the Independent Non-executive Directors and assessed their
independence; and (iii) reviewing the board diversity policy of the
Company. Nomination procedures and the process and criteria will be
determined by the Nomination Committee should there be the need

to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23 September
2005.
Directors namely Mr Chow Siu Ngor (as Chairman), Mr Yuen Wai Ho
and Mr Lee Ka Lun.

It currently consists of three Independent Non-executive

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the management’s remuneration proposals, and making
recommendations to the Board on remuneration policy of the
Company and remuneration packages of Directors and senior
management. Details of the duties and powers of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in its written terms of reference which are

available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
There was one Remuneration Committee meeting held for the year

ended 31 December 2015. The following was an attendance record of
the Remuneration Committee meeting held during the year:

Remuneration Committee Members
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BZRE ABRAR (BERKEE %ﬂﬁk&%%ﬁ)%?ﬁ
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EHNEEEBESE FEBESEATRARE R
Bk ZZ Pt 2 A8 uk A B
HE_Z-—AF+T-_A=+—HLFE FHEES
BE1T /X’.;E% NTRRERNBITZHFMEESS
BZHE L
Number of
meetings
attended/held
HE BT
RS

Chow Siu Ngor /N E
Yuen Wai Ho fr J& =
Lee Ka Lun TR

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model that it will
review the proposals made by the management on the remuneration
of individual Executive Directors and senior management, and make
recommendations to the Board. The Board will have final authority
to approve the recommendations made by the Remuneration
Committee.
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During the year under review, work performed by the Remuneration
Committee included (i) assessing performance of Executive Directors
and senior management and, where applicable, approving their
terms of services including the directors’ fees and the emoluments
of Executive Directors; and (ii) reviewing and determining on policy
and structure of the remuneration package of Directors and senior

management.

The remuneration packages of the Board for the year ended 31
December 2015 had been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
and approved by the Board by taking into consideration factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment,
responsibility, market conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year under review are
set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the members of the senior management by

band for the year ended 31 December 2015 is as follows:

TEREREE (&)

REEFE FMEEETZ TEBREOFZHT
EEREREBRABZRE UL (ER) #ERSE
ZRBGET BREEEFVERATESEZHE  Rii)
B RAFTEEREREBEABSFIFE 2 BR LR
'

HE-_T-—AF+ A=+ BALEEZEESSHH
FBCHYFMZESFE R TEESQIE &
FEZEEZEREZ WHEEARMGETZHE KM
ZERANBE - ASEETEMFE TSR RIER
BAFFRER - S EETREBEFEZHHF1EHR
B R R M FE10 -

BEREFAZ TAKYE.1.564 SREBABRE
E-T-RE+-AZ+-BLEEZEFSREE
mF

Number of
employees
EEBAH
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,0018 7L = 1,500,000/ 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001,8 7t £2,000,000/% 7T 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% 7T £2,500,0007% 7T -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001% 7 £3,000,0007% 7T 1
3

Audit Committee EREEY

The Audit Committee was established on 28 September 2000. It
currently consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors
namely Mr Yuen Wai Ho (as Chairman), Mr Chow Siu Ngor and Mr
Lee Ka Lun. The committee members possess appropriate professional
qualifications, business or accounting and related financial
management expertise and experience to provide relevant advice and

recommendations to the Company.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing and
monitoring the financial reporting, risk management and internal
control system of the Company, and assist the Board to fulfill its
responsibility over the audit. Details of the duties and powers of
the Audit Committee are set out in its written terms of reference
which are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties which include: (i) to develop and review the
(ii)

to review and monitor the training and continuous professional

Company's policies and practices on corporate governance;

development of Directors and senior management; (iii) to review
and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop, review and
monitor the code of conduct and compliance (if any) applicable to the
Directors and employees; and (v) to review the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
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Report.
There were three Audit Committee meetings held for the year ended HE_T—hF+-_A=T—HLFE EFZZE"
31 December 2015, two of which were held with the external auditor. BOIZRGE HPMRKENEZERMET-UT
The following was an attendance record of the Audit Committee ABRFANRTZERZEE SR N E L
meetings held during the year:
Number of
meetings
attended/held
HE R
Audit Committee Members EREEERE BRRE
Yuen Wai Ho Prie = 313
Chow Siu Ngor HNE 3/3
Lee Ka Lun TR 3/3

The Audit Committee reviewed the independence and objectivity of
the external auditor, the scope of audit services and related audit fees
payable to the external auditor for the Board’s approval. The Audit
Committee met and discussed with the external auditor on their audit
strategy and assessment of the sufficiency of the internal control of
the Group.

During the year under review, work performed by the Audit
Committee included (i) reviewing the audited annual results and the
unaudited interim results of the Group; (ii) reviewing the compliance
and internal audit reports and the compliance and corporate
governance issues of the Group; and (iii) discussing with external
auditor the audit planning work (including the nature and scope of
the audit and reporting obligations) in respect of the audit of the
annual results of the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit

Committee on the selection and appointment of the external auditor

during the year under review.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration payable to the Company’s external
auditor, Ting Ho Kwan & Chan CPA Limited, represents the provision
of audit fees for statutory audit and other non-statutory audit
services amounting to approximately HK$3,010,000 and HK$350,000
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015, the Directors have adopted
suitable accounting policies which are pertinent to its operations and
relevant to the financial statements, made judgments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable, and have prepared the financial
statements on the going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the Directors for the financial statements and
those for the auditor to the shareholders of the Company are set out
on page 53.

INTERNAL CONTROL

To protect its assets and to ensure the accuracy and reliability of the
financial information that the Company employs in its business or
releases to the public, the Company conducts regular reviews of the
effectiveness of the Group's internal controls. The scope of these
reviews includes, among others, finance, operations, regulation
compliance and risk management.

During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control system, covering financial, operational

and compliance controls and risk management functions.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company has adopted
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS' CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
Every newly appointed Director will be given a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on his/her first appointment so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and of his/her duties, responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing
and professional development to Directors whenever necessary.

The Directors are continuously updated on latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by them.

The Directors are committed to comply with Code Provision A.6.5
of the CG Code on directors’ training to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to the
Board will be informed and relevant.

According to the records provided by the Directors to the Company
pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors have participated in
appropriate continuous professional development activities during the
year under review. The individual training record of each Director for
the year ended 31 December 2015 is summarized below:

Directors’ duties and responsibilities/
Corporate Governance/
Updates on Laws, Rules and Regulations

EECRHEEXERRE
BUFZEZEETHANEREZERERFSE2E ERX
REBEMBORERS ERFTESHAEEE
BREE UWEREREWRERABEEEREERE
TZRE BBELETEEEER-

ARBFETESEARS
HREEER-

VERLSBERHFED

EERBESEHLTRIREMEREEREZR
MERER  BREEMAEST-

EEYNETEETAZTAGRXAGSE REA
HMEESERITEHENERKEZE 'LME%EE

BEEEARYAMBEATHESSHELER -

REEERREETARNARARBZLE £8E
EROBEFENASEQEREERERELY HE

—hFE+ A=t RLFEREEZEAE
SR

Business related/Accounting/
Financial/Management or

other professional skills

ESRHERBY CEER ES 1 VE-5 04 )
EE RARRHZHER EEGHME R
Attending Attending
Reading seminars/ In-house Reading seminars/
materials conferences briefings materials conferences
LEWHE/ HEWTE/
BEMA L kA CE: e L
Executive Directors HITEZE
Chan How Chung, Victor e v / / v v
Boo Chun Lon Mg v v v v v
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHHITEE
Yuen Wai Ho REE v v v/ v v
Chow Siu Ngor BNE v / / v v
Lee Ka Lun FRE v/ v/ v/ v/ v/
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DIRECTORS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

During the year under review, the Company has arranged appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect of potential legal
actions against the Directors arising out of corporate activities of
the Group pursuant to Code Provision A.1.8 of the CG Code. Such
directors’ liability insurance will be reviewed and renewed annually.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2015, no claim has been
made against the Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms Ng Yuen Yee, who was
appointed by the Board on 27 April 2006.

During the year, Ms Ng has undertaken sufficient hours of relevant
professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a special general meeting
Pursuant to Section 74(1) of the Bermuda Companies Act and the
bye-law 62 of the Bye-laws, the shareholder(s) of the Company
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company with the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company may request the Board to

convene a special general meeting.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered office
of the Company at Canon's Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM
12, Bermuda for the attention of the Company Secretary and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

If the Directors do not within twenty one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a meeting,
but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the said date.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board
Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Standard Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
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Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed in writing with contact
details (including name, address, telephone number and email
address) to the principal office of the Company at Suite 2601, 26/F,,
Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general

meetings of the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general meeting
Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group to be discussed
at general meetings. Proposals shall be directed in writing with
contact details (including name, address, telephone number and email
address) to the principal office of the Company at Suite 2601, 26/F,
Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

The procedures for proposing a person for election as a Director are
available on the websites of the Company.

The Board may, in its sole discretion, consider if such proposals are
appropriate and shall be put forward to the Shareholders for approval
at the next general meeting to be convened by the Board.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company communicates with its shareholders and investors
through various channels including publication of interim and annual
reports, announcements, circulars, press releases and other corporate
communications and publications available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
direct communication between the Board and the Shareholders. The
Company encourages their participation through general meetings
where the Shareholders meet and exchange views with the Board,
and to exercise their right to vote at meetings.

To promote the communication between the Company and
its shareholders, the Company has established a shareholders’
communication policy which shall be reviewed on a regular basis to
ensure its effectiveness and compliance with the prevailing regulatory

and other requirements.

An up-to-date consolidated version of the Memorandum of
Association of the Company and Bye-laws is published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. There have been
no changes to such constitutional documents during the year under
review.
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TING HO KWAN & CHAN

TO THE MEMBERS OF REXLOT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of REXLot
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “"Group”) set out on pages 56 to 191, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

Independent Auditor’s Report
AR ] *ﬁ &=

TING HO KWAN & CHAN CPA LTD

9/F., Tung Ning Building, 249-253 Des Voeux Road C, Hong Kong

BHEREERARABDVERE
(REFRZZMAELZZ FERLAE])

SEHEDTT (AT RN T3 F1]) B e BEXENF56
EINAzHZEPRERBERABD ([EAE])RE
MELAR (RBIEEE]) 2EEHBHRE KT e

ER-_F-—RAFt_A=t—"BZHaMBEHRARKE
BEEZALFEZEARAR HFRE2ERER &
ERBEHRNGEAAENER URETEGFHEER
BER AW EF -
EEpGeUBRRAREZER
BERRER([EFX)AAERBRESAMAGR

2 BERHBRERAREE CRRED) ZHER
ERBEAEMAFZEAVBRER URBENTE
ERRBFZRNEES NELRETBRER T FES
REGFRERRME R 2 ERHR AL

BB 2 B

B2 EEEREBERMABAGEMBRRZEZSE T
BR-BARBE-NAN-—FARERFEFIOKRE R
AEm ETIRENAEEMASE - R THAR
EZAD HEMEGALEEHFRETE-

BMERBEEFESTMAGHEM BB EFLEAETT
B R FREANERFMETERRE LRI KZH
TER NEBREESUBBRRRE I IFAERNE
KB R BR At -

Annual Report 2015 =—Z—H4F4Fif

53



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
(

BYZBERE (F)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015 and of the Group's performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of matters

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Notes 15, 36
and 52 to the consolidated financial statements. To address these
issues, the Company is proceeding to obtain convertible bonds
holders’ consent to extend the convertible bonds redemption date
from 31 March 2016 to a date no later than 29 April 2016 so as
to enable the Company to have sufficient cash resources upon the
completion of the proposed disposal of certain subsidiaries of the
Company (the “Disposal”) pursuant to the Company’s circular dated
29 February 2016 and the announcement dated 29 March 2016
to satisfy its redemption obligations in relation to the Bonds. The
ultimate outcome of these matters cannot presently be determined
and this indicates the existence of material uncertainties as stated in
Note 52 which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to

continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
assumption that the Group will continue as a going concern and
therefore do not include any adjustments relating to the realisation
of assets that may be necessary if the Group is unable to continue
as a going concern. Should the going concern assumption be
inappropriate, adjustments may have to be made to reflect the
situation that assets may need to be realised other than at the
amounts at which they are currently recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position. In addition, the Group may have to
provide for further liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current

liabilities, respectively.

TING HO KWAN & CHAN CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Chan Shu Kin

Practising Certificate Number: P01297

Hong Kong, 31 March 2016
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Consolidated Income Statement

AWK

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE-T-AE+-AS+—BILEE

2015 2014
—E—afF —T—F
Notes HK$000 HK$ 000
k=3 FET FET
Revenue A 5 1,554,394 1,687,953
Cost of sales/services rendered HE IRERS 2 RA 23(b) (506,718) (448,271)
Other income EHAb g A 5 93,720 9,485
Other gains, net H Uy 2= 5 58 5 34,043 19,867
Selling and distribution expenses  $H%& &5 #H & A (72,999) (64,122)
Loss on deconsolidation of RIS AR—RHME QA
a subsidiary Z 518 47 - (9,397)
Impairment loss on goodwill EE R AEEE 18 (99,321) (748,530)
Impairment losses on EREERMBEER
intangible assets 19 - (121,885)
Administrative expenses 1THER (410,598) (305,685)
Operating profit R 592,521 19,415
Finance costs MHER 8 (387,721) (173,474)
Share of profits of joint ventures D {H& &1 %EEF 20 558 12,518
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBADRERN S (EE) 9 205,358 (141,541)
Taxation I 12 (41,124) (30,559)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERMN(FBR) 164,234 (172,100)
Attributable to: LA A T FE4h :
Equity shareholders of KD A= RER
the Company 150,879 (103,692)
Non-controlling interests FE1% R FE 2 13,355 (68,408)
164,234 (172,100)
Earnings/(loss) per share for AARERRREMLEF(FHE)
profit/(loss) attributable to ZEREF(FE)
equity shareholders of
the Company 14
- Basic and diluted —EARKREE 1.51 centsfl (1.12) centsfll

Details of dividends paid and proposed for the year are disclosed in
Note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

The notes on pages 64 to 191 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

134 % -

56 REXLot Holdings Limited #ZEARi AR A 7]

FAENERBRNEREZFBRE S M BRERME

FOAE19NBEZHMABAGAEMBHRE -5 -



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December 2015

e E2HEWK

m &R

HE_Z—RAF+-A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-IfF —E-—mE
Note HK$'000 HK$000
B iE FHETT FET
Profit/(loss) for the year FEXN(BE) 164,234 (172,100)
Other comprehensive expense  HftZEBE X
Items that may be reclassified HigngeEs o EsEs2EE
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange difference arising BREBINEBH B RREEZ
from translation of financial bE i Z 58
statements of foreign
operations (101,948) (39,835)
Share of other comprehensive PMEEELECHEMEERAY
expense of joint ventures 20 (7,496) (4,022)
Total other comprehensive Hith2HFAXZEAHE
expense (109,444) (43,857)
Total comprehensive income/ FEZEWE(BX)HE
(expense) for the year 54,790 (215,957)
Attributable to: AT ARG :
Equity shareholders of AN E R 2 AR R
the Company 47,957 (141,972)
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR = 6,833 (73,985)
54,790 (215,957)
The notes on pages 64 to 191 are an integral part of these FOARIIN B2 T BAGEEMBRE 25 -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REHMBRR X

At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RAF+-H=+—H

2015 2014
—E—HE — TP
Notes HK$000 HK$ 000
Kt FET FET
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BEREHE 16 59,271 196,259
Prepaid lease payments on = b {58 PR 4 2 FE AN AR A9 15 3R
land use rights 17 735 46,317
Goodwill RS 18 405,206 1,531,322
Intangible assets mEEE 19 1,920 57,803
Interests in joint ventures REELEZER 20 377,614 384,552
Available-for-sale financial assets At HESHEE 21 307,810 77,182
Total non-current assets EMBEEHLE 1,152,556 2,293,435
Current assets REEE
Inventories RS 23 23,494 142,656
Trade receivables B E 5 R ® 24 760,152 916,772
Utility and other deposits NAFEERHEMEZES 25 1,600,474 1,742,347
Prepayments and other receivables 8% 7k 18 K H i jE Ug 50 IR 26 1,795,121 2,125,177
Financial assets at fair value BABREAREFEZEREE
through profit or loss 27 63,935 53,102
Cash and bank balances & MIRITE % 28 1,098,073 1,293,032
5,341,249 6,273,086
Assets of the disposal group DERBIELRECHEMHRZEE
classified as held for sale 15 2,236,663 -
Total current assets MBEEEE 7,577,912 6,273,086
Total assets EEHE 8,730,468 8,566,521
EQUITY En
Capital and reserves attributable KOG ERBRERELERR HE
to equity shareholders of
the Company
Share capital N 30 99,835 99,600
Reserves ] 32 5,871,322 5,827,299
Proposed final dividend EEAREKRE 13 - 79,680
5,971,157 6,006,579
Non-controlling interests FIERES 114,246 133,527
Total equity R 6,085,403 6,140,106
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

REMBERRR (&)

2015 R=ZZE—RF+=-A=+—H

At 31 December

2015 2014
—E—-afF —ZT-EF
Notes HK$000 HK$ 000
k3 FHET FEoT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Amount due to a joint venture R —EE &k ERIE 20 46,195 46,195
Deferred tax liabilities REMIEEE 22 155,857 151,269
Convertible bonds Al R E 5 36 250,773 1,900,452
Obligations under finance leases @& & & 7% 37 8,867 27,262
Total non-current liabilities EmB B EERE 461,692 2,125,178
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FERE SRR 33 2,728 26,871
Other payables and accruals E A FE S FRIE K FE 5T ARIE 34 64,311 157,897
Bank borrowings RITIEE 35 = 87,500
Current portion of AIRKRESZRE I D
convertible bonds 36 1,824,629 -
Obligations under finance leases @& & &% 37 17,038 16,681
Amount due to a shareholder FEA — BB R RIE 48 118,000 =
Current tax liabilities EHHEAE 3,051 12,288
2,029,757 301,237
Liabilities directly associated with BEHEAFELE 2 HEHRZ
the assets of the disposal group BEBEZNMEBEZAE
classified as held for sale 15 153,616 -
Total current liabilities mEBAEERE 2,183,373 301,237
Total liabilities =RiE R 2,645,065 2,426,415
Total equity and liabilities EaREEEAHE 8,730,468 8,566,521
Net current assets REBEEFE 5,394,539 5,971,849
Total assets less current liabilities B EER R EE 6,547,095 8,265,284

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board on 31 March 2016 and are signed on behalf of the Board

by:

Chan How Chung, Victor

BRZ 58

DIRECTOR

EBEF

The notes on pages 64 to 191 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

HBRREN_-F

—RF=ZRA=t-HEE=gRE
REETE THTNEEERERRE:

Boo Chun Lon
i BE
DIRECTOR

EBEF

FOARNEZMEBAGA P BREK 3D -
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60

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREH K

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ=Z

—hAFt+t-A=t—HLFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARERRES
Capital ~ Convertible Share-based  Exchange Proposed Non-
Share Share  redemption bonds ~ payment translation  Retained final controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits ~ dividend Total  interests equity
) Ex ek NRGRA B3

B RBEE REORG EEEE NEBE  EXGE  REEW AERS Rit FEREE  RRAE

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000

TiET FET FAT AT AT AT TAT TET TiET FiET FET

Balance at 1 January 2014 RZF-RE-A-Rz&H 87318 3,180,903 2,345 212,388 346 144217 2,167,859 168,644 5,964,020 258652 6,222,672

Loss for the year FEEB - - - - - - (103,69) - (103692 (68408)  (172,100)

Other comprehensive expense for the year FEEM2ERR = = = = = (38,280) - - (38,280) (557) (43857

Total comprehensive expense PERLAE = = = = = (38,280) (103,692 - (141972 (73,985 (215,957)

Capital contribution by non-controlling interests  JE iz i & - - - - - - - - - 3,750 3,750
Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries  4REB YR 2\ R 5ME S (#et46)

(Note 46) - - - - - - (458,115) - (458,115) (22,985) (481,100)
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary (Note 47) RIEGANE-BHB AR (fie7) - - - - - - - - - (31905 (31905
Total changes in ownership interests EEEER - - - - - - (458119 - (458115  (51,140)  (509,255)
Issue of new shares ik 10600 112,020 - - - - - - 113080 - 113,080
Recognition of share option benefits at fair value {524 R ABRERH - - - - 13,708 - - - 13,708 - 13,708
Repurchase of shares BERG (680) (53,357) 680 - - - (680) - (54,037) - (54,037)
Transfer to share premium on exercise of RiERRENSRZROERE

share options - 5,651 - - (5,651) - - - - - -
Isste of shares upon conversion of RERTRREFEZTRG(

convertible bonds (Note 36) 10,494 647,768 - (94,079) - - - - 564,183 - 564,183
Convertible bonds - equity component,

net of transaction costs (Note 36) - - - 296,730 - - - - 296,730 - 296,730
2013 proposed final dividend paid 583 48,401 - - - - (5989)  (168,644) (125,649 - (125,649)
Interim dividend (Note 13) 825 60,987 - - - - (227,181) - (165,369) - (165,369)
2014 proposed final dividend (Note 13) - f ]ﬁé%ﬂq e (it13) - - - - - - (79,680) 79,680 - - -
Total contributions and distributions HERARES 12,282 821,470 680 202,651 8,057 - (313,530) (88,964) 642,646 - 642,646
Total transactions with owners of the Company ~ EAAREEARHEE 1228 821470 680 202,651 8,057 - (e (88964) 184531 (51,140) 133391
Balance at 31 December 2014 RZE-RE+-B=1-RziH 99,600 4,002,373 3,025 415,039 8,403 105937 1,292,522 79,680 6,006,579 133527 6,140,106
Balance at 31 December 2014 and —mEFZA=+-AR

1 January 2015 -h%¥-R-BzEH 99600 4,002,373 3,025 415,039 8,403 105937 1,292,522 79,680 6,006,579 133527 6,140,106
Profit for the year FEEH - - - - - - 150879 - 150879 13355 164,234
Other comprehensive expense for the year EEEBRARR - - - - - (102,922) - - (102,922) (6522) (109,444
Total comprehensive income/(expense) 2ENE/ (RX) 4% - - - - - (102922 150879 - 47,957 6,833 54,790
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests BRAEERESRE - - - - - - - - - (26,114) (26,114)
Total changes in ownership interests RERERZDUEE - - - - - - - - - (2614 (26114
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - - (2,074) - 2,074 - - - -
Redemption of convertible bonds (Vore 35)  EEIATARES = = - (07%2) - - 6,261 - (14491) - (14491)
2014 proposed final dividend paid (Vote 13)  —B-MEREf %Hﬁx% (H#13) 235 10,557 - - - = = (719680)  (68,888) - (68,388)
Total contributions and distributions 235 10,557 - (20,752) (2,074) - 8,335 (79,680) (83,379) - (83379)
Total ransactions with owners of the Company ~~ EARFHEEAR S HE 235 10,557 - (20,752) (2,074) - 8,335 (19680)  (83379) (26114  (109,493)
Balance at 31 December 2015 HWog-TETA=t-A2EH 983 401290°  305* 38T 639°  3015° 1451736 - SOTI5T 114246 6085403
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEREROBEEEHBERERAZFEE FER

approximately HK$5,871,322,000 in the consolidated statement of 5,871,322,000; 7t °
financial position.
The notes on pages 64 to 191 are an integral part of these FOARNNBZMABARGEMBREK D

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEBEERER

HE_Z—RAF+-A=+—HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2015

2015 2014
—E—FF —Z—F
Notes HK$000 HK$ 000
k=3 FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES & SE B
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHA(EE) 164,234 (172,100)
Adjustments for: FHEIFE :
Taxation 18 12 41,124 30,559
Interest income FEMA 5 (2,923) (1,480)
Interest expense FERZ 8 387,721 173,474
Share of profits of DihE & FE R T
joint ventures 20 (558) (12,518)
Share option benefits i Az i 4R A 37 - 13,708
Impairment loss on goodwill 2R A B 1B 18 99,321 748,530
Impairment losses on mEEEREREE
intangible assets 19 - 121,885
Allowance for impairment of R RO E BB
bad and doubtful debts 9 57 -
Write-down of inventories 17 & #MUR 9 1,529 4,775
Depreciation and amortisation e RE 9 64,691 81,625
Gain on redemption of PR TR ES 2 W
convertible bonds 5 (1,013) -
Loss on disposal of property, LEME BERKEZER
plant and equipment 9 128 109
Loss on deconsolidation of a RILERAANE—HNB AR ZER
subsidiary 47 - 9,397
Dividend income from ETHREZRERKA
listed investments 5 (61) (259)
Dividend income from FEEMREZREBA
unlisted investment 5 (78,185) -
Net gains on disposal of HERBBEREAREBENEZ
financial assets at fair value CREE W FE
through profit or loss 5 (25,780) (2,310)
Fair value gains on financial BBAEREAAEREZ
assets at fair value through TREEZ AN E WS
profit or loss 5 (7,250) (17,546)
Exchange differences e N =5 4,451 -
Operating cash flows before AEAEEESE A2
changes in working capital REBESHRE 647,486 977,849
Changes in working capital EEESEE
Decrease/(increase) in financial BBABREARBENEZ
assets at fair value through SREERD (Em)
profit or loss 22,197 (14,396)
Decrease in bank balance — RITAE R D
segregated accounts —BIKRP 2 4
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & (1) & (5,702) 2,277
Decrease in trade receivables FEWE 5 R FOR 52,085 173,045
Decrease/(increase) in utility and ANAEEREMIRES D, (i)
other deposits 37,476 (688,965)
Increase in prepayments and T8 B3R I8 K A fth FE U I8 38 AN
other receivables (470,491) (1,226,616)
Increase in trade payables FETE 5 R FKIE N 14,177 3,660
Decrease in other payables and E b & 1 5RIE & FE 5T IR R A
accruals (57,682) (15,667)
Net cash generated from/ REXBMB,/ (FMRA)RELFHE
(used in) operations 239,548 (788,809)
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Conso|io|ofed Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HEBRERER (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HF+-_A=+—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-IfF —E-—mE
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
k=3 FET FET
Interest received B U F B 2,923 1,480
Interest paid EXREAIES! (113,864) (81,891)
Taxation paid B IE (29,669) (29,167)
Net cash generated from/ BRETBME/ (A RELFE
(used in) operating activities 98,938 (898,387)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWME - WER&E
equipment 16 (59,294) (65,542)
Addition of prepaid lease N = Hh 55 PR #E 2 FE A AE A9 19 K
payments on land use rights 17 - (11,618)
Deposit paid for acquisition of RBEREEF I N 2Ee
leasehold building (452) -
Increase in fixed bank deposits TE BRER 1T 17 Z 38 0 28 (491,429) =
Proceeds on disposal of property, &Y ME &&E S HIE
plant and equipment 34 2,643
Proceeds on disposal of HEEFEEMGNRIEA
intangible assets - 30,662
Net cash outflow on BIEREAR—HNBRABIEEAZ
deconsolidation of a subsidiary W& FRE 47 - (35,933)
Payment for acquisition of M E R EE RN RIE
intangible assets 19 - (3,246)
Dividend received from BlEERERE
joint venture 20 - 12,394
Dividend received from B EmKRERE
listed investments 5 61 259
Dividend received from BUHIE LK E RS
unlisted investment 5 78,185 -
Purchase of additional interest in B E —HEA Ll ECHEE L
an available-for-sale B OME =
financial asset 21 - (5,682)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, Wi — R MY B A A
net of cash acquired (MR EE) 45 - (6,952)
Acquisition of additional interests RIME AT IEERERIFTE A
from non-controlling equity W B BB M 25
holders of subsidiaries 46 - (481,100)
Net cash used in investing REZBMARSFE
activities (472,895) (564,115)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZZ

mE R &)

B R (&)

—hAF+t_H=t—BLFE

2015 2014
—E-—AF — &
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
k=3 FET FET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES & SE B
Issue of shares, BATIRD (FOBRBEATRCA)
net of issuing costs - 113,080
Capital contributed by FEIERR R A
non-controlling interests - 3,750
Payment for repurchase of shares &t 88 B f% {5 & 14 71 30(a) = (54,037)
Payments for redemption of L& @T?ﬁ‘ﬂxﬁﬁﬁﬁm
convertible bonds 36 (112,385) -
Net proceeds from issue of BT RRESF TS RIEFE
convertible bonds - 1,859,266
Proceeds from borrowings BB RS RIE 71,429 87,500
Advance from a shareholder H— B RE R 118,000 -
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (87,500) (70,656)
Repayment of obligations under BEMEHESH
finance leases (16,541) (15,509)
Dividend paid to BN ¢ E
non-controlling interests (26,114) -
Dividend paid BRRE 13 (68,888) (291,018)
Net cash (used in)/generated BMEZE (FTA) FEESTFHE
from financing activities (121,999) 1,632,376
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE ReRBESEEY (BD)
IN CASH AND CASH N E A
EQUIVALENTS (495,956) 169,874
Exchange loss on cash and RekBeEBYCENEE
cash equivalents (45,712) (23,104)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RHR—A—HZRE&R
AT 1 JANUARY BEZEEY 1,292,700 1,145,930
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+ ZH=+—-HZzERERK
AT 31 DECEMBER RESEY 28 751,032 1,292,700
The notes on pages 64 to 191 are an integral part of these FOAR19NBZMABARGE M BRE —ZH -
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 3% ¥R oR M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

64

GENERAL INFORMATION

REXLot Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Suite
2601, 26/F., Sino Plaza, 255-257 Gloucester Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation scheme to rationalise the
structure of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) in preparing for the listing of the Company’s shares on
the Stock Exchange, the Company became the holding company
of the Group in Hong Kong on 15 August 2000 and its shares
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange with effect
from 28 September 2000.

The Group is principally engaged in lottery business comprising
development and production of lottery machines, related
operating software system and networks for lottery industry, the
distribution and marketing of lottery products and development
of paperless electronic lottery platform for lottery business in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Deconsolidation of a subsidiary
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Directors
resolved that the Group did not have control or significant
influence over an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary
(the “PRC Company”). Accordingly, the PRC Company had
been deconsolidated and reclassified as an available-for-
sale financial asset in the Group's consolidated financial
statements with effect from 1 January 2014.

Critical judgements that the Directors have made in
the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and the details of loss on deconsolidation of the PRC
Company are set out in Notes 4B(b) and 47 to the financial
statements respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS") and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
“Listing Rules”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

the Group is set out below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
applicable of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and futures periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %% R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZZF

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(o)

Statement of compliance (continued)

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRS that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in Note 4.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRS and
amendments to HKFRS that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 3 provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2015 comprise the Company, its subsidiaries
and the Group's interests in joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note
2(f)(i)) are stated at their fair values.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") while the functional currency
of the Company is Hong Kong dollars and the functional
currency of the Company's principal subsidiaries are
Renminbi (“RMB"). The directors of the Company consider
the presentation currency in HK$ is more useful for its
current and potential investors. All values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except where otherwise indicated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Basis of consolidation

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional terms with the holders of
those interests which would result in the Group as
a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

()

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with Notes 2(o), 2(p) or 2(g) depending
on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are
made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see Note 2(f)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in a
joint venture (see Note 2(d)(ii)).

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment losses, unless the investments are
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale). The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZT—RF+-_A=+—HILFE

FTESHBR(E)
REAREE (&)

(ii) AMft‘%%

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2.
(d) Basis of consolidation (continued) (d)
(ii) Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the
equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for
any excess of the Group’s share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee's identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post acquisition change in the Group’s share of
the investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see Notes 2(e) and 2(j)).
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's
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investees and any impairment losses for the year are REBRERR 2 WBEERTEEAMDE
recognised in the consolidated income statement, Wz B ARG E 2 KRR ER -

whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over AEBMTHESS L EZ LRAIEH
a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of R -2z AR AHERERER

the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the date
when joint control is lost is recognised at fair value
and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see Note 2(f)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i)  the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the

acquiree; over

(i) the Group's interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities measured
as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-
generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested annually for
impairment (Note 2(j)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of the purchased goodwill is included
in the calculation of profit or loss on disposal.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Financial assets (continued)

()

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading and are stated
in the statement of financial position at fair value. A
financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short-
term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets. Any
attributable transaction cost and gain or loss on the
fair value changes of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in
current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the reporting date which are classified
as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The Group’s loans and
receivables comprise ‘trade receivables, deposits
and other receivables’ and ‘cash and bank balances’
in the consolidated statement of financial position
(Notes 2(1) and 2(m)).

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets

Investments other than those held for trading and
held to maturity are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and are stated in the statement
of financial position at fair value, which is their
transaction price including attributable transaction
costs. Gain or loss on fair value changes of available-
for-sale financial assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in equity in the fair value reserve, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of monetary items such as debt securities which are
recognised directly in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R M RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZZF

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Financial assets (continued)
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

When the available-for-sale financial assets are
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Where the
available-for-sale financial assets are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method

is recognised in profit or loss.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-
sale financial asset has been recognised in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired
(see Note 2(j)), the cumulative loss is recognised from
equity to profit or loss even though the financial
assets have not been derecognised.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments
or they expire.

The amount of the cumulative loss that is removed
from equity and reclassified to profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on those financial

assets previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for
an investment in an equity instrument classified as
available-for-sale are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such investment is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
fair value reserve. If, in a subsequent period, the fair
value of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment
loss is reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses are
written off against the corresponding investments
directly.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZT—RF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. EEBHBER(8)
(f)  Financial assets (continued) () &WMEE (&)
(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (continued) (iii) TEHAELHBEE (&)

Investments in unquoted equity instruments whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such unquoted equity instruments, are measured at
cost less any impairment losses. If there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred
on such instrument, the amount of impairment loss
is measured as the difference between its carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar instrument. Such impairment

losses are not reversed.

Fair value of an instrument on initial recognition is
normally the transaction price, unless it is estimated
by using a valuation technique when part of the
consideration given or received is for something other
than the investment.

After initial recognition, the fair value of an
investment quoted in an active market is based
on the current bid price and, for investments not
quoted in an active market, the Group establishes
the fair value of such investment by using a valuation
technique.

Valuation techniques include using recent arm's
length market transactions between knowledgeable
willing parties, if available, by reference to the current
fair value of another instrument that is substantially
the same, discounted cash flows analysis and option
pricing models.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZF

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the statement
of financial position at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses (Note
2(j)). Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases
of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated sufficient to
write off their costs, less accumulated impairment losses
and residual values, if any, using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

— Leasehold buildings 30 - 50 years
— Leasehold improvements 20%
— Lottery machines 4 — 12 years
— Furniture, fixtures and equipment 6 -33%
— Plant and machinery 10 - 25%
— Motor vehicles 10 - 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

0}

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values, if any and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date. An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of
the asset. The gain or loss on derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment, calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item, is included in profit or loss in the

period the item is derecognised.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights are lump sum
upfront payments to acquire long-term interest in lessee-
occupied properties.

Prepaid lease payments on land use rights relating to
buildings of the Group are stated at cost and are amortised
over the period of the lease on the straight-line basis which
is charged to profit or loss.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at costs
less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (Note 2(j)). Amortisation of intangible
assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at

cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually by comparing their carrying amounts
with their recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether
there is any indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired.

(i) Computer software
Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use the specific software. These costs are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 2 to 10
years.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as

expenses as incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Deferred development cost

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop computer
software is capitalised and deferred only when
the projects are clearly defined; the expenditure is
separately identifiable and can be measured reliably;
there is reasonable certainty that the projects
are technically feasible, and the products have
commercial value. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses (Note 2(j)). Amortisation is
provided on the straight-line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying production,
subject to a maximum of 20 years commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Operating right

Operating right represents expenditure incurred on
obtaining an operating right in a lottery centre. The
operating right is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and amortised over its estimated

useful life of 6 years.

Long term contracts

Long term contracts represent operating right
contracts with lottery centres acquired in business
combinations. These contracts have definite useful
lives and are measured initially at their fair values on
the acquisition date. After initial recognition, they are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 10
years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Impairment of assets

()

Impairment of investments in equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated at cost
or amortised cost or classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date
to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the attention
of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becomes probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

- For investments in joint ventures accounted for
under the equity method in the consolidated
financial statements (see Note 2(d)(ii)), the
impairment loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment as a
whole with its carrying amount in accordance
with Note 2(j)(ii) below. The impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount in accordance with Note
2(j)(ii) below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ=Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j)) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are

not reversed.

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively
are based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not
result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZF

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j)) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity securities

and other receivables (continued)

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair value
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value of such
assets is recognised in other comprehensive

income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-
sale debt securities are reversed if the increase
in fair value can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversals of impairment losses in
such circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade and other receivables, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ=Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(j)) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each reporting date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

- prepaid lease payments on land use rights
classified as being held under an operating
lease;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill,
intangible assets that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or

not there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-

generating unit).

—hAF+t_H=1t—BLFE

2. FEEFBER(E)
() BEERME(E

(ii)

R & E 2 HE
AEESESREBEHAZKINE
BH UBEREAENRBER NIE
AL ERRE S (BAEEME) 2
ﬁﬁ% BEBRES NBFEXA
B

- WX BEIERE(RERGET

BRZMERRIN)

— DERREBEEMEREZLH
Rz BN EAMNR:

- EBREE:

- BE R

—  ARABHFBRREARKE AR
ZHE o

MEEETANAEYSR  BSRHtEE

Z A B S - Lhsh  BLEE WK E]
HERZETLEEREE NHEER A
¢ﬁzﬂ%ﬁéﬁu EREDFE
ERRETR FEMHATRD
B

—  FEAKEEEE

B 2 AT Bl & B A2 7 B R
ERARERBEEME R 2R
BEREFERHEEREER
2 150 FA B 5 A A 2R 3R ik 5t R 2R
RenslRERE ZHHEX
[ R T35 8 B S R S (B (E &
ZEEZEBRBRR - E
EMEEZHRESRATEAE
BYNEMEEMELEZRE
mMA BB BIELERMA
ZHENEEAR (BREELE
i) EEFE AT M [ & %R o

Annual Report 2015 =—Z—H4F4Fif

81



82

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

G

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ir)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
units (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), or value in use (if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset’'s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

G

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the
financial year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the
end of the financial year (Notes 2(j)(i) and 2(j)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the
case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates. Consequently, if the fair value
of an available-for-sale equity security increases in
the remainder of the annual period, or in any other
period subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work-
in-progress comprises design costs, raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less

applicable variable selling expenses.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(I) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value, and after initial recognition, at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any allowance for

impairment of doubtful debts (Note 2())).

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at

acquisition.

(n) Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
the tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any

adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B mERWE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each reporting date and is reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with Note 2(s), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred. Transactions costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial
liability, including fees and commissions paid to agents,
advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies
and securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %% R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BEZ=ZT—

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Convertible bonds
Convertible bonds which contain an equity component are
accounted for as follows:

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of
shares that would be issued on conversion and the value
of the consideration that would be received at that time
do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability component and
an equity component. The values of non-equity derivative
component which are considered as closely related to the
host contract are included in the liability component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the
convertible bonds, including the non-equity derivative
component, is measured at fair value which is determined
by reference to the fair value of a similar stand-alone
debt instrument that includes the non-equity derivative
feature but does not have an associated equity conversion
option. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the liability component (including the non-
equity derivative component) is recognised as the equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the allocation of
the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are recognised directly in equity. Transaction
costs relating to the liability component are included in
the carrying amount of the liability component and are
amortised over the periods of the convertible bonds using
the effective interest method.

The liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost. The interest expense recognised in profit
or loss on the liability component is calculated using
the effective interest method. The equity component is
recognised in the convertible bonds reserve until either the
bond is converted or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the convertible bonds reserve,
together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to
share capital and share premium as consideration for the
shares issued. If the bond is redeemed, the convertible

bonds reserve is released directly to retained profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Employee benefits

(i)

(i1)

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based
on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The subsidiaries in People's Republic of China
(the “PRC"”) do not provide a pension plan for
their employees. The subsidiaries in the PRC made
contributions to the defined contribution retirement
plans in the PRC which are recognised as expenses
in profit or loss as incurred. The subsidiaries have no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its
employees under their employment contracts on a
calendar year basis. Under certain circumstances,
such leave which remains untaken as at the end
of the reporting period is permitted to be carried
forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the end
of the reporting period for the expected future cost
of such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(r) Employee benefits (continued)

(iii) Share-based compensation

(iv)

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for
example, profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to
become exercisable. At each reporting date, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, and a corresponding adjustment
to share-based payment reserve over the remaining
vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ=Z

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

()

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payment
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable, or
is otherwise estimated by reference to interest rate
differentials, by comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not been available,
where reliable estimates of such information can be
made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with Note 2(s)(iii) below
if and when (i) it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and (ii) the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised, less

accumulated amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %% R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZZF

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at date
of acquisition are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value, such
contingent liabilities are recognised at the higher of
the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation where appropriate, and the amount
that would be determined in accordance with Note
2(s)(iii) below. Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination that cannot be reliably fair
valued or were not present obligations at the date of
acquisition are disclosed in accordance with Note 2(s)
(iii) below.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or
the Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event; it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue

and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue

is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Gain or loss on investments held for trading
Realised gain or loss on investments held for trading
is recognised on a trade date basis whilst unrealised
gain or loss on investments held for trading is
recognised to restate to their fair value on the
reporting date.

Income from provision of lottery machines and
related services, comprising:

Sales of goods

Sales of goods including lottery machines and related
software systems are recognised when the goods
are delivered at the customers’ premises which is
taken to be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods; the related risks and rewards of
ownership and collectability of the related receivables
are reasonably assured. Revenue excludes value
added tax.

Income from lottery business

Income from lottery business including lottery
ticketing service, consultancy service, maintenance
service and other related services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the service is rendered.
Revenue excludes sales tax or value added tax.

Income from sharing of lottery sales

Income from sharing of lottery sales is recognised on
an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of
the relevant agreements. Revenue excludes sales tax
or value added tax.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

(iv) Dividend income
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-
dividend.

(v) Subletting income
Subleting income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the sub-lease.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for
a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement
takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases of assets are classified as finance leases when the
leases transfer substantially all risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of assets to the Company. All other assets are
classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(u) Leases (continued)

()

(ii)

Finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are recognised in
the statement of financial position at amounts equal
to the fair value of the leased assets, or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments,
each determined at the inception of the lease. The
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, on
the finance leases are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. All assets held under finance leases
are classified as property, plant and equipment,
except for those properties held to earn rental income
which are classified as investment properties, in the
statement of financial position.

Depreciation and impairment losses are calculated
and recognised in the same manner as the
depreciation and impairment losses on property, plant
and equipment as set out in Note 2(g), except for
the estimated useful lives cannot exceed the relevant
lease terms, if shorter.

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liabilities. The finance charge is recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the lease term so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Leases of land and buildings

Whenever necessary in order to classify and account
for a lease of land and buildings, the minimum lease
payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the
lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Leases (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Leases of land and buildings (continued)

The land element is classified as an operating lease
unless title is expected to pass to the lessee by
the end of the lease term. The building element is
classified as a finance or operating lease in the same
way as leases of other assets. The payments made
on acquiring land held under an operating lease are
recognised in the statement of financial position as
prepaid lease payments on land use rights which are
stated at cost and are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term.

If the prepaid lease payments on a lease of land and
buildings cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements at the inception of the
lease, the entire lease is classified as a finance lease,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as
an operating lease.

Operating leases

Where the Group is the lessee, payments made under
operating leases, net of any incentives received from
the lessor, are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease. Where the
Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets
and rentals receivable under the operating leases
are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease period. Contingent rentals (if any) are
charged or credited to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

(iv) Sale and leaseback resulting in a finance lease

If a sale and leaseback transaction that results in a
finance lease, any excess of sales proceeds over the
carrying amount is deferred and amortised over the
lease term. If the fair value at the time of a sale and
leaseback transaction is less than the carrying amount
of the asset, no adjustment is necessary unless there
has been an impairment in value, in which case the

carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Foreign currency translation

These financial statements are presented in HK$, which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded
in the functional currency rates ruling at the date of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and joint ventures are currencies other than HK$. At end
of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into HK$ at the rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period and their profit or
loss items are translated into HK$ at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The exchange differences
arising from the translation are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange translation reserve. On disposal of a
foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised
in equity relating to that particular foreign entity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or
loss on disposal is recognised.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into HK$ at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into HK$ at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Borrowing costs

(x)

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
Directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(y)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount
will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use and the asset (or disposal group)
is available for sale in its present condition. A disposal
group is a group of assets to be disposed of together
as a group in a single transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will be transferred in the
transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale when
the above criteria for classification as held for sale are
met, regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-
controlling interest in the subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-
to-date in accordance with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial classification as held for
sale and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements of
the Group are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures)
and investment properties. These assets, even if held for
sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with
the policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset
is classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale, the non-current
asset is not depreciated or amortised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %% R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—HF+-_A=+—HILFE

2.

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(z) Related parties
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZT—RF+-_A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(z) Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(aa) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of the products and
services, the nature of the production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following amendments to HKFRS (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “new and revised HKFRS") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee benefits — Defined
benefit plans: Employee
contributions

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period. The
application of the above new and revised HKFRS in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and position for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %% R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZZF

102

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRS

are summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits —
Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions

The amendments introduce a relief to reduce the
complexity of accounting for certain contributions from
employees or third parties under defined benefit plans.
When the contributions are eligible for the practical
expedient provided by the amendments, a company is
allowed to recognise the contributions as a reduction of
the service cost in the period in which the related service
is rendered, instead of including them in calculating the
defined benefit obligation. The amendments do not have
an impact on these consolidated financial statements as
the Group does not have defined benefit plans.

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and
2011-2013 Cycle

These two cycles of annual improvements contain
amendments to nine standards with consequential
amendments to other standards. Among them, HKAS 24,
Related party disclosures has been amended to expand the
definition of a “related party” to include a management
entity that provides key management personnel services
to the reporting entity, and to require the disclosure of
the amounts incurred for obtaining the key management
personnel services provided by the management entity.
These amendments do not have an impact on the Group's
related party disclosures as the Group does not obtain
key management personnel services from management
entities.

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR

—AFt+t-A=t—HLFE

SRTERE (8)
R EHT REETREMBRELEL 2
EXE/AMT

(a)

(b)

BREHEAE IR 2B [EERA-R
EREATE B4
ZEERISIAT —HH R §EEBILEE
BRF=TBAERNGFEGN2ETH
mZA?FE°D1ﬁﬁé§T;ﬁww
& T P e B 2 B I 48 56 B - 2 B A A8 4K
%mﬁ%ktﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁZ%ﬁﬁ$ﬁ
D MTBEEENRERNAEZFTES -
HAAREEY ERERNE WK EFE
AL EREMBRRLEZE

ERMBREEN 2FEIE (=2 —FF
E-2-—HBRR-E——FE-2—=
FEY)
ZMEBRHzFERERANAEL ZE
710 DA B b S E A E RVE R Z BT o B
BB e R F 245K T IREEE
R AR (BB 2 EBZBAEREN
BEEREHRIZEEAERB2ERER
W ERKFBERRGHEEERMAREHR
ZEREBAEBRBMELEZERE -ZF
EAIHASBE AT RBELTELE R
ARASEEITEANEEERNSIEER
A B IR -

m

e



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZT—RF+-_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the

Group and are based on historical experience and other factors,

including expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group’s management makes estimates and assumptions

concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,

by definition, seldom equal to the related actual results. The

estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

A. Key assumption and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty

(a)

(b)

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 2(j). The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been
determined based on value in use calculations or
their fair value less costs of disposal, whichever is
appropriate, and both bases require the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units and discount rates
for present value measurement. These calculations
require the use of estimates and assumptions (Note
18). Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of goodwill and the impairment (if
any) in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts

The Group makes allowance for impairment of bad
and doubtful debts based on an assessment of
the recoverability of trade and other receivables.
Allowances are applied to trade and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. The
identification of allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact
carrying value of receivables and allowance for
impairment in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

4.

104

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
A. Key assumption and other key sources of estimation

uncertainty (continued)

(c)

(d)

Write-down of obsolete and slow-moving
inventories

The Group writes down obsolete and slow-moving
inventories to net realisable value based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectation
of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances. Write-downs are applied to
inventories where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the inventories may be obsolete or
slow-moving. The identification of obsolete or slow-
moving inventories requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the inventories and charges in the
year in which such estimate has been changed.

Income taxes

Deferred tax asset in relation to the unused tax
losses of approximately HK$52,046,000 (2014:
HK$98,878,000) was not recognised in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position.
The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in
the future. When the expectation of future profit is
different from the original estimate, such differences
will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets
and taxation charges in the period in which such
estimates is changed.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax expenses in the year in which such
determination is made.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
B. Critical judgements in applying the Company’s

accounting policies

(a)

Going concern basis

The Company’s management has considered the
adequacy of the disclosures made in the consolidated
financial statements concerning the possible outcome
of non-adjusting events after the end of the reporting
period as detailed in Note 52. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis, the validity of which depends upon the
successful completion of the Disposal.

The consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments that would result from these
material uncertainties. The Directors of the Company
consider that upon the completion of the Disposal
on or before 29 April 2016, the Company will have
sufficient cash resources to satisfy its redemption
obligations in relation to the Bonds. Based on the
facts and circumstances as made available thereto,
the Directors of the Company are of the opinion
that both the Disposal and the redemption of the
Bonds will be completed on or before 29 April 2016.
Accordingly, the Directors of the Company consider
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
However, should neither the Disposal nor the
redemption of the Bonds be completed, and the
Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments might have to be made to the carrying
values of the Group’s assets to state them at their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise and to reclassify its non-
current assets and non-current liabilities to current
assets and current liabilities, respectively.
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B. ERAXTEFHHREMRMELZEKXHE

(a)

HEEERE
ARBIZEREEZBENESPHR
RA - BT RES2AT A 2 M R IE
JEFEE IR 2 Al AL AE RATE I 2 R BR
RERH -FAVBHRRDEFERL
ERERE HAREBRREES
BB R IERTERK ©

FEMBRRLBEREEZFERD
BB R =M E & 2 (E R FHE - AR A
EERAF_T-RFEA=-TNA
ok Z Bl SE Ak H & F IR K - AR E
ERARCERANETERREZEE
HZBEEEE- ENB AR ERZ
ZEERBER ARAEZTARBERN
TE-RFOAZTABRZATTEK
HEFBERBOZZES BEIt &
AAEERRRFBRLEREERES
EMBRERBAEZE A - &
ATEREEFEIBERZEES A
HMASEEBERFERLE Rl seas
AEBEBEEZREEELHE &
WESEBEBEESR RATEE
EZERRREEFRBEEAREE
FERBBEENIERBEED B EH
DERRBEERRBDAGE-

Annual Report 2015 —Z—RFFHR

105



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %% R R MY RE ()
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4.

106

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

B.

Critical judgements in applying the Company’s
accounting policies (continued)
(b) Deconsolidation of a subsidiary in 2014

—AFt+t-A=t—HLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
reassessed whether it continued to have, or had
lost, control over the PRC Company. In determining
whether the Group continued to have controls
over the PRC Company as at 31 December 2014,
the management had exercised their judgement in
considering the relevant facts and circumstances.
The management was of the view that the Group
did not have the practical ability to unilaterally direct
the relevant activities of the PRC Company nor
have significant influence over the PRC Company.
Therefore, for the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Directors resolved that the Group did not
have control or significant influence over the PRC
Company. The Directors resolved to deconsolidate the
PRC Company and to recognise it as an available-for-
sale financial asset from 1 January 2014 onwards.

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS, NET
Revenue represents the aggregate of income from provision of

lottery machines and related services and commission income.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and other
gains, net for the year is as follows:

5.

WA - U A R H A U 35 F 5
U A IR % = i & MR A AR 75 IR A R 1A & U A
2 .

REBRARFERE Z WA - E AR H U 2%
BoMMT

2015 2014
—E—I1F —E-EF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Revenue 'ON
Income from provision of lottery machines — IR ¥ Z# & AR KA
and related services 1,554,394 1,687,953
Other income H g A
Interest income on bank deposits H|ITFZF E WA 2,520 1,480
Other interest income H A F B4 A 403 -
Sundry income MEIBILA 8,740 4,463
Rental income from sub-letting of HAMES>BZ2HBES KA
rented premises 3,811 3,283
Dividend income from listed investments kA ZKREHA 61 259
Dividend income from unlisted investment  JEEM&RE 2 BB WA 78,185 -
93,720 9,485
Other gains, net H fth g 25 F 88
Net gains on disposal of financial assets HERBBEERARNEFEZ
at fair value through profit or loss SREE W FE 25,780 2,310
Fair value gains on financial assets BABREARENEZ
at fair value through profit or loss EMEEZ AR B RE 7,250 17,546
Gain on redemption of convertible bonds FEE Al R EH 2 Wa (H7736)
(Note 36) 1,013 -
Exchange gains PE 5 U 2 - 11
34,043 19,867
1,682,157 1,717,305
Total interest income on financial assets not W 3FMBIBERIE A LB EZ
at fair value through profit or loss ERMEE BN S BA 2,923 1,480
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108

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its business by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products and
services) and geography.

In a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management, i.e. the Group’s Executive Directors, for the
purposes of allocating resources to segments and assessing their
performance, the Group has presented lottery business as the
reportable segment.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transactions are conducted in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed between the parties.

The Board assesses the performance of the business segments
based on profit/(loss) before taxation without allocation of
finance income/(costs), which is consistent with those in the
consolidated financial statements.

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided to the Board for the purposes of resources allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 is set out below.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZ=-R #4ZR B R AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(F)
Business Segment E Sl
(a) The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2015 (a) BE-_Z—hF+-_RA=T—RHILFEZ
and segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2015 are PWEBEERN=_ZT—RAF+=A=+—AH
as follows: ZOEMEERBENT
As at and for the
year ended
31 December 2015
R=-T—HF
+=ZA=+—HERk
BEZALEE
Lottery business
HK$'000
FET
Revenue A 1,554,394
Segment results PR 718,622
Net unallocated expenses ROEFAZFE (513,264)
Profit before taxation B B4 Al A 205,358
Taxation A (41,124)
Profit for the year FE i A 164,234
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 6,367,252
Assets of the disposal group classified DEAFIEHEZHEMRRCEE
as held for sale (Note 75) (HtiE15) 2,236,663
Unallocated assets ROBEE 126,553
Total assets EEMBE 8,730,468
Liabilities =N
Segment liabilities HEEE 282,744
Liabilities directly associated with BEAEARELNEZHEARZ
the assets of the disposal group classified BEEEEBZEE (KiF15)
as held for sale (Note 15) 153,616
Unallocated liabilities KofamE 2,208,705
Total liabilities BfEH

AH 2,645,065
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(F)
Business Segment (continued) (%55 (8)
(a) (continued) (a) (&)
The segment results for the year ended 31 December 2014 HE_ZT-—NF+-_A=+—BIEFEZ
and segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2014 are PBEBRN T -—NFE+=_A=+—H
as follows: ZOHBEERBEROT:
As at and for the
year ended
31 December 2014
RZZE—N4F
TZA=+—HK
HEZBLEE
Lottery business
HK$000
TFET
Revenue A 1,687,953
Segment results D EBELE 83,966
Net unallocated expenses ROEFAZFE (225,507)
Loss before taxation bR BRI E 18 (141,541)
Taxation T IE (30,559)
Loss for the year FEEE (172,100)
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 8,293,556
Unallocated assets ROBEEE 272,965
Total assets BEREAE 8,566,521
Liabilities =4
Segment liabilities HEEE 489,889
Unallocated liabilities APEEE 1,936,526
Total liabilities BEBE 2,426,415
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Business Segment (continued)
(b) Other segment information

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHILFE

6. IWER(E)
EBDE (H)
(b) RfttnEFEH

For the year ended
31 December 2015

BZE-—ZT—-AF
+=—A=+—H
LHEE
Lottery business
FEER
HK$000
FET

Other information H & #
Depreciation and amortisation e REE 64,691
Impairment loss on goodwill 7B R EE1E 99,321
Capital expenditure NGRS 59,294
For the year ended
31 December 2014
BHE—T-F
+=—A=+—8
IEFE
Lottery business
HK$'000
FET

Other information H & #
Depreciation and amortisation e R#EE 81,625
Impairment losses on goodwill 7B R EEE 748,530
Impairment losses on intangible assets EREERBEEIS 121,885
Capital expenditure &N 80,406
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(F)
Geographical Segments i & 5 &P
In terms of geographical location, nearly 100% of the Group's MWEMmMS  AEBET100% K ARRH Hm
revenue is attributable to the market in the PRC. 35 o
Total non-current assets by location are as follows: RiwEE D ZIERDEELBENT
2015 2014
—E—I1F —T-NF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
PRC 22l 1,117,033 2,257,296
Hong Kong BB 35,523 36,139
Total non-current assets per consolidated FREMBRARMSIERE & ERE
statement of financial position 1,152,556 2,293,435
Information About Major Customers FBRETEEFZEH
None of the customers contributed over 10% of the total ZMFRNLEFRELEREE LK A10% A
revenue of the Group during both years. e
7. STAFF COSTS 7. BIRK
2015 2014
—E—-afF —ZT-EF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fre REREBENG 126,898 120,494
Bonuses TEAL 18,572 11,229
Retirement benefit scheme contributions B RAE F 58 5% 11,159 8,310
Severance payments EHE 275 -
Social security costs & R K AR 10,291 12,443
Employee share option benefits EEBERERT - 13,708
167,195 166,184
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. HMKEA
2015 2014
—E-FHEF —ZT—uF
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITER KRBT E 8,469 10,228
Interest on convertible bonds (Note 36) AR ES A S (H7236) 190,076 163,231
Acceleration of unwinding interest on AR AT $2 AR 15 25 A SB[ (A 236)
convertible bonds (Note 36) 189,168 -
Finance charges on obligations under MEHEERE M BEKE
finance leases 8 15
Total interest expense on financial liabilities Y 3F@BIEBHRIZ DA BFEZ
not at fair value through profit or loss THBEZANERAX 387,721 173,474
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRBIAIEF S (FE)
2015 2014
—E—FHF —E-F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
The Group's profit/(loss) before taxation REEBRBAER, (EHB)
is stated after charging the following: REZFIATEHERIATEIE :
Auditors’ remuneration % 2R B
— audit services — BZ R 4,149 3,254
- non-audit services —FEERRE 350 9
Allowance for impairment of bad and REZERRERE (HF26)
doubtful debts (Note 26) 57 -
Write-down of inventories 5 & #OR 1,529 4,775
Cost of inventories sold (Note 23(b)) HWEFEZKA (H7E23(b)) 433,073 393,951
Research and development costs fift 75 K B 3% B AR 2,039 2,161
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BERRKEZEE
equipment 128 109
Depreciation and amortisation on IATIER 2 & R#H
— property, plant and equipment —ME - HWERZE
— owned assets —BEEE 41,386 40,931
— leased assets —HEEE 6,635 6,700
— prepaid lease payments on — i AR 2 BN K
land use rights 971 962
— intangible assets —EREE 15,699 33,032
Operating lease rentals in respect of LTEEzZREHENRS
— office premises and warehouses —WRAEMEREE 27,930 36,599
— machinery — 125 9,259 198
Exchange losses bE 5 5518 53,947 3,019
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

10.

EESHMe

EEMEeREBEEE (R AEH) F383(1)EK
(PRI (BRRESFRAR) RO F250#KEN
T

Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme 2015
Name of Directors EEHE Fees in kind contributions Total
e EZRR RIRE R —E-FfF
wue BEEA® =T &I wnE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HITES
CHAN How Chung, Victor BREZIR - 6,305 18 6,323
BOO Chun Lon AR I% B2 200 - - 200
Independent Non-executive BIFHITES
Directors
YUEN Wai Ho Bt 5 200 - - 200
CHOW Siu Ngor /N E 200 - - 200
LEE Ka Lun FRB 200 - - 200
800
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 10. EEME (&)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and benefits scheme 2014
Name of Directors EEHF Fees in kind  contributions Total
e R RINAE I —E—F
we BE M m STEIHE R FERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Executive Directors HITES
CHAN How Chung, Victor e = 6,310 17 6,327
BOO Chun Lon AR BE 200 - - 200
Independent Non-executive BIFHITES
Directors
YUEN Wai Ho B 42 = 200 = - 200
CHOW Siu Ngor H/NE 200 - - 200
LEE Ka Lun £V 200 - - 200
800

There was no arrangement under which any Director waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration during the years. In addition,

no remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the Directors

as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office (2014: Nil).

6,310 17 7,127

RMEFE WETEAESEANEXRE
MEECAME 2 28t AEEL|AES
S ASHE a] B 2 1 2 0 R SR B S i A 1R 2 22 B
EBERAE(CE—mF: &) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 1. ABBEEHFMAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the AEBREGEaFMATzREE—R(ZZ
Group, one (2014: one) was a Director of the Company whose —mF:—Z)ARAEZT EMEEHR X
emoluments were included in the disclosures in Note 10 above. MOz HBEER - HpOZ (S —W4F : [y

The emoluments of the remaining four (2014: four) individuals BIANLTZBIEMT

were as follows:

2015 2014
—E-0fF —T-NF
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fre RUEREBENS 7,629 6,894
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRTE A ET B3R 72 67
7,701 6,961

Their remuneration was within the following bands: BEZHHEERRT :
2015 2014
—E-afF —ZT-EF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EE A" EEAH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = Z%1,000,000/ 7T = =
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 752 1,500,0007% 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7L £2,000,0007% JT 2 2
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £2,500,000/% 7T - 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7t £3,000,00075 7T 1 -
4 4

In addition to the above, six employees were granted share
options of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2014. Details of the share options scheme are set out in
Note 31.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

12. TAXATION

Hong Kong profits tax is made in the consolidated financial
statements on estimated assessable profits derived from Hong
Kong for the year at the tax rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%).

Two of the subsidiaries, Guangzhou Latech Technology Co Ltd
and Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co Ltd, of the Group's
lottery business in the PRC are entitled to a preferential income
tax rate of 15% as they are recognised as high technology
enterprises for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: 15%).

In the current year, certain subsidiaries of the Group in the
PRC are entitled to a preferential income tax rate at 10%
(2014: 10% or 20%). The applicable income tax rate for other
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC is 25% (2014: 25%).

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

12. BiE

EEMNNEBRIAEANREE S 2 ERB®
AIEFR16.5% (ZZFT—PUF:16.5% ) N4RE
M RERIEL -

ANEBFEEBE TR T EZRENBA A
BN T 845 3R B A R A & MUK I 1 B 4L SR
RMTERARIZER15% (ZZT—WF:15% )&
BAEHE REAZSARIREBE=_Z—AF
TZA=+—BLEFERREARTBMEE -

RAEE AEEETHFEMBARZEF10%
(ZZE—E:10%520% ) 2EBEEFRBREK-
ANEBHEMTBWNB AR ZBERMERERE25%
(ZE—mF:25%)

2015 2014
—E-afF —E—MmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: EHIME
Hong Kong profits tax BEMEB 1,210 155
PRC income tax B AT S A 29,300 28,840
Under-provision/(over-provision) BEFEREIR (HBEEE)
in respect of previous years 26 (2,880)
30,536 26,115
Deferred tax: IRAERIA :
Deferred taxation relating to the origination BEELERBEEREZRE 2
and reversal of temporary differences EERIE (K7aE22)
(Note 22) 10,999 4,890
Attributable to changes in tax rates M E B EIG (A it22)
(Note 22) (411) (446)
10,588 4,444
Taxation charge FRIE X H 41,124 30,559
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12. TAXATION (continued)

118

—hAFt+t-A=t—HLFE

12. B\ (8)

The taxation on the Group's profit/(loss) before taxation differs ANEBERBANER, (EBE) 2HIEERR E2
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the domestic HE(LBRREEARARHH(BE)Z
taxation rates applicable to profit/(loss) of the consolidated R RGE )Z%%ﬁﬁﬂ—l—

companies is as follows:

2015 2014
—E-afF —T—mF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AR (FE) 205,358 (141,541)
Taxation at the domestic income tax rate of &AM FTEH F16.5%
16.5% (2014:16.5%) <f§—m¢:16.5%)
srE 2 THE 33,884 (23,354)
Tax effect of income not subject to taxation HERMRBAZHBZE (3,428) (2,509)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TAHMBAE 2 HIBETE
taxation purposes 111,430 161,673
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses FABEEECHEYE (1,712) (1,910)
Tax effect of temporary differences AEREREZE 2 HEBELE
not recognised 1,319 621
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised %ﬁ?ﬁm HEBBEHEYE 2,465 1,608
Tax effect of share of profits of hEErERTHEBELE
joint ventures (92) (2,065)
Effect of tax exemptions granted to FENBAREERERE 2 ZE
the PRC subsidiaries (100,548) (98,622)
Under-provision/(over-provision) of F—FEEHRIERE
current tax in previous year TR/ (BEEE) 26 (2,880)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries HREMAAEREE ZHBRARZ
operating in other jurisdictions TR EZ 2 (1,809) (1,557)
Change in opening deferred taxation BRAREEZH5IH 2
balances resulting from changes in G )3 T T IR 4 R
applicable tax rates (411) (446)
Taxation charge HIEX W 41,124 30,559
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13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2015 2014
—B-IfF —F—mF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interim dividend declared and paid of Bk RIRA R EREGRE AR
HK$Nil (2014: 2.30 HK cents) THET(ZT—MF:2.30%1l)
per ordinary share
— Cash L - 165,369
— Scrip alternative — AR R - 61,812
- 227,181
Proposed final dividend of HK$Nil BEABREGREBRZET
(2014: 0.80 HK cent) per ordinary share (ZZ—M4F :0.8071l) - 79,680
- 306,861

For the interim dividend 2014, scrip dividend with cash
alternative was offered to shareholders. Shares issued during the
year ended 31 December 2014 on the shareholders’ election to

receive shares are set out in Note 30.

The final dividend of HK$79,680,000, which included
cash dividend of HK$68,888,000 and scrip dividend of
HK$10,792,000, for the financial year ended 31 December
2014 was approved during the year. The cash dividend and scrip
dividend were paid and allotted on 31 July 2015.

HRoT-—ERAREM S REAERIAR
HKE(HReEE) REBEE-_ZT-—OF+_H
=+ — B LEFE AR BRIR I D 2 3 W %

112 B0 & R Bt 5E30 o

FRAEMHEBEZE-_ZT—NWF+=-A=+—H
W B FE 2 RE % 879,680,000t - E &
HE&ME 568,888,000 . KEK DA A
10,792,000 L - HEMERRKERHERZZT
—hAFtEtA=1+—HEN REZ-
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZF

14. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

120

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is
based on the Group's profit/(loss) attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the year divided by the
weighted average number of shares in issue during the

—hAFt+t-A=t—HLFE

BRERN(FE)

(a)

SREARA(FHE)
FREXRRRN, (B1E) HIRA A R #EER
REGAEEFERAN, (BEIBAFA
BRI Z EFHHRH -

year.
2015 2014
—E-AfF —T—MF
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity RArE=REEREEF (EE)
shareholders of the Company (F#x)
(in thousand HK$) 150,879 (103,692)
Weighted average number of EBTEBRRZ INETHE
ordinary shares in issue (in thousand): (FM&) :
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—A—HBZBEETLARK 9,960,025 8,731,772
Effect of share options exercised and B fTFEBERKRERE ERABRES
convertible bonds converted 2B - 528,640
Effect of shares repurchased BERKRG 22 = (21,082)
Effect of allotment of scrip shares RERERND 2T E 9,903 29,531
Weighted average number of RTZA=+—RAzEdERZ
ordinary shares at 31 December IntEFEHE (FAR)
(in thousand) 9,969,928 9,268,861
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREARF(EE) 1.51 centsfl (1.12) centsfll
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share (b)y BR#BHER (FE)

The calculation of diluted earnings/(loss) per share is
based on the Group's profit/(loss) attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company and adjusted to reflect the
interest on the convertible bonds. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used
in the basic earnings/(loss) per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary

shares into ordinary shares of the Company.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 31
December 2015 and 2014 is same as the basic earnings/
(loss) per share as both the share options and the
convertible bonds outstanding during the year had an anti-

dilutive effect on the basic earnings/(loss) per share.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZ=-R #4ZR B R AR
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RzEBRmEFrABAFERNERTER
e B (B EERERRF, (BE)
RAERAR) RBERRAEEEHEER
PR AR AR M 1T 0 S B R 25 7K 1 ) 58 A B
BTz Bz T -

HREZ-ZE—hAFER-_ZT—NFE+=A
=+t BLEFEMARTEZBERER MR
By BREFHERELART, (&
BI)AEREBEYE WFRAZEREER
MABE) ESRERNAET, (EE)E
[l o



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

15. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF THE DISPOSAL GROUP

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 4 January 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (as supplemented
and amended on 23 February 2016) (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with a related party, Sunjet Investments Limited,
in which a director (also a substantial shareholder) of the
Company has beneficial interest, for the disposal of entire
interests in Multi Glory Limited (“Multi Glory”) and the loan
due from Multi Glory to the Group for a cash consideration
of HK$2,150,000,000 (the “Disposal”). Certain restructuring
(the “Restructuring”) is required to put the Disposal Group (as
defined below) in place before completion of the Disposal. It
is expected that after the Restructuring, Multi Glory would,
through certain wholly-owned subsidiaries, hold 100% interest
in B%Z 5 (FY1)BRE AT (Gang Le Trading (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd.*), which in turn would hold 100% interest in F I e 44 &
¥ RGP A A (Shenzhen Peng Le Industrial Development Co.,
Ltd.*), which in turn would hold 100% interest in & B 2 &%
F4iT A R 2 7 (Shenzhen Sinodata Technology Co., Ltd.*) which
in turn would hold 100% interest in &I T B L EIE R EREA
R A &) (Shenzhen Sinodata Equipment Services Co., Ltd.*) and
50% interest in ARYITH B EMEHXFAE AR AR (Shenzhen
Siyuan Zhuoyue Technology Development Co., Ltd.*) (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Disposal Group”). It is intended
that the net proceeds from the Disposal will firstly be applied by
the Company for the redemption of the convertible bonds which
are subject to redemption notices and in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$1,848,415,000. The principal activities of the
Disposal Group are design and provision of lottery systems
and equipment for lottery in the PRC for traditional Welfare
Computer Ticket Games operations. The management expects
the Disposal will be completed on or before 29 April 2016.
Further details are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 5 January 2016, 23 February 2016, circular dated 29
February 2016, and announcement dated 29 March 2016.

Upon completion of the Disposal, it is estimated that the
proceeds of the Disposal would exceed the carrying amount
of the net assets of the Disposal Group, and accordingly, no
impairment loss has been recognised on the assets which were
classified as assets held for sale as at the end of the reporting
period.

15.

PERBEHECHEARZEE AF

e

—E—R"FE—AWEA - A2ER—HE2EHRBA
78— & BB 5 Sunjet Investments Limited (A
ARl - REEHRIERFTREEESEm )R]
BEEHZ (R ANE_A-t+=B&#xk
t&7T) ([BEW:#]) - HEMulti Glory Limited
(IMulti Glory |) z & &3 # 5 e Multi Glory#s

KEBEZEF BHeMNEAR2,150,000,0007 T
(Td&E=EHE]) - FTEA([EA)ERNEE
EEZEKAZER AELHEEBR (EERTX)
FXI - TEHAR E 414 - Multi Glory i BB A T2
EMBRARBEBLES ORI BRAAZ
100% s BERAFARNTIBEELEEESR
PRA A2 100% 7 & 14 3 Rl R B R i B 4

BRMAR AT Z100%#E 0 %5 57
TRLERRBERE AR AT Z100% 8w &R
JmBREBREFAEAR AR Z50%#am (T
XHEBR(HEEE]) - ARAAEHELEESHE
ZHBREFEECARERBERBAMSAS
#2%851,848,415,0008 L 2 Al R EH - B E
EERCZEFEXEBARTRAERELYENES
BETVERTAREYEZRRRREER T
EEBEHHESEERN - —~"FOA=1+A
Bk 2RISR - — HRFIBE R AN AR BE S Bl
AB-ET—RNEF—ARAHE -ZE—AR"F-_A=+=
Az Afm HEBAZZT—X"EF-_A=-tHhLBZz@A
KARBBRA-TE—"F=A=-_+TNLBZRM-

RHEEEREZKE Bt EEBRMEFAKE
BHESEEEFEIRESE Bt RIS
HARTERDBRAFIEHEEEZ BEEMRRBR
BEEE-
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MBHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

15. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF THE DISPOSAL GROUP 15.

122

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

The results of the Disposal Group classified as held for sale that
are included in the consolidated income statement are shown as
below:

TEARFHEZHEARN ZEE AF

(#&)

AABARERZOBARFEFLEZHESRHE

ZEBEHRMT

2015 2014
—E-afF T —mF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET

Profit for the year from Disposal Group: HE£EZFERA :
Revenue A 485,823 428,157
Cost of sales/services rendered HE R R A AR (217,879) (166,773)
Other income N 4,236 1,445
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (14,961) (18,479)
Administrative expenses THEH (115,873) (103,567)
Operating profit RERA 141,346 140,783
Finance costs B % & A (6,190) (6,339)
Profit before taxation R B A1 % F 135,156 134,444
Taxation I (21,084) (20,299)
Profit for the year F B Fl 114,072 114,145

REXLot Holdings Limited fZ=-R #4ZR B R AR




Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

15. ASSETS/LIABILITIES OF THE DISPOSAL GROUP

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the Disposal Group
classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2015 are as

follows:

15. PEARBFEHEZHEMARZEE BF

(#&)

RZZE-—RAF+_A=+—HOBARKELE
ZHEEBZEERABIZHEMNET

HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment (Note 76) Y B KRR (HTiE16) 138,690
Prepaid lease payments on land use rights (Note 77) it fE A 2 BNBLOFKE (HE17) 42,615
Goodwill (Note 18) A (fat18) 1,026,795
Intangible assets (Note 19) R EE (H1a219) 37,991
Deposit for acquisition of leasehold building WiEHEBTFES 452
Inventories & 116,397
Trade receivables FEWE 5 RR K 97,231
Utility and other deposits AAZEREMES 103,885
Prepayments and other receivables T8 43 30 T8 K E A e IGRIE 527,889
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 28) ReRReEBY (KE28) 144,718
Assets of the disposal group classified as held for sale D EAFEHEZ HEAR 2 EE 2,236,663
Trade payables BB SR (36,549)
Other payables and accruals H A & 5018 R FE 5T FRIB (31,280)
Bank borrowings RITEE (71,429)
Current tax liabilities EMHEAR (9,526)
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 22) EERIE B & (fat22) (4,832)
Liabilities directly associated with the assets of HAORARIERE 2 HEMMNZ
the disposal group classified as held for sale BEEBEEEECBE (153,616)
Net assets of the disposal group classified DEARKIEHEZHEMARNZFEE
as held for sale 2,083,047

At 31 December 2015, bank loans of approximately
HK$71,429,000 are secured on leasehold buildings and land
use rights in the PRC for the carrying values of approximately

HK$18,406,000 and HK$29,378,000 respectively.

RREEER -

RZZT—RF+-A=+—H" #71,429,000/%
TLZRITERARAED 54 518,406,000/%
7T }%29,378,0008 Tt 2 FEBEEF K L H(F
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

124

16. X -BERRE

Leasehold
buildings
in the PRC
erected on Furniture,
long term Leasehold Lottery  fixtures and Plant and Motor
lease  improvements machines  equipment machinery vehicles Total
BRRARE
RAEERZ HENE Gl %8 BER
HERF & YERE Rk - E RE &t
HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FET AT FAT FET FET FET
Cost RA
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-mE—-A—H 25,306 38,959 66,146 43,303 147,211 14,619 335,544
Exchange realignment MEFE (633) (775) (1,654) (1,030) (2,658) (336) (7,086)
Additions HE 6,667 - 46,132 9,645 2,411 687 65,542
Disposals and write off HE R = = (1,313) (4,047) (8,840) (434) (14,634)
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary R IEERAAE—-HEHE A

(Note 47) (#rit47) - - - - (887) - (887)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ-METZA=+-HER

1 January 2015 ~“5-1%-F-H 31,340 38,184 109,311 47,871 137,237 14,536 378,479
Exchange realignment NEFE (1,361) (1,521) (6,268) (2,991) (4,549) (692) (17,382)
Additions RE = 2,273 29,744 23,962 30 3,285 59,294
Disposals and write off e i - - - (741) (2,298) (959) (3,998)
Reclassified as held for sale ARARELE (Wi15)

(Note 15) (27,208) (18,734) (132,449) (47,590) (8,558) (10,382) (244,921)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-EE+=A=1-H 2,711 20,202 338 20,511 121,862 5788 171,472
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-EE—A—H 4,353 27,554 25,792 26,732 56,439 8,592 149,462
Exchange realignment MEFE (109) (581) (645) (625) (809) (199) (2,968)
Charge for the year REEH 551 4226 16,384 6,616 17,691 2,163 47,631
Disposals and write off HE R - - (1,313) (3,935) (6,216) (418) (11,882)
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary R IEEAAE—-HHEA

(Note 47) (#iit47) - - - - (23) - (23)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ-METZA=+-HEK

1 January 2015 —“5-1f-f-H 4,795 31,199 40,218 28,788 67,082 10,138 182,220
Exchange realignment MEFE (249) (1,274) (2,612) (1,437) (1.931) (470) (1.973)
Charge for the year REEXH 733 3077 19,541 5,294 17467 1,909 48,021
Disposals and write off & R - - - (706) (2,183) (947) (3,836)
Reclassified as held for sale AEARELE (Hit15)

(Note 15) (5,129) (15,703) (57,147) (15,335) (6,441) (6,476) (106,231)
At 31 December 2015 BR-E-EE+-A=1-H 150 17,299 = 16,604 73,994 4,154 112,201
Net book value BERE
At 31 December 2015 RZB-EF+ZA=1-H 2,621 2,903 338 3,907 47,868 1,634 59,271
At 31 December 2014 RZB-METZA=1-H 26,545 6,985 69,093 19,083 70,155 4,398 196,259
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
The net book value of a motor vehicle held under a finance lease
is approximately HK$Nil (2014: HK$160,000) (Note 37).

Plant and machinery with carrying value of HK$39,753,000
(2014: HK$48,281,000) are held under a sales and leaseback
agreement (Note 37).

As at 31 December 2014, the ownership certificate of
a leasehold building in the PRC with carrying value of
HK$3,897,000 had not yet been obtained.

16.

WE- -BERZRE (B)
BRERMEBEREZABEZ2EREFENATS
7T (—Z—P4 : 160,000 7T) (#1it37) -

BRME (E /39,753,000 T (=2 — W F:
48,281,000/ 7T ) Z B K # 25 1R 12 & 12 1 = 16
EEH (WiE37) -

R-ZBE—mME+-_A=+—B EKEMEA
3,897,000 2 R R ERF 2B EE HF
B o

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS ON LAND USE RIGHTS 17. tHERAEZASHISRK
2015 2014
—E—HE — TP
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Cost 24N
At beginning of the year REH] 53,123 42,475
Exchange realignment 4N HE 78 2 (2,319) (970)
Additions NE - 11,618
Reclassified as held for sale (Note 15) DEAFIELE (HiF15) (50,049) =
At end of the year NS 755 53,123
Accumulated amortisation ZEtEes
At beginning of the year R E A 6,806 5,981
Exchange realignment HNEE A (323) (137)
Amortisation for the year NF 971 962
Reclassified as held for sale (Note 15) DEERFIELE (KiF15) (7,434) =
At end of the year R F 4R 20 6,806
Net book value REFEE
At end of the year RE 735 46,317

The Group's interest in leasehold land and land use rights are
outside Hong Kong with medium term leases.

At 31 December 2014, bank loans of approximately
HK$87,500,000 were secured on leasehold buildings and land
use rights in the PRC for the carrying values of approximately
HK$19,878,000 and HK$34,699,000 respectively.

AEEREEL MR T MEREZESELNE
BLASME R - WARBERAERA

R—_ZE-—MOME+-_AF=+—H BHH
87,500,000 T 2 IRITE R AREBE S 5 4 &
19,878,000/ Jt %34,699,000/8 ;L 2 A B &
B Rt E AREEE R o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. GOODWILL 18. &
2015 2014
—E-AEF —ZF—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FET
Cost S

At 1 January n—HA—H 2,319,852 2,312,900

Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary WebE — M B R R P EE £ (M 7#45)

(Note 45) = 6,952
Reclassified as held for sale (Note 15) SRR ELE (HiE15) (1,026,795) -
At 31 December ®R+=—A=+—8 1,293,057 2,319,852
Accumulated impairment losses 2t REEBE
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 788,530 40,000
Impairment loss VERIEN SR 99,321 748,530
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 887,851 788,530
Carrying value at 31 December R+-ZA=+—HBZEHE 405,206 1,531,322
The carrying amount of goodwill represents the goodwill BEZEAEEREN Y ZEB 2 REMEL
arising from acquisition of investments in lottery business and is ZHEB FAREREBHE -HEREMBEDRT
included in the lottery business segment. The carrying amount WARSERZEREEEEMAER
of goodwill was allocated to groups of cash-generating units as
follows:

2015 2014
—E-AEF —E—F
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Sales of lottery machines and iHE X R R R

software system - 1,026,795
Multiple units without significant goodwill I # & K2 2 % {# & i1 405,206 504,527
Total BEt 405,206 1,531,322
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZZ

18. GOODWILL (continued)

In accordance with the Group’s accounting policies, the Group
has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill arising from
acquisition of investments in lottery business by reference to
the higher of cash-generating units’ value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal and determined that such goodwill has not
been impaired other than the cash-generating units mentioned
below. The calculations of value in use or fair value less costs
of disposal require the use of cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering the
operation periods of 5 years (2014: 5 years) or contractual
periods of 11 years (2014: 12 years) with pre-tax discount rates
ranging from 18.25% to 19.33% (2014: 17.28% to 21.17%)
per annum. The discount rates used reflect specific risks relating
to the businesses and the terminal value growth rate of 3%
(2014: 3%) is in line with the forecasts adopted by the lottery
industry.

In the opinion of the management, the lottery industry in
China will grow along with its economy in the coming decades
and remains as the main contribution to the good causes
which benefit the general public in China other than the cash-
generating units mentioned below, and is similar with the
lottery history of other countries of the World. As a major
participant in the lottery industry in the PRC over 5 years, the
Group possesses an in-depth knowledge of the industry. The
management believed that the projected cash flows based on
financial budgets/forecasts for periods by 5 or 11 years (2014: 5
or 12 years) are reliable.

(i) Year ended 31 December 2015
One of the Group’s cash-generating units which is
principally engaged in development of mobile value-
added services using the traditional type of mobile value-
added services was impaired. During the year, most of
the traditional type of the mobile value-added service has
been replaced by a high technology mobile value-added
service. Accordingly, further impairment loss on goodwill of

HK$99,321,000 was recognised.

18.

MEBEHRKE (&)

—hAF+t_H=1t—BLFE

BE(E)

BRASEZEFHE AKEC2RRSEE
BUZERBERAABBREERAE (UKRE
ERE)FERBBRN Y EER CREMELR
BZANEERE WEEAHELERE HET
MREELEBLRIIN-FEERBEERAAE

RMEERAR  ARREEBERHENRER
F(ZZ—MmOE ZHF)EEHL T+ —F(=F

—OF: T+ ZF)ENBUBRE WIREF
N F18.25%%E19.33% (=T —HF:17.28%
B21.17% ) ZBIATBL IR F#ETIR SR =AM -
FfrﬁﬁﬁZ%’iﬁ%&%Eﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁzfﬁilﬁﬁﬁ 1
3% —POF 3% ) ZKBEREDFER
iﬁ%ﬁﬁ}xﬁﬁZﬁ}Eﬂ"

EEERR B TIARSELEMIN PEEE
TERARB T FRHRQERPIER W HES
REIBRERHERR ERPEAR  Hitt RE

BYREEZERBU - AEEERATETEE
TE2REBNF BERETEAZ -BEEE
BE BEAFH+—FH (T -—NF:1F
S+ —FH)MBEE AR EZEIRSR
EEBEAE-

() BE-2-—AF+-A=+t—-HLHFE
AEFBHET —EReELESEM (ZT2RE
MR E LR B B AR B 3% F IR ERT)
BERE-FR KD ERRBDEERBE
WS B EOR B ILE RS EA - E it - ANEE
ERRHEZE— P MERIE9,321,000
BT
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

18. GOODWILL (continued)

128

(ii) Year ended 31 December 2014

As at 31 December 2014, the decrease in recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit engaged in provision
of paperless and electronic lottery platform was mainly
due to deconsolidation of its subsidiary together with the
uncertainty arising from the promulgation of a Notice
by the PRC regulatory authorities which had temporarily
suspended the internet lottery distribution services with
effect from 1 March 2015.

The recoverable amount of this cash-generating unit
was based on fair value less costs of disposal which was
measured using a discounted cash flow technique. The
fair value measurement of the recoverable amount was
categorised under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as
described in Note 43(b) to the consolidated financial
statements. The key assumptions for the determination
of fair value less costs of disposal are those regarding the
discount rate, growth rate and suspension period of the
internet lottery distribution services will not be more than
one year. Pre-tax discount rate of 21.17% and terminal
value growth rate of 3% had been used in the calculation
of the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of this
cash-generating unit exceeded its recoverable amount
of HK$471,250,000. Accordingly, impairment loss of
HK$726,530,000 was recognised during the year 2014.

Furthermore, as at 31 December 2014, impairment losses
of HK$10,000,000 and HK$12,000,000 were recognised
for two of the Group’s cash-generating units which are
principally engaged in provision of lottery machines and
mobile value-added services as the carrying amounts of
these two cash-generating units exceeded their recoverable
amounts of HK$353,000,000 and HK$207,125,000
respectively. Pre-tax discount rates of 17.28% and 17.49%
and terminal value growth rate of 3% had been used in
the calculation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units for provision of lottery machines and mobile value-
added services respectively.

The values assigned to the key assumptions represent
management’s assessment of future trends in the lottery
industry and are based on historical data from both external and
internal sources. As the above cash-generating units have been
reduced to their recoverable amounts, any adverse change in
the assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable amounts
would result in further impairment losses.

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR

18. W& (&)

(i)

BE-Z-NF+-A=t-HLEEE
RZZB-—MOFE+-A=+—H HERHE
BELEFRETaZRSELBL 2K
O 2R EERRK RS ARELNEB
RAUERHEEE#RERTHE - —0
FZA-—HAREFEBEAYREEARBZ
BAGERIAAREMAK -

REELAEMZAIRESEIREA R
BEREERATE AR ERLEKE
AlfEF AR S RERMtE - ATl E &
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3T AR BESRE=R -BEETAAR
BEREEXNAZEERE DS RUBEERR
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DR AE21.17%K%3% RS EE B2
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RAEBMEEERERET ZH R FH
WERBEzZREELEMZEEEBE
H& B ZA W E 4 %8353,000,000 7T &
207,125,000 7t AN & B 2 5t 7% ' (&
ReEXBLBERRMEEE10,000,000
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

19. BLEE

Deferred
Computer  development Operating Long term
software cost right contracts Total
EREM A ek REAAH L
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FAT FET FET FAT FAT
Cost BA
At 1 January 2014 RZE-NE-A—-AH 52,547 19,280 89,487 179,488 340,802
Exchange realignment EINEEE: (1,312) (482) (2,237) (4,488) (8,519)
Addition NE 3,246 = - - 3,246
Disposals and write off & RS (45,737) - - (175,000) (220,737)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015~ R=Z-W&E+-A=+—-HE
“Z-f%—-f—H 8,744 18,798 87,250 - 114,792
Exchange realignment INEHE @17) (895) (4,155) = (5,467)
Reclassified as held for sale (Vote 15) PERFELE (15 (3.214) (17,903) (83,095) - (104,212)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-RF+-A=+-H 5113 - - - 5113
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 25T 8 & B E
At 1 January 2014 R-_E-WE—-A—H 17,781 19,280 21,129 36,319 94,509
Exchange realignment INE = (445) (482) (526) (909) (2,362)
Charge for the year REEXH 788 - 14,539 17,705 33,032
Impairment losses REES - - - 121,885 121,885
Disposals and write off & R (15,075) = - (175,000) (190,075)
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 ~ RA-ZE-N&+-A=+—-HAkK
—Z-f1%—-R—H 3,049 18,798 35,142 - 56,989
Exchange realignment INEHE (192) (895) (2,187) = (3,274)
Charge for the year REEZM 1,337 - 14,362 - 15,699
Reclassified as held for sale (Vote 15) PERFELE (Hi15) (1,001) (17,903) (47,317) - (66,221)
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE-Ef+=-A=1-H 3,193 - - - 3,193
Net book value BEFE
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1F+=A=+-H 1,920 - - - 1,920
At 31 December 2014 RZE-WETZA=+—H 5,695 - 52,108 = 57,803
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19.

130

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
(@) The amortisation of operating rights is included in cost
of sales; the amortisation of computer software and long

term contracts is included in administrative expenses.

(b) Computer software of carrying value of approximately
HK$1,920,000 (2014: HK$5,695,000) is the intangible
assets acquired and possessed by the lottery business.
The intangible assets have definite useful lives and are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of 2 to 10 years.

(c) Deferred development cost represents expenditure incurred
by the Group on development of computer software and
related technology for the lottery business of the Group
in order to meet with the market development and the
specific requirements of the lottery business and its
individual customers. The intangible assets have definite
useful lives and were amortised over their estimated useful
lives of 3 years. The intangible assets were fully amortised

in prior years.

(d) Operating right of carrying value of approximately HK$Nil
(2014: HK$52,108,000) represents expenditure incurred by
the Group on obtaining an operating right for supplying
the system and equipment in a lottery centre. The
operating right contract has been renegotiated in 2011
and expiry date has been extended to 20 July 2018. The
operating right is amortised on a straight line basis over 6
years starting from the year 2012.

In the year ended 31 December 2014, in accordance with
the Group's accounting policies, the Group had assessed the
recoverable amounts of operating right and long term contracts
based on the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and
value in use calculations, which used cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by the management covering the
five years operation period of the business with pre-tax discount
rate was ranging from 17.28% to 21.17% per annum. The
discount rates used reflected specific risk relating to the business
and the terminal value growth rate of 3% was in line with the
forecasts adopted by the lottery industry.

REXLot Holdings Limited fEZe-R #4ZR B PR AR

19. BEEE (&)

(a) MRERBEZEHFT AHEKA M EH KM
REHEOZEHAFAATRER-

(b) BRME{E 491,920,000 T (=& — M4 :
5,695,000 7T ) 2 EM B AR ZEBAM
WEREBZENEE - ZEFEERRG
BEJAFR TERHEATAFR=-_E+
T

() BEFRBEBRAEAEERBIEA TS ERIN
REREBREABIBE 2BEER 5
AEBYREBHEE KA RABR R
ELZRAX ZEVEEAGEE M
FIR - Wizt I BFR=FEHE - Z BT
BEECRBEFEDHEH-

d EEEHZE T (=T — W F:
52,108,000/ 70 ) 2 A& & REFE AN E RE &
BAREERLRERFGREE 2 EEERN
EEXZAL KREBREHNER=ZT——F
EER PR EHE_ZT - N\ELA
Tt H - REERE T —FRENF
MR E AR AN -

BE_Z-—WE+-_A=+—HILFE BRAE
SEZEHEE  AEEEREBEARLERKEK
AEFEREAFEE (UABESERE)FHLE
BERMaHzZAT KOS - £ AEMEFEER
RBASRERA RELEREM AL RERF
EBEEHUBRE REFNF17.28%=
2117% 2 AR KA B - PRE R 2R KRR
MEEXBERZEERR M3% 2 KELRE
TBREXRTEMRA 2R -



20.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B %% R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZZ

200 REELEIER

—hAF+t_H=1t—BLFE

2015 2014
—E-FHEF —ZE—uF
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Share of net assets of joint ventures: AEAEEREEEFE:

Balance as at 1 January R—A—B2Z&&# 384,552 388,450
Share of profits of joint ventures ﬁfﬁé%ﬁ%mﬂ 558 12,518

Share of other comprehensive expense of NIEEECEEMEERAL
joint ventures (7,496) (4,022)
Dividend received 2R S = (12,394)
Balance as at 31 December R+=—A=+—B2&% 377,614 384,552
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRG - R A 269,077 269,077
Amount due to a joint venture FEfT— & & D ER 46,195 46,195

(a) Interests in joint ventures at 31 December 2015 include (a) MZE
goodwill of HK$122,396,000 (2014: HK$122,396,000).

—hAF+-_A=+—H RE&ED
¥ EXBIEEE122,396,0008 T (- F
—PY4E 122,396,000 7T ) ©

The amount due to a joint venture is unsecured, interest
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of
the Directors, the amount due would not likely be repaid in

the following year and is therefore shown as non-current.

BN —HEELERBREERR 28R
VHEEEERD EFRA BNHFEALK
A BER R FEE - WL HIEIER
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20.

132

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 20. REEbEZER (B)
Details of the Group's interests in joint ventures, which are REEVERREESEARZAEEAREE

accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated

financial statements, are as follows:

CRZERFBOT

Place of Principal Particulars of Effective
incorporation/ activities and issued/registered interest
Name registration place of operation and paid up capital held
3100 TEEBR BR#fT/EMK
=L 118 it B =E S ERERE EXFE HMBEERED
Happy Sun Technologies Ltd British Virgin Islands  Investment holding 4 ordinary shares of 50%
REBRAES in the PRC US$1 each
R B TR E R ARGREEIFETZ
el
Success Trader Technologies Limited Hong Kong Investment holdings Ordinary shares of 50%
BERRERRA G in the PRC HK$10,000
R BT REER 10,0007& 7T 2 & @K
HEFHBREER ORY) BR AR PRC Investment holding US$12,000,000 50%
H in the PRC 12,000,000% 7T
R B TR E R
RINEM B ERAR AR PRC Investment holding RMB54,606,000 50%
B in the PRC AR #54,606,0007T
R B TR E R
ERXEFNARRERAA PRC Provision of systems and ~ RMB89,180,000 50%
(Beijing Guard Libang Technology Co Ltd*) equipment in the lottery AR #89,180,0007T

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR
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20.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)
The Group’s share of the results of its joint ventures (in
aggregate for all individually insignificant joint ventures), its

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

aggregated assets and liabilities, are as follows:

20. A&

hxzERE (8)
AEBENEHAERE (MBERNTBERZE
SORAF) ZEE BEERABNOT:

2015 2014
—E-4fF —E—MF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Group's effective interest AEB 2 ERER 50% 50%
Revenue WA 142,037 152,798
Profit from continuing operations BB FE 2 A 1,115 25,036
Other comprehensive expense Hth2MEFAX (14,990) (8,045)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income 2mE(AX) W=eE (13,875) 16,991
Group's share of total comprehensive AAmopmEE (AX) WaiesE
(expense)/income (6,938) 8,496
Dividend received from a joint venture El—HeErERE - 12,394
Non-current assets ERBEE 322,457 359,374
Current assets mENE B 204,090 199,477
Current liabilities mBAaE 16,111 34,540
Equity 1 510,436 524,311
Group's share of joint ventures’ equity AEBSMEELERER 255,218 262,156
Goodwill G5k 122,396 122,396
Carrying amount in the consolidated iR & MBS mEk < REE
financial statements 377,614 384,552

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest
in the joint ventures, and no contingent liabilities of the joint

ventures themselves.

VTEFRASENSECER RS ZHAREE
RELCEARGTEXABE-
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20.

21.

134

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 200 REEECER (B)

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s share of joint ventures’

future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

R-ZE-—RAF+-A=+—H AKEEIHEE
CERBIAURHELEMEERNMN 2 KRR KER

cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: AN HRBFERAT
2015 2014
—E-afF —ET—MF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Land and buildings & i R AEF
Within one year —F A 482 547
In the second to fifth year inclusive FEZERF (RIEEEMST) 7 -
489 547
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 21. AHHESREE
2015 2014
—E—-afF —E—MmE
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Unlisted investments, at cost ELEMIRE AR
Balance at 1 January R—A—BZz#&& 77,182 34,000
Exchange realignment AN EE 5 & (2,056) (962)
Deconsolidated subsidiary (note (a)) BRIEGREARKB AR (Mita))
(Note 47) (K1 aE47) - 38,462
Further capital injections (note (a)) BINEE (M it(a)) 232,684 5,682
Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—HBz#&# 307,810 77,182

REXLot Holdings Limited fEZe-R #4ZR B PR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

As set out in Note 4B(b), the Group did not have the control
or significant influence over the PRC Company and it had been
deconsolidated from the consolidated financial statements of
the Group as at 1 January 2014. Accordingly, the PRC Company
with investment cost amounting to HK$38,462,000 has therefore
been recognised by the Group as an available-for-sale financial
asset since then. In 2014, the Group injected RMB200,000,000
(“Injection”) in the PRC Company. HK$5,682,000 (RMB4,546,000)
of the Injection was recognised as registered share capital
in the PRC Company and recognised as an available-for-sale
financial asset in 2014. The remaining amount of the Injection
of HK$232,684,000 (RMB195,454,000) was transferred from
prepayments and other receivables and recognised as an available-
for-sale financial asset in 2015 when the relevant legal formality
was completed.

The other unlisted investment represents the Group’s cost of
investment in a private enterprise fund established in the mainland
China. At 31 December 2015, the Group owns 18.3% (2014:
18.3%) of the paid-in capital of the investee. The Directors of
the Company consider the principal activity of the investee is
investment holding.

The unlisted investments are measured at cost less impairment

losses, if any, at the end of the reporting period because the

range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that

the Directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair

value cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not intend to

dispose of them in the near future.

2. AHHESHEE (&)

Wit -

(a)

LA TEAB (D) BT, + AN 5k B 4 5% P B A B 3 A
ENESEAFEN YER-_T-—NE—F—H2
REBEBAVHEBRERIEEAEARZRERAR -
I, - 8 A A iE38,462,00078 7T 2 2 P E AR A
HEASERRANHEESHEE - R-F—N
F o AEERZTEAREEAR200,000,000
JTL([JEE]) o x & 25,682,000 T (AR
4,546,0007T) R AZPE AR 2 FMEAR W
T NFERRAEEESHEE-BRTZE
#%232,684,000/% 7T ( A R ¥195,454,0007T) B 74
—E - hERBAEERE R TR TESRERE
fFEUGRIBE R WHERAIHLESREE-

HiIE EmiIREEANE RN — M+ B E AL
ZRAGERES ZBERA - R=FT—HF+=A
=t+—H AEBREEZEIREQNABEHRTE
"2183% (ZFE—M4%:183%) - ARRIESE
RE ZEIRERRZEEZEEAREER -

HRIFLTREZABAABEHRTHEEERE &~

RAEEERBRAREER

St EEARE Btk

FLEMRER IS PRIZRAERIAEEE (10
BB -AEBEEENAHBERE -
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION

136

(a)

Deferred tax liabilities recognised

22.

Fair value
adjustments on
prepaid lease
payments on
land use rights

I 3E R

(a) CHEBELEHESE

and
buildings on Other taxable
business Revaluation of temporary
combinations properties differences Total
REBEHRE
Bt FERER
BFZEMAHAD
HFRAEZ HittERB
ARERE ELRY/ES ERER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET TET
At 1 January 2014 RZZE—NF—H—H 640 4,118 143,020 147,778
Exchange realignment SNEE 8 B - (103) (850) (953)
Charged to the consolidated EReWRRAXE (Hit12)
income statement (Note 12) - - 4,890 4,890
Attributable to changes MEZEEMN (M7E12)
in tax rates (Note 12) - - (446) (446)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ—WEF+ZA=+t—HE
1 January 2015 —Z-hF—H—H 640 4,015 146,614 151,269
Exchange realignment INERE - (191) (977) (1,168)
Charged to the consolidated TiraRas KRNI (f12)
income statement (Note 12) - - 10,999 10,999
Attributable to changes RSB (Hi112)
in tax rates (Note 12) - - (411) (411)
Reclassified to liabilities directly ~ EFPEZEH B A
associated with assets of HEZHERREEER
the disposal group classified HEZBE(HiE15)
as held for sale (Note 15) (640) (3,824) (368) (4,832)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-RF+-A=+—-H - -

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR
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22. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 22. EEBIE
(b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have not been recognised in (b) WABMUTHEERRBECHELE, (A
respect of the following items: &)
2015 2014
—E-4fF —TmF
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Taxable temporary differences JERR R ER
— accelerated tax depreciation —MmARFIETE - (360)
Deductible temporary differences AHRE R =2
— decelerated tax depreciation —RERBIEE 1,372 1,097
— others —HAh 6,267 4,824
Tax losses MIARE R 52,046 98,878
59,685 104,439
Notes: it

(i)

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under the
current tax legislation.

Tax losses of approximately HK$26,987,000 (2014:
HK$63,449,000) arising from the Group's lottery business in
the PRC will expire in the fifth year commencing from the
year the loss incurred whereas tax losses of approximately
HK$25,059,000 (2014: HK$35,429,000) arising from the
Group's other subsidiaries in Hong Kong do not expire under
the current tax legislation.

23. INVENTORIES
(a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial

position comprise:

(i) WERTHE THRERERLT T

(i) WEBREOHE AEERFEZERER
FREE £ 2 BB E5184926,987,0008 T (=&
— U4 : 63,449,000/ 7)) i A EE BB F
ERABATIY MALERESZ it
B /B8 A R P EE £ 2 TR IB B 18 4925,059,0007%
7T (ZZ — P04 :35,429,0008 L) T~ &
FH o

23. &
(@) IAGAMBRARZEERHE:

2015 2014
—E-FF —ET—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials JR 1 # 17,152 127,915
Work-in-progress & m 4,112 9,558
Finished goods A% M 2,230 5,183
23,494 142,656
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23. INVENTORIES (continued)

23. FE (&)

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as (b) MRAERAXILFTARAEEBEE 2 FEHE
expense and included in the Group’s profit or loss is as DT :
follows:
2015 2014
—E—FF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold (Note 9) HERE 2K (f179) 433,073 393,951
Cost of services provided R RS 2 B A 73,645 54,320
Cost of sales/services rendered HE S IRERE Z A 506,718 448,271
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. EWEZERR
2015 2014
—E—HEF —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables — Lottery business EREZER-—FEER 760,152 916,772

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
receivables approximate to their fair values. The Group generally
grants credit periods of 90 to 270 days (2014: 90 to 270 days)

to its trade customers.

BERA BRESRFZEREREAAER
B AEE—METFTEZIEFIOKRE270K (=
T—O&FE 90K E270K) 2=EH-

The ageing analysis is as follows: BRI ATAT
2015 2014
—E-FF —T—NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Three months or less =@AHKUAT 358,148 439,375
One year or less but over three months —FRUATE=@AMNKE 382,644 462,807
Over one year —FE 19,360 14,590
760,152 916,772
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2015, no trade receivable was impaired.
As at 31 December 2014, trade receivables of approximately
HK$2,290,000 were impaired. The amount of the allowance
for impairment was approximately HK$1,551,000 as at 31
December 2014.

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of approximately
HK$1,776,000 (2014: HK$3,736,000) were past due but not
impaired. These related to a number of independent customers
for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing of
these receivables is as follows:

24.

EWE SRR (8&)
W—_ZE-—AE+-_A=+—8B EKREIFE
RBERE- R_T—NF+_A=+—8"
#92,290,0008 T2 EWE ZFERERE - R
—T-NE+-_A=+—B REEEBEOE
1,551,0005 TT °

RZZE—HAF+=A=+—H" 41,776,000/
oL (ZZF—PH4F : 3,736,000/ ) ZERE 5B
HE B AE I R E - ZFE KRBTSR Z B &
MR REBR 2B R P - Z5 B WHIE 2 iREe
LUNNE

2015 2014

—ZE—-4fF —E—MmEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Three months or less past due BmEA =8 A s AT = 96
One year or less but over BH—FHATE=@EA K E

three months past due - 155

Over one year past due mE—F I E 1,776 3,485

1,776 3,736

In the opinion of the Directors, all of the other trade receivables
are neither past due nor impaired.

Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

E=RAR MAEHMEBRKREZRFIGARES K

HERE °

RBRBEBRGBEHNOT

2015 2014

—E-1F —ZT-EF

HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET

At 1 January w—A—B 1,551 13,727
Exchange realignment HNEE B B (74) (40)
Uncollectible amount written off 58 71 B] Y [B] 3k KR - (12,136)
Reclassified as held for sale DERFELE (1,477) =
At 31 December ®n+=A=+—8H = 1,551

Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written
off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash.
The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

PR A RN BR 2 3R — AR A 1B 3 AT g = & b
ReBME AEEYESAENERRIERE
&
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25.

26.

140

UTILITY AND OTHER DEPOSITS

Utility and other deposits represent the deposits paid for the
rollout of lottery business operation including rental, machines
and equipment, projects and related utility deposits.

In the opinion of the Directors, all utility and other deposits are
neither past due nor impaired.

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NREBEXRAMES
ARERREMBRSERRAREEZRBINLZ
e BEMEE HEkRE HEREABLR
EXEE-

EERA FAAMEERAMESHAAN.
R4

R E R H A BRI

2015 2014

—2-H%F —T-lF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Prepayments and other receivables T8 0 3R I8 K H A FE W SR IE 1,795,121 2,125,177

At the end of the reporting period, the above balances
represent prepayments made to suppliers, lottery project related
prepayments, staff advances and other receivables.

As at 31 December 2015, other receivables of approximately
HK$156,000 (2014: HK$1,027,000) were impaired. As at 31
December 2015, the amount of the allowance for impairment
was approximately HK$151,000 (2014: HK$940,000). The
individually impaired other receivables mainly related to those
which were in financial difficulties and management assessed
that only a small portion of the other receivables is expected to
be recovered.

In the opinion of the Directors, the remaining other receivables
are neither past due nor impaired.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZ=-R #4ZR B R AR

RS HIR - Lt 45 6845 A (R B 7 S A9 2 TR AR
R FERABEBEBSRA BETRRREME
YRR -

R-ZT—H&E+-_A=1+—8 EEKZKES
#7156,000% 7L (= Z — M4 : 1,027,000/ 7T)
ERE-R_T—AF+-A=+—8 BEH
& #4151,000/8 7t ( —F — M £ : 940,000
7o) o BB IR RE 2 b R R IEE BB A
BRERRE MEEEBTME BRI ATKE /N
B e W FRIA o

BE=RR BT 2HEMBUREL REAS T E
A



26.

27.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movements on the allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts are as follows:

26. EHAREREMEKRRE (E)
REEREBRGSZSHMOT

2015 2014

—E-4fF —TF

HK$000 HK$'000

FETT FET

At 1 January = =8 940 12,433
Exchange realignment SN 38 B (46) (184)
Impairment recognised (Note 9) EmRRE (#it9) 57 -
Reclassified as held for sale DERIFIEHE (800) -
Uncollectible amount written off 8 S BT W 2] 2 RE - (11,309)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 151 940

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT
OR LOSS

27. BRERBRAAEMEZEHEE

2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZT—uF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Listed securities held for trading: BEEFEEZ L&
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong BB EMRAE 63,935 53,102

The fair value of all equity securities is based on their current bid

prices in an active market.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented
within the section of operating activities as part of changes in
working capital in the statement of cash flows.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in other gains, net in the consolidated
income statement (Note 5).

IABRAEZ 2 2 BERES B B AN ER
mHZBABTE-

ARERRAAEFEZeREENTEERE
%Wﬁgé@ ?Dw FlfE B A & 85 —
Vi)

Liﬂ%@ SR ARERFEZCESREEZAAESR
WRA s RS R E M FE (aZ5) »
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28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 28. BE&RIIBITHER

2015 2014

—B-IfF —F—mF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Fixed bank deposits T B R 1T 17 K 491,429 =
Cash at banks RITHR S

— general accounts ——REREP 605,665 1,284,405

- segregated accounts —BARP 330 332

Cash in hand FHEES 649 8,295

606,644 1,293,032

1,098,073 1,293,032

142

Fixed bank deposits represented fixed bank deposits with

maturity at acquisition over 3 months and within 1 year.

Cash and bank balances include the following amounts

denominated in currencies other than the Company's functional

currency, HK dollars:

EHRTERERRBR=ZEAAL—FAZ

B2 EHRITIER

KR RBITEHRT  BRETIUARRRINES

578 T A SN B 312 303 -

2015 2014

—E—EHF —T—F

‘000 ‘000

FT Fr

Euro BT - 5
US dollars ETT 27,691 18,012
Renminbi AR 731,702 767,964

REXLot Holdings Limited fZ=-R #4ZR B R AR
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28. CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued)

29.

RERRIT %()

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose RircREnEXRMNE ReRRESEEYEE
of the consolidated statement of cash flows: T &I
2015 2014
—E-4fF —ET-MF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash in hand FHEES 649 8,295
Cash at banks — general accounts wITREe——KRER 605,665 1,284,405
Cash and bank balances included WA AFELE CHEHER 2
in a disposal group classified R RIBITHER (ME15)
as held for sale (Note 15) 144,718 -
Cash and cash equivalents in the IAGEReERERZTEER
consolidated statement of cash flows ReEEY 751,032 1,292,700

NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year, further capital injections made for the available-
for-sale financial asset as mentioned in Note 21 was transferred
from prepayments and other receivables of HK$232,684,000.

During the year, 23,470,628 new ordinary shares were allotted
and issued at HK$0.4598 per share in respect of the final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, HK$618,100,000
in principal amount of convertible bonds was converted into
1,049,436,773 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share
capital of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 58,195,540 new
ordinary shares were issued at HK$0.8417 per share in respect
of the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
82,570,203 new ordinary shares were issued at HK$0.7486 per
share in respect of the interim dividend for the six months ended
30 June 2014 as scrip dividend.

29. kBRERF

FRN pAEtHESHEEELZEIINEE (R
MfaE21) B # B5232,684,0005 7T 2 T #3018
Ko H b 8 U FRIE o

ER ARBRBE_ZT-—NE+_A=+—8
IEFE 2 RER B 4% & R%0.45987% Jr fid 3% & %%
7723,470,62 8% 3 & i L o

HE-_T-—-MWME+_A=+—HILEE &
©%8618,100,0008 T 2 Al R IEHEEH IR A
1,049,436,773 A A A A SR EE0.0175
TL2 AR

HE-Z—NF+-_A=+—HLEFE 4A2Q
AMBE—_T—=F+-A=+t—HILFEZ
KREIRE B 1% B R%0.8417/8 Jt # 1758,195,540
BFHEBR AERBEE_ZT—WNESA=T
BiENERZHR R SIZEEIR0.7486F L 1T
82,570,203 EBAR - tERR EARD -
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. B
Number
of shares Amount
RO EE &8
‘000 HK$ 000
F g FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BEREECIBT2ZER
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and RZ-Z—MWFE—H—H -
31 December 2015 —E-MFE+ZA=+—HE
—Z—ARFE+_-_A=+—8H 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2014 RZZT—NFE—H—H 8,731,772 87,318
Repurchase of shares (Note a) BRI (Hfita) (67,950) (680)
Exercise of share options (Note b) TEREARAE (Mt7ED) 106,000 1,060
Issue of shares in lieu of cash dividends (Note ¢) Z1TRR D KB H &I E (Hfatc) 140,766 1,408
Issue of shares upon conversion of B A A A AR (R 55 e BT AR (D
convertible bonds (Note d) (Hratd) 1,049,437 10,494
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—MNE+-_A=+—H 9,960,025 99,600
Issue of shares in lieu of cash dividends (Note e) ZE1TRX DR BB LR E (Hfite) 23,471 235
At 31 December 2015 R-—ZE—HF+=-BA=+—H 9,983,496 99,835

144

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
repurchased 67,950,000 shares from the market at the
price ranging from HK$0.780 to HK$0.800 per share for a
total consideration (including expenses) of approximately
HK$54,037,000. The repurchased shares were cancelled
and accordingly the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value of these shares. An
amount equivalent to the par value of the shares cancelled
of approximately HK$680,000 was transferred from
retained profits to the capital redemption reserve. The
premium and expenses paid on the repurchase of these
shares were charged to share premium of HK$53,357,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 106,000,000
share options were exercised by the eligible option
holders at their respective exercise prices for a total cash
consideration of HK$113,080,000, resulting in an issue of
106,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZ=-R #4ZR B R AR

(a)

Bet -

REBEE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HLHF
B -ARAEAWM%HEEGE7,950,0008 8%
19}'{:%%“‘?&%1&@0 7807 7T £0.800
B2 BR(EH A54,037,0008 T
(@%Ffﬁﬁ)oEEﬁ@ZHﬂ%EZ&.}Hﬁ’
ARG BEBETRAEAMBREZERG Z
BE —2HEARTERNEELNA
680,000 T2 ©ME ARE 5 EHESE
BAERFE RBEEHZSRO NG G
Bk 2 B % E KM% 453,357,000

JC °©

REZE-T-—NF+_A=+—HBIEF
£+ 106,000,0001) BEAX#E 1 & & #& B AR 42
BEARBETEENE BHReRER
113,080,000 7t - & 1 % 17106,000,000
B% = B T (E0.0174 T 2 31 X i X
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

31.

(c) On 31 July 2014, 58,195,540 new ordinary shares were
allotted and issued at HK$0.8417 per share in respect of
the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2013.
On 28 August 2014, the board of Directors declared an
interim dividend of 2.30 HK cents per share for the six
months ended 30 June 2014. The shareholders were
provided with an option to receive the interim dividend
in form of scrip dividend. On 10 December 2014,
82,570,203 new ordinary shares were allotted and issued
at HK$0.7486 per share in respect of the interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2014.

(d) During the year ended 31 December 2014, one of
the convertible bonds with principal amounts of
HK$282,800,000 and HK$335,300,000 were converted
into 471,333,329 and 578,103,444 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company at the conversion prices of
HK$0.60 and HK$0.58 per share, respectively.

(e) On 31 July 2015, 23,470,628 new ordinary shares were
allotted and issued at HK$0.4598 per share in respect of
the final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014.

All new ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu in
all respects with the existing shares.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

2012 Scheme

The purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant options to eligible participants as incentives and/or
rewards for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Group.

According the 2012 Scheme, the Board may grant options to the
eligible participants as defined in the 2012 Scheme to subscribe
for such number of shares as the Board may determine. Options
granted should be accepted within 30 days from the date of
the letter of grant. Upon acceptance of the options, the grantee
shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of consideration
for the grant. Subject to the terms of the 2012 Scheme and
all applicable laws, the Board has the power to determine the
period within which payments or calls must or may be made.

30. BRA&R (&)

31.

(0 R-ZZE—WHFtA=+—HB A2ARE
E_T—=F+-_A=+—BHItFEZ
REIIE B 42 & 1%0.8417/%8 o Bt 3 K 3 1T
58,195,540 T EAMR - N =T —HFN
A=Z+N\B E=Zg25RBEE-_FT—NF
ANA=TBHIEANEAZHRBAREFRKG
23078l - BRE AT B B AR B 5 2 2 Uk
BHPHEE -R=ZF—NMFEF+=A+H &
REIRBE_T—NFAAA=THILEXNE
Az # Bk B R & IR AR 150.74867% JT Ap 8
K 3£1782,570,203 /% 5 & @Bk -

HE-_ZT W&+ -_A=+—HIEHF
S H R —IE A £ 5282,800,000/8 T &
335,300,000/ jT 2 Al # iR & 5 12 & R AR
150.607 7t R & IR A% 19 0.587 ;T 2 R (B
2RI 5471,333,3290% }2578,103,444
P& i A% o

a2

(e) RZZE—ARELA=+—H ARAHRE
E_E-—NME+-_A=t+—HAIEFEZR
HR% B iR & AR AR 19 0.459878 Jr B 2 & 31T
23,470,628 % %7 & M AKX o

FARTZABEMNERRES T EIERAE K

NEEREMA -

BRESE

—E-C_F5E

TR CFAEHEEEARRATMAERSE
ALTRBBERE ERARSHAKEMELZE
BIEBRAANEERNGEMEL 2 TBE 2 8
B % o

RE-F——F58 EFEr@R T —F5t
EFTRELZAERBEATRHBRE ARE
ExeMEERA IR REZBEEAAR
R AR 5130 B R A o 5 A B AR R 0 R
BABAMARR B X A1.008 7T 1E 7 5 5% 5 R
ZRE-Z T FHE 2 EREAEERA
RITRE  EEGHEETSANKATREIE B 5K
B AN TRz HARR
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31.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

2012 Scheme (continued)

The exercise price of options shall be determined by the Board,
which shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of the grant, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company on the
date of approval and adoption of the 2012 Scheme provided
that the Company may at any time seek approval from its
shareholders to refresh the limit to 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of approval by the shareholders in general meeting
where such limit is refreshed. Options previously granted under
any share option schemes of the Company (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed in accordance with such schemes
or exercised options) will not be counted for the purpose of
calculating the limit as refreshed.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted under the 2012
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless such grant has been duly approved
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting at which the relevant eligible participant
and his associates abstained from voting. Options granted to
substantial shareholders or independent non-executive directors
or any of their respective associates in any 12-month period in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s issued share capital on the
date of grant or with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
approved in advance by the Company’s shareholders.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZ=-R #4ZR B R AR

—hAFt+t-A=t—HLFE

31.

BRRESE (8)

—T-—F5E(8)
BRiEzTEERESEET AELATIZ
Ema: ((WREEBH (KEALER)BRA
FHBEXRMBRO ZWTE: (DRBEED
BHATAEEXBBIMEHRERMBFB/RSD
ZFEHWTE KGR 2 EE-

ETERE =T ——F 8 AR EA
R a2 Fr A AR M Al AT 2 R
HE LR THBAILERKERN T ——F5T3
EBARARBBITRAZ10% A RA R A EE
REECRREBER EREHNETE ARENRE
A ELHAEEFECLREBZERTRNZ
10% st EENETE 2 LREF - SEATIRIEAAQ A
FREREFEEL ZERE(REREZS
a#ilﬂjﬂifTﬁi B BARMRKBEITEZBR
B)ETeEEN-

REBZERBIER L ERERSHAEMI12@EAR -
EITERE =T — ZF T8 R AR A E A E A
BREGERE 2ERE (BEETE BiE
RERTEZERE) MERTRAZFTTER
AERLEATZRMHAE  THEBBITLER
BEEBZEETRO2Z1% BRIEFARHER
BRAS FEAARRRAEBRERER
M (HHEEER2BATREBBAERNE LK
ZIRE) - BlERIGR - MANMEM 1218 A HARM [ =
ERAKBIIFATESTAHES B 2 E A5

BARLBEARDRELBHEBRTRAZ
0.1% 3K {E{E#EH5,000,0005 7T 2 B A #E - BIZA
P AE AR RN A PR R AL AE o



31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
The period during which an option may be exercised will be

determined by the Board at its absolute discretion, save that no

options can be exercised more than 10 years after it has been

granted. There is no general requirement that an option must

be held for any minimum period before it can be exercised. The
2012 Scheme will expire on 28 June 2022.

The following table discloses movements in the 2012 Scheme:

During the year ended 31 December 2015:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

31. BRERE (E)

BERETEHCHESS2RPNEETE HERH
FBRHE R R 1 0F R A AT TR BAE - AR A
WERBITEAGAFSEEREZZEHR 2

— BB T ZFEERN =T ==F <A

ity ARGV E=D

TERRB-2 - —FHEIEH:

KHE-E-—AF+-A=+—ALFE:

Number of share options (000)
BRERA (71)

Date of Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
offer to price per Exercisable at during during during at
Grantees grant options share period 01.01.2015 the year the year the year  31.12.2015
R ~E-1%
“g-5f =
BHBRE 5K ) e ) =t-§
ARA EHEH RE TS AT ERRH ERfTE EREH AT
HKS
AT
Employees 07.01.2014 1.090 13.01.2014 - 06.01.2016 2,000 - - - 2,000
B8
27.06.2014 0.910 15.07.2014 - 26.06.2016 160,000 - - (40,000) 120,000
162,000 - - (40,000) 122,000

During the year ended 31 December 2014:

RRE-F-ME+-A=t+-ALEE:

Number of share options (000)

BREZE (71
Date of Exercise Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding
offer to price per Exercisable at during during during at
Grantees grant options share period 01.01.2014 the year the year theyear  31.12.2014
s
R “2-mE
“B-mE t=A
RinghE =1 -A-H ==
ERA EX90H 1@ s Ei:d ERRH ERTE FRER i K 176
HKS (Note)
AT (Hit)
Employees 04.02.2013 0680  05.02.2013-03.02.2015 6,000 = (6,000) = -
E=
07.01.2014 1.090 13.01.2014 - 06.01.2016 = 102,000 (100,000) — 2,000
27.06.2014 0.910 15.07.2014 - 26.06.2016 = 160,000 — — 160,000
6,000 262,000 (106,000) = 162,000
Note: The closing price of the share immediately before the dates of grant M EEELABH(A=-Z—NF—AtBR=F

on 7 January 2014 and 27 June 2014 was HK$1.080 and HK$0.880

respectively.

—EERNAZFER)AZRDETEDHA
1.0807# 7T, }20.880/8 7T °
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BRESTE (&)
(a) Details of share options exercised during the year ended 31 (a) REZE-_ZT—NME+_A=+—HLFE
December 2014: TR AR REE -
Market value
Exercise per share at Proceeds Number of
Exercise date £l price  exercise date received  share options
TR
TEE BRTE CWHABHRE BREHA
HK$ HK$ HK$'000 ‘000
BT BT TET T
08.01.2014 to 10.02.2014 08.01.2014%10.02.2014 0.680 1.130-1.170 4,080 6,000
14.01.2014 to 06.03.2014 14.01.2014206.03.2014 1.090 1.090 - 1.170 109,000 100,000
113,080 106,000
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise BE_T—NWF+_A=+—HILEFEE
for share options exercised during the year ended 31 TEERERTERZINETLEREASS
December 2014 was HK$1.124 per share. f&1.124% T °
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) BREZHARMEFLGTEE
share options
Movements in the number of share options outstanding WMATEERESBEEHREFHENET
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as BITEEMT :
follows:
2015 2014
—E-AfF —mF
Average Average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of

per share  share options per share share options
Bk =304
FHITREE BREHA FHTEE ERRERA
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
B F17 BT T
Outstanding at 1 January R—B—HRATE 0.912 162,000 0.68 6,000
Granted B - - 0.98 262,000
Exercised BT - - 1.067 (106,000)
Lapsed BXR® 0.91 (40,000) - -
Outstanding and exercisable ~ ®W+=A=+—H
at 31 December i AT R AT AT (2 0.913 0.912
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

(0

The number and weighted average exercise prices of

share options (continued)

The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had
exercise price of ranging from HK$0.910 to HK$1.090
(2014: HK$0.910 to HK$1.090) and a weighted average
remaining contractual life of0.48 year (2014: 1.48 years).
No option was cancelled during the years 2015 and 2014.

The exercise in full of the outstanding 122,000,000 (2014
162,000,000) share options at 31 December 2015 would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 122,000,000 (2014: 162,000,000)
additional shares for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of approximately HK$111,380,000 (2014:
HK$147,780,000).

Fair value of share options and assumptions

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 262,000,000
options were granted and were fully vested immediately.
The estimated fair value of the options granted in 2014
was approximately HK$13,708,000.

The fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model. The weighted average inputs into

the model were as follows:

31. BRERSE (E)

(b)

(o)

BREZHEERMETITEER(F)

R-E—RAF+_A=+—HHEKRTE
ZHEREZITEENTF0.9108 T E1.090
B (ZZ—MF:09108LE1.090/8
JL) - Mm% T ELOF A A0.484F
(ZE—OF:148F) - —_T—HFR=
T — IO A I A v S AT (e R AR A o

BEBEARAABERZEARARE  BHT
FER_FTE—AF+_A=+—8B &
K17 2122,000,000 (—F — M
£ :162,000,0001 ) B8 % # 15 &
% 17122,000,0008% (= & — pg 4 :
162,000,0000% ) FEHNER 15 - 4830 & RER
MBS ATA £111,380,0008 0 (=&
— P04 : 147,780,000 7T) °

BREAREREBR
BE_ZTZ-—NF+-_A=+—HIFE"
262,000,00017 & A% # B £ tH 3 BN & & 25
BE-NR-ZT—HNEFREZBREZAAR
B4 5149 413,708,000/8 7T °

AnENERA AR -FRXMEEER

Pl

B E - ZRE 2 INEF I AELT

Share options granted

ERHBRE
Date of Date of
offer to offer to

grant options

grant options

07.01.2014 27.06.2014

EXNBEH EHAH

—E-ImF —ZET-IF

—AtH ARAZ++tH

Share price % B HK$1.09078 7T HK$0.9107 7T
Exercise price TEE HK$1.0907% 7T HK$0.910/% 7T
Expected volatility T8 5 2 1R 39.930% 54.404%
Expected option life (in year) TEHARE IR AE BAIR (3R 51) 0.16 0.25
Risk-free rate 1 3 B A1) 5 0.10% 0.09%
Dividend yield & 8 & 2.33% 4.37%
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

—hAFt+t-A=t—HLFE

(9]

Fair value of share options and assumptions (continued)
The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company's share price over the
previous 260 days. The expected life used in the model had
been adjusted, based on the managements’ estimate, for
the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioral considerations.

The Group recognised share-based payment of
approximately HK$13,708,000 for the year ended 31
December 2014.

32. RESERVES

150

(a)

(b)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity of the
consolidated financial statements.

Nature and purposes of the reserves

(i) Share premium
The application of the share premium account is
governed by section 40 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 Bermuda.

(ii) Capital redemption reserve
Capital redemption reserve arises from the reduction
of the nominal value of the issued capital of the
Company upon the cancellation of the repurchased
shares.

(iii) Convertible bonds reserve
Convertible bonds reserve represents the amount
allocated to the equity component of convertible
bonds issued by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
convertible bonds in Note 2(q).

(iv) Share-based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of
the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share based payments
in Note 2(r)(iii).

REXLot Holdings Limited fZ=-R #4ZR B R AR

31. BREE(8)

() BREARERMBR(E)
FHHKREOERARARERBE260H
ZESRIEERE ZEAAZ BT FEH
ERBEEBZ GBI E R 176
BEIRTHAEEZHEMBE-

HE-_Z-—NF+=—A=1+—HILFE
AN%lﬁanAfoﬁSEHmIE%W3,708,000

T e
32. %
(a) $El$¢ LBAFTEz HESERE
# AMBBREF ZEABRBHR
iﬁuo

(b) REMHEREN
(i) REEE
BRIDBEERZERE -—NN\-—FBR
ERRDEFAOGEARE -

(i) BFXMEEGFE
B 7N (o (5 4 D R A 1 A 0 B g
ARABEHETEAEBERDPAESL -

(i) TRREFEE
] 4 fE 2 e R A H BRI S 2(a) Bt AT
BB PR 2 B AT EUR T R
ARBIFETARKRESERLDE
Dz ®e
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32. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

(0

Nature and purposes of the reserves (continued)

(v) Exchange translation reserve
The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy in Note 2(v).

(vi) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company as at 31
December 2015 represents the difference between
the consolidated net assets of REXCAPITAL Financial
Group Limited at the date when its shares were
acquired by the Company, and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition,
less dividends paid in 2000.

Distribution of reserves

Under the Company Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus account of the Company is
available for distribution. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of the
contributed surplus, if:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii)  the realisable value of the Company's assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and the share premium
account.

32. #E (&)

(b)

(0

HEEERBN (E)

) EZFE
EXGERERRERIINEL 25
WEMEEZMEEN Z8 - & E
TREHF2(v) 2 &5t KRR o

i) #AEE
ARAEIR=ZFT—HAF+=ZA=+—8H
Z BN B IEREXCAPITAL Financial
Group Limited? E I& 5 # A 2 A1 HE
EBZEEEEFEEBWEMET
ZARBROEER 2 Z8E  BHK
RZETEZTEFRNZEKRE

ik tE R
BRE-NWN—FBEREQRFE (K IX;J)'
RRRZHBABBERTIAHEDIK - " i

BEATER MARRTAIE /)E /EEH
RS RAEBMABRERIEH S K :

(i) ARRREINRIZMNHIBEEGRER
B & B R EHEQL %
(il ARREBEZNEREMEEEA LMD

NEBEEEBEETRARKRMDEE
RZBAtE® -
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32. RESERVES (continued) 32. & (&)
(c) Distribution of reserves (continued) () PIkRFEE(E)
In the opinion of the Directors, the Company’s reserves EEZRAE ARARARBEHRAHSIET
disclosed in Note 51 available for distribution to MR 2 B (RS 1HRE) 0T :
shareholders as at the end of the reporting period were as
follows:
2015 2014
—ET—8F — &
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET
Contributed surplus f/%ﬁl)\%ﬁ? 199,605 199,605
Retained profits & B % A 559,846 638,327
759,451 837,932
33. TRADE PAYABLES 33. ENESZERR
2015 2014
—E—aF — &
HK$000 HK$000
FHET FET
Other client payables WHE@E)E' AR 314 314
Trade payables — Lottery business ERE —KEE 2,414 26,557
2,728 26,871
Other client payables are repayable on demand and bear interest ENEMEPRHNERERER WRRTTH
at prevailing market rates. MEFFE -
No ageing analysis is disclosed for other client payables as, in HREFRRENEBUE RESTERT

the opinion of the Directors, the ageing analysis does not give

additional value in view of the nature of business.

Trade payables are expected to be settled within one year or are

repayable on demand.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade

payables approximate to their fair values.
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33.

34.

35.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ=Z

TRADE PAYABLES (continued)
The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables — Lottery
business is as follows:

MBEHRRKE (&)

—hAF+t_H=1t—BLFE

33. ENESRA(E)
AEERENESZRER - FEEB 2REKR DTN
T

2015 2014
—E-4fF —ET-MF
HK$000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Three months or less = @A AT 966 26,040
Over three months =@ AN E 1,448 517
2,414 26,557

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 34. HitENFIEREGFTRK
Other payables and accruals of the Group are expected to be ZK;‘%lZﬁi\ﬁﬁﬁé‘fﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬁéEf?ﬂ(lﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁ(\‘—i

settled or recognised as income within one year or are repayable
on demand.

NEENFERRBBARAIREREE-

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of other EERE Bz H e RIBEREFGRIBZ
payables and accruals of the Group approximate to their fair REmEREE ’& PRER B
values.
BANK BORROWINGS 35. RITEE
2015 2014
—E-afF —T-EF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Bank loans RITE X
— secured and due within one year —BER RN —F A2 H - 87,500

The bank loans were repayable within one year or when the
facility is withdrawn. These borrowings were used to finance the

lottery business of the Group.

At 31 December 2014, bank loans of approximately
HK$87,500,000 were secured by the leasehold buildings and
land use rights (Note 17).

The effective interest rates on the Group’s borrowings were

equal to contractual interest rates.

i& sz iﬂqﬂ;%ﬁ@ﬁﬂa@ e
RZFE—WMF+=A=+—H 487,500,000/

T2 RITER AR EET R+ 1 B #E R
(Btat17) -

AEBEBEZERANEAERGHOMN K-
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

B R R MY RE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—ZT—-—HF+-_A=+—HILFE

35. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 35.
The Directors considered that the fair values of borrowings at

THEE (&)
EERA BERBREHRZARBEEREKEA
the end of the reporting period approximated to their carrying HE -

amounts.

Bank borrowings included the following amount denominated RITEER TETW AR R BE &SP T LA SN
in a currency other than the Company’s functional currency, HK B 5|E 2 HIE
dollars:
2015 2014
—E—AF —ZT—mF
‘000 ‘000
F For
Renminbi AR - 70,000
36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 36. ATRRES
(i) CB2019 (i) =T-—hLFURRES
On 9 April, 2014, the Company entered into a RZZE—NFMNANR  ARRFILRE
subscription agreement to issue up to HK$1,900,000,000 ME ABTR-ZE-—NLFEH K5
principal amount of 4.5% convertible bonds due in &= /41,900,000,0005 JT 2 4.5 7] 1 f%
2019. On 17 April 2014, the issue of principal amounts BEHFE - R-ZT—HWHFEFWOA+EH BEEX
of HK$1,200,000,000 of the convertible bonds and HIREREHRE N EEERNEEEE
HK$400,000,000 of the convertible bonds pursuant BRI ERSTEMBETASEI A
to an option under the subscription agreement being 1,200,000 0005%73&400 000,000/ 7T 2
exercised in full before the closing date of the option was AREES ([ —NEFEEFERIELEE
completed (the “Firm & Option Bonds 2019”). On 8 July #1) °E@_§—IEIEFJCHJ\ H 2xTKR
2014 the issue of HK$300,000,000 in principal amount of BRI A Kingly Profits Corporation
the convertible bonds to Kingly Profits Corporation was 17 7N € %0 4300,000,0005% 7o 2 A #2 A%
completed pursuant to the subscription agreement (the BH ([ ZE—NFREEES ] ER=F
“VC Bonds 2019”, and together with Firm & Option Bonds —NEEBRREZRBESFRBAIZZT—N
2019, the “CB2019"). FraBRESR]) -
Each bond of CB2019 will, at the option of the holder —NFrAIBRERZ BHEFERE
(“Bondholders”), be convertible (unless previously EA(EBHFFAEAD ZEBER T —NF
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled) on or FA-t+EtHEZEBHERBE-_Z—N
after 27 May 2014 up to and including 7 April 2019 into FMA+-HE®R (LREERD - EiRgkEE
fully paid ordinary shares of the Company with a par value I 5 5 R ﬁl\)i%zﬁ AIFREEO0.01/E T
of HK$0.01 each at a conversion price (the “Conversion ZERERER BHnE([ERE])AER
Price”) of HK$1.407 per share, subject to adjustments in 1.407% T - *ETE«%%‘WJE& 18R B2 AR 1
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bonds EHRER B EE G EH AR
agreement as a result of dilutive events.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

(i)

(i)

CB2019 (continued)

The CB2019 were issued at an initial conversion price of
HK$1.407 per share. As a result of the interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 June 2014 and final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014, pursuant to the
conditions of the CB2019 agreement, the conversion
price of the CB2019, had been adjusted from HK$1.370
to HK$1.390 and from HK$1.390 to HK$1.370 per share
with effect from 31 October 2014 and 19 June 2015
respectively.

CB2016
On 21 September 2011,
subscription agreement to issue up to HK$1,040,200,000

the Company entered into a

principal amount of 6% convertible bonds due in 2016.
On 28 September 2011, the issue of principal amount of
HK$816,900,000 of the convertible bonds was completed
(the “Firm Bonds”). On 7 November 2011,
principal amount of HK$70,000,000 of the convertible
bonds was completed pursuant to an option under the

the issue of

subscription agreement being partially exercised before
the closing date of the option (the “Option Bonds”).
On 28 November 2011, the issue of HK$77,800,000 in
principal amount of the convertible bonds to Kingly Profits
Corporation was completed pursuant to the subscription
agreement (the “VC Bonds”, together with the Firm Bonds
and Option Bonds, the “Existing Bonds").

On 3 September 2012, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement to issue up to HK$429,000,000
principal amount of 6% convertible bonds due in 2016.
On 13 September 2012, the issue of principal amount of
HK$312,000,000 of the convertible bonds was completed
(the “New Underwritten Bonds”). On 19 October 2012,
the issue of principal amount of HK$78,000,000 of
convertible bonds was completed pursuant to an option
under the subscription agreement being exercised in
full before the closing date of the option (the “New
Option Bonds”). On 13 November 2012, the issue of
HK$39,000,000 in principal amount of the convertible
bonds to Kingly Profits Corporation was completed
“New VC
Bonds”, and together with the New Underwritten Bonds

pursuant to the subscription agreement (the

and New Option Bonds, the “New Bonds").

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ=Z

—hAF+t_H=1t—BLFE

36. ATRRESR (B)

()

(i)

—E-hFURRES (B)
ZE-NFRARRESENSERESR
1.4078 BT BARENBE T —NF
NAZTHEARNEAZRHREREE
T—ME+-—A=+—HIFEEZRER
B BMRE-ZE—NFBRRESHEZIE
B - NFARREFIERER D
AE=FE—WFEF+A=+—RHBK=F—H
FRATHBER BERIZ70BTHAES
1.390/8 7T 2 Fi1.3908 LA K E1.37048
=

—E-RFURRES
R=ZB——FNLA=+—8 AREFILR
B UABTR-_Z—AF3H A&H
5 41,040,200,000% 7T 2 62 7] #2 f% &
(- -R-ZE—FNA=ZF+/N\B BEEKE
1778 & %8 5816,900,0005# 7T 2 A] # j% (&
5 ([BBEF]) HRZTZ—F+—At
B EXKEREBRERREBE T 2BEE
FEBREE B SATELDTEMETAE
$ #1/570,000,00078 7T 2 Al ¥R iR fE 55 (38
BEH]) RZFT——F+—A=+N
H 2 mKIRERETZMAKingly Profits
Corporation# 1T A ¢ %8 /477,800,000 7T
Z2HBERES ([REEES] EREH
BEHERIEEBELGBAIRBES]) -

RZZE—=—FhhB=A AQAFTILRE
M UBEITR T —AFIH AL HE
&= A429,000,0007 7T 2 6/E A # & &
H-RZTE——FNLA+=8 BEKET
N4 %8 /4312,000,000/% 7T 2 7] # B% & &
([#HB#EEs]) R=_T—=—F+A+th
B ExfKEREREHEBE TN 2 ERERE
PIERIEREE L BRI ERERITEMETA
% ¥8/578,000,000/8 T 2 AT AR &5 (57
BEEL]) R_E——F+—A+=
H ' B SR IR 52 B8 175 3% M Kingly Profits
Corporation#{T RN & 58 7%39,000,000% 7T
ZABBRES ([FRAEEES ] ERFE
HESRMEEESRBAFESF]) -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

156

(i)

CB2016 (continued)

The New Bonds have the same terms and conditions as the
Existing Bonds (the “Existing Bonds” and together with the
New Bonds, the “CB2016"), in all respects except for the
issue date and issue price which is 109.5% of the principal
amount and will be consolidated and form a single series
with the Existing Bonds and vote together as one series on
all matters with respect to the Existing Bonds.

Each bond of CB2016 will, at the option of the holder
("Bondholders”),
redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled) on or

be convertible (unless previously

after 8 November 2011 up to and including 18 September
2016 into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company with
a par value of HK$0.01 each at a conversion price (the
“Conversion Price”) of HK$0.56 per share, subject to
adjustments in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Bonds agreement as a result of dilutive events.

The CB2016 were issued at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.6175 per share. As a result of the final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2012, 2013 and 2014 and
the interim dividend for the six months ended 30 June
2013 and 2014, pursuant to the conditions of the CB2016
agreement, the conversion price of the CB2016, had been
adjusted from HK$0.6175 to HK$0.61, from HK$0.61 to
HK$0.60, from HK$0.60 to HK$0.58, from HK$0.58 to
HK$0.57 and from HK$0.57 to HK$0.56 per share with
effect from 19 June 2013, 31 October 2013, 19 June
2014, 31 October 2014 and 19 June 2015 respectively.

Kingly Profits Corporation is a company indirectly wholly-owned

by Mr Chan How Chung, Victor, a director and substantial

shareholder of the Company. The issue of the VC Bonds
2019, the New VC Bonds and the VC Bonds to Kingly Profits
Corporation constituted a non-exempt connected transaction
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The CB2016 and the CB2019 (the “Bonds”) are both listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

REXLot Holdings Limited fZ=-R #4ZR B R AR

36. ATRRESR (B)

(i)

—E-AFURRES (B)
MEFES T HEREES([RERE
H| ERHMEFSGERIZF—RFrH
BEZ]) Z R R GHERR - TR
RETE(RAEE2109.5% ) BN =
T-ANFHUERESBEAH LERAE
BEHRBRE—RI BERR—RIHE
EEFMEEERR-

- AFABRREFZESNEFBIEE
EA(BEEFRAEAD ZEBER - —F
T—ANBRZRBERBE-_ZE &
NATNBE®R (LB ER - ik iEE
WiESHERIN) BA R R ESREMEO0.01E T
ZHERTER R E ([#ERE])AER
0.56% 7T RIEBEEH HE 2GR RGH &
BMEREEEGIELHAE-

ZE-ARFARRESENSERESR
061758 LET ARKNEEZE_ZT—=
F ZE—=FRZFTNFt+ZA=1+—
BEFEEZRHRBERBE-ZS—=FK
—Z-—NENA=THIEANEA Z TR
B MR =T — AT AR ESFE 2 IE
- RFARREFZEREE D
AME=Z—=F~AthB ZZ—=F
+TA=+—B8 -ZZ—WF&XA+hB =
T-NE+A=Z+—ARER=-_ZT—HENA
+HhB# BHER06175BTAEZE0.61
BT A ER0.61B LA Z0.60E T
A ER0.60BITAEZE0.58B L AER
0.58B LABE0.578 T M HEMO0.578
TTHABE0.568TT -

Kingly Profits Corporation 3R ARIEEF T E
RERREREERELERE AR - RIE LT
38 A2 14AZ * [WKingly Profits CorporationZ
TZE-NEREEES FREEEFRERE
EESBERTIERCAERS -

— =
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
The redemption terms of the Bonds are as follows:

(a)

(b)

(o)

Redemption at maturity

Unless previously redeemed, converted, or purchased and
cancelled, CB2016 and CB2019 will be redeemed on 28
September 2016 and 17 April 2019 respectively at their
principal amounts together with accrued but unpaid
interest thereon.

Redemption at the option of the Company

The Company may at any time after 28 September 2014
and prior to 28 September 2016 redeem in whole or in
part, the CB2016 and after 17 April 2017 and prior to 17
April 2019 redeem in whole or in part, the CB2019 for the
time being outstanding at their principal amounts together
with interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption,
provided that the closing price of the Company’s shares for
any 20 consecutive trading days, the last of which occurs
not more than five trading days prior to the date on which
notice of such redemption is published, was at least 130%
of the prevailing Conversion Price; or

If at any time at least 90% of the aggregate principal
amount of the Bonds has already been converted,
redeemed or purchased and cancelled, then the Company
shall have the option to redeem in whole, but not in part,
of the outstanding Bonds at their principal amounts as at
such date together with interest accrued to such date.

Redemption at the option of the Bondholders

The Company will, at the option of any of the
Bondholders, redeem all or some of the Bondholders’
CB2016 and CB2019 on 28 September 2014 and 17 April
2017 respectively at their principal amounts together with
interest accrued to such date.

The Company will also, at the option of any of the
Bondholders, redeem all or some of the Bonds at their
principal amounts as at such date together with interest
accrued to the relevant date for redemption when there
is a change of control of the Company, or when the
Company's shares cease to be listed or admitted to
trading or suspended for trading for a period equal to or
exceeding 30 consecutive trading days on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange subject to the terms and conditions of the
CB2016 and CB2019, respectively.

36. ATRRESR (B)
ZEES 2 BEERNT

(a)

(b)

2 =

BIEEREIED SRR BEIL TN TR
—E-ANFARERESE T -AFHE
BREFEIRNR-F—R"FALA=-+T/HB
NZZ-NFOA+TLtRRERSHEER
RFHERAMSEE -

HAAFRERE

ARAAR-Z—MFELA=-+NB%E
RZBE—RNEALAZ+/N\BA - BEREEAR
S GEREMEMTEEEBZHE) ER
2B ERERER 2 T —RFH
BRES WER_Z—+tFMWAB++tAR
BER=-ZZ—AFHA+EBA EREZ
A& CEREAZMEERB ZFE)E
E2HHFPEREABEZ - —NF
AR E S RS 20ER 5 A (&%
—EAXRZBETERZELEBER BB H
MARAXSH)ZARGRHDKTERZ D
BEEREREZ130% ;K

i PAERIE ZFEFRLDI0% 2 AT
BEOES BONEOYEN BARF
EENFHERBRACE CERAFE
HEBBZANE) B2 EMEILIEHS H
AERZZEES-

HEFFEARERD
RRARKEEFFEAZEE SRR
T—NFANAZFTNBR=ZZT—+tFMA
TEtBEEAcRE (ERRFEZEBEARHZ
FMEBEEEEFEAMBZEZHLHD
—E-RFARRESFR T -AFAHR
BREFH -

E_Z-—AFAAKESFR-_FT-NFH
BIRERR B ZERRIEEZRET A
ARABZEGIRRE LA RFRNL T
BREEBIMLEMABEEERERFE
B RAHBAENHEBI0EEERZA
ARRTEHREMELSFEAZEE R
HEBECDRSRRASE CERRA =AM
BHZAS)BEEARARAEFES -
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 36. —Hﬁﬂiﬂi%(ﬁ)

158

At initial recognition, the Bonds are separated into a liability
component consisting of the straight debt element of the
Bonds, embedded financial derivatives consisting of redemption
options, and an equity component representing the conversion
options of the Bondholders to convert the Bonds into equity.
As the Company’s and Bondholders’ redemption options are
considered as closely related to the host contracts, the fair
values of these options, which are determined using Binomial
Tree Pricing Model at initial recognition, have not been
separated from the host contracts, but included in the carrying
amount of the liability component. The equity component is
presented as convertible bonds reserve in equity, whereas the
liability component is classified under non-current liabilities. The
proceeds received from the issue of the Bonds have been split as

follows:

(i)  Liability component represents the fair value of the
contractually determined stream of cash flows discounted
at the prevailing market interest rate applicable to
instruments of comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms,
but without the conversion features. The interest charged
for the year is calculated by applying an effective interest
rate. The effective interest rate of the Existing Bonds,
New Bonds, Firm & Option Bonds 2019 and VC Bonds
2019 are 9.79%, 15.20%, 9.06% and 9.03% per annum,
respectively.

(i)  Equity component represents the conversion options,
which is determined by deducting the fair value of the
liability component from the proceeds of issue of the
Bonds as a whole.

REXLot Holdings Limited fEZe-R #4ZR B PR AR

PR 2 FE AR &%Eﬁ RBEEHRY (BE%
wE%ZEFE ﬁ)ﬁkﬁ%ﬂﬁiiﬂ
(EeEOEER) REasls (BEFFKAA
HzEEFER ARG BRREE) - HRNA
RARBEFHEAZEOEERBEERETS
HWEGREY BRFEEEZAARE (RUIFHE
REEA —RAABREERLEE) WEEES
Mok Mt ABRESD ZRAEAE BEI RN
BEAZJRABEESFHE MAEERS D
BEHRDEAFEERT -BIREEFZERFF
KIEEE D RATHD

() BEIIPECGHNETZRERREZIARN
B DREEMRLEE REXBUERR S
R RME N SR R 2 T B FrE A
Z BTG A ERREIR - £ NFTET A BIR B
NEFHE-BREES FESF ZT—NF
BERREZEFUR T -NFREER
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36.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 36. AIRIRESR (&)
The fair value of the liability component of the Bonds on initial ZEBHFABH ORIV T HERR Z AR ENEL
recognition was calculated using the discounted cash flow REeRERAE - —IHABIREEBKEE A
model. The major inputs used in the Binomial Tree Pricing Model ZEEMAMBLT
were as follows:
VC Bonds Firm & Option
2019 Bonds 2019 New Bonds Existing Bonds
ZE-RF ZE-RF
REEES EHRREBES HiES REHES
Share price B (E HK$0.873% 7T HK$0.937% 7T HK$0.503% 7T HK$0.477% 7T
Exercise price BB HK$1.40778 7T HK$1.407/8 7T HK$0.61757% 7T HK$0.6175% 7T
Risk-free rate 2 3 B ) 1.394% 1.380% 0.267% 0.755%
Dividend yield BBk 4.115% 3.849% 3.360% 2213%
Credit spread HEEE 8.184% 8.133% 12.300% 8.407%
Expected life Tt 5 4.78 years & 5.00 years 4.04 years F 5 years F
Volatility B IE 46.328% 47.724% 62.431% 67.761%

The risk-free rate was determined with reference to the Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Notes Yields as extracted from Bloomberg.
The expected life was the remaining life of the Bonds. Volatility
is the annualised standard deviation of the continuously
compounded rates of return on the daily average adjusted share
price of the Company.

Any changes in the major inputs used in the model will result
in changes in the fair value of the liability component. The
variables and assumptions used in calculating the fair value
of the liability component are based on the Directors’ best
estimates.

On 20 August 2015, the Company announced that an event
of default had occurred pursuant to the terms and conditions
of Bonds by virtue of the fact that the ordinary shares of the
Company had been suspended for trading for a period equal to
or exceeding 30 consecutive trading days on the Stock Exchange
(“Relevant Event”). Consequently, the Bondholders are entitled
to require the Company to redeem all or some only of the Bonds
on 2 November 2015 (“Relevant Event Redemption Date”) at
their principal amount together with interest accrued to the
Relevant Event Redemption Date.

ERBMNELE2BEBIIEESESFELS X (1

BER)KREE -BAFHRZEEFZHBTEF
H o REAARRESRARABRTORE 2 EER

AERE L FELBRE

ZREFAZEIERABZEMNESKEHE
B2 ARERZ -FEABHIIAEMA

ZEBEBRDBBEEE 2 HEMGFEL -

RZZFE—RAFNAZ+H ARAEM ERAE
AR L AREEBIAMEEEZREERLER
30AEERS A BREZEEFZ KRBT
BETENSH(BESH]) Bt E5FF
EABRERARTANR-_Z—RE+—HA—H
([MEMEHERR ] REASHER R EM
BEMEDB 28 ER 250k R B Q269 Z

EE5-

Annual Report 2015 —Z—RFFHR

159



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHRRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 36. AIERES (E)

160

An extraordinary resolution was duly passed by the Bondholders
at a meeting held on 29 October 2015 in which the Company
agreed to redeem 5% of the principal amount of the Bonds with
total nominal amount of HK$2,247,700,000 on 30 November
2015 and the Bondholders agreed to delay the Relevant Event
Redemption Date to 31 March 2016 and the Company agreed
to offer Bondholders who vote in favour of the extraordinary
resolution a consent fee of 1% of the principal amount of the
relevant Bonds as an incentive. In the extraordinary resolution,
the Bondholders also agreed to provide a carve-out to the
relevant event of default to ensure that the Company and
its principal subsidiaries are permitted to dispose of assets,
business or operations, where the net proceeds of such disposal
are primarily applied towards the redemption or repayment of
the Bonds (including interest), without triggering an event of
default. Further details in relation to the Relevant Event are
disclosed in the Company’s announcements dated 20 August
2015, 22 September 2015, 7 October 2015 and 29 October
2015.

On 30 November 2015, the Company redeemed the Bonds
with principal amount of HK$112,385,000 at HK$112,385,000
and a gain of approximately HK$1,013,000 (Note 5) from the
redemption was recognised in profit or loss. Immediately after
the redemption and at the end of the reporting period, the
Bonds with principal amount of HK$2,135,315,000 remain
outstanding.

REXLot Holdings Limited fEZe-R #4ZR B PR AR
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)
The movement of the liability component of the Bonds for the

year is set out below:

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MEBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+_A=+—RHItFE

36. ATRRESR (B)

ZEBFABRD Z2FRELHHINWT

CB2019 CB2016 Total
—E-hEF —E-RE
AR ES MR ES &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2014 RZZE-—ME—-A—HZERHEE - 833,649 833,649
Bonds issued during the year FRNEBETZERES 1,900,000 - 1,900,000
Equity component* D * (303,157) - (303,157)
Transaction costs attributable to BEBIEER KA
the liability component (34,307) - (34,307)
Interest expense (Note 8) MERZ (HiF8) 94,438 68,793 163,231
Interest payable FER IS (57,288) (37,493) (94,781)
Converted during the year FREHR - (564,183) (564,183)
Carrying amounts at RZZE—ME+=-A=+—HZ
31 December 2014 REE 1,599,686 300,766 1,900,452
Redemption during the year FANEE (82,714) (16,193) (98,907)
Interest expense (Note 8) MERZ (HF8) 144,128 45,948 190,076
Interest payable FEH A2 (84,669) (20,718) (105,387)
Acceleration of unwinding interest MRF SRR (f7728)
(Note 8) 175,881 13,287 189,168
Carrying amounts at RZZF—A&+=-A=+—H82
31 December 2015 AREE 1,752,312 323,090 2,075,402
Portion classified as current DERRBHB A (1,501,539) (323,090) (1,824,629)
Non-current portion FERB)E D 250,773 = 250,773
* The transaction costs attributable to the equity component of the @ ZE-NFABRRES S EIEZXZHA

CB2019 amounted to HK$6,427,000. 436,427,000/ 7T °

During the year ended 31 December 2014, CB2016 in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$618,100,000 has been

REBEE-_T-—NE+-_A=+—HLtEE A&

#%5618,100,0008 02 =T — N F A BRE

LEEIA1,049,436,773R A D T RAR 2 &

AR NBEBR RERBPLZZEFRDA

B EEHF RSB A2,135,315,0008 T
—Z— P44 :2,247,700,000/87C) °

converted into 1,049,436,773 ordinary shares in the share
capital of the Company. At the end of the reporting period,
the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds remaining
outstanding following the partial redemption of the Bonds was
HK$2,135,315,000 (2014: HK$2,247,700,000).
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36.

37.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 36. AIERES (&)
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and up to RBEBRRBERBE-_ZE—X~"F=A—8"
1 March 2016, the Company received redemption notices ARREEEDBIEFRAEACBERBN 2
from some of the Bondholders to redeem the Bonds with (kR —_E-—RNFZA=+—BELQLAELEAL
principal amount of HK$1,848,415,000 on 31 March 2016. 1,848,415,0008 T 2 ZEEH - Hit N &
As a result, the outstanding Bonds with principal amount of #1,848,415,000% T 2 W R E R Z FEH K
HK$1,848,415,000 shall become payable on 31 March 2016 RZE—ARF=A=+—BRHES mHr=
and unwinding of interest totaling HK$189,168,000 was T—RAF+ZA=+—HBZMRFEERE X
accelerated at 31 December 2015 and the carrying amount of #3189,168,000 L' MAR =T —RNF=H
liability component of the Bonds that subject to redemption on =T HERzZEEF 2 AEB,FREAER
31 March 2016 has been classified as current liabilities (see note S AR EE (M FES2)) °
52(ii)).
OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 37. MEHEERR
At 31 December 2015, the Group had obligations under finance RZEBE-—RF+T-A=+—RH XrEEEENZ
leases repayable as follows: MEHEEBOAT :
2015 2014
= —T-MmE
Present Present
value of value of
minimum Minimum minimum Minimum
lease payment  lease payment lease payment lease payment
BEAHN HERL
HRAE BERAMR NHEE SRIEFOIE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Within 1 year —&ER 17,038 18,032 16,681 19,251
Between 2 to 5 years MEEREF 8,867 8,977 27,262 28,708
25,905 27,009 43,943 47,959
Less: Total future finance charges B ARREG BB AR 1,104 4,016
Present value of lease payments RO HRE 25,905 43,943

The Group leased a motor vehicle under a finance lease
arrangement. The interest rate of the finance lease is fixed at
2.5% (2014: 2.5%) per annum. At the end of the lease term,
the Group has the option to purchase the motor vehicle at a
price deemed to be a bargain purchase option. The leased motor
vehicle (Note 16) secures the finance lease obligation.

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR

AEBEREREHELHHERE -BREHEEZ
MEEBBF25% (ZFT—MF:2.5%) - R
EHERE  AEEAERBIRNR A EREE
BERZERBEZAE BREHEEBUNEER
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OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (continued)
The effective interest rate of the obligations under finance
leases is 5.81% (2014: 7.36%) per annum. Certain subsidiaries
of the Group have provided corporate guarantees to the
lessor to secure the finance lease obligations to the extent
of HK$60,714,000 (2014: HK$63,750,000). The carrying
amount of the printing machine under the sales and leaseback
agreement was disclosed in Note 16.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The Group's employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC subsidiaries
are required to make contributions to defined contribution
retirement schemes organised by the relevant Social Security
Bureau in respect of the retirement benefits for the PRC
subsidiaries” employees in the PRC.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantees issued

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, certain subsidiaries of
the Group have issued corporate guarantees in respect of
the finance lease obligation under a sales and leaseback
arrangement granted to a subsidiary of the Group which
will expire when the lease is terminated. The Group has not
recognised any deferred income and the related expenses in
respect of such guarantees, as in the opinion of the Directors,
their fair value cannot be reliably measured using observable
market data and their transaction price was nil.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Directors do not
consider it probable that a claim will be made against these
subsidiaries under any of the guarantees.

37.

38.

39.

MEREER (&)
ZREAHEEBE2ERFNEAE581% (=T
—PF:736%) AEEETHEAFEMH
HAREATER - LAER60,714,000% 7T (=
T — U4 :63,750,00080) L RAEHEBK 2
EIR - BT %18 T EDRIHE 2~ AR B 7 KT
1645 5& -

IF

BABRGE

BRIRER KA
REBERBHMELBESHEGH REERE
ERDEBHERESRABHNE ([BES
a2 BB R -REBRHKKRESFE
ERDABEBEAF S 2 KA DL IRR
ERESHIAZHAVUATINHERANR - K
5B 2B X MR MR TE S 5 B b R
HEBESMA -

RIFEBTEER - P EKE AR AR BB
REEERTEZERRNAEBLERER
A E R FURKEBIE R K-

HRBE

B2 B BER
REE-AFER-ZF-WNEF+-_A=+—H ' &
SEETHBARERASE —RKBQAE
BReERARLZHE T 2MEREEBEL QA
ER-BFEERENEEL RN ANES
RE BRERZAAREEEERATEEN S
BUEE EXSBRT MAKBEYENA
9 12 (R FE AR AR (AT FE W A R AR B B % -

RZEBE—RAFER-_E—NF+=_A=+—H &
ERABRBETMZEERAZENBARRD
HRZEEERK-
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40. DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,

164

ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Kingly Profits Corporation (being a holder of 2019 Bonds),
wholly-owned by Mr Chan How Chung, Victor, who is a Director
and a substantial shareholder of the Company, has provided an
undertaking to the Company (the “Undertaking”), among other
things,

(i)  to provide a valid block voting instruction in favour of the

relevant revised extraordinary resolution;

(i) to provide, subject to certain conditions, an unsecured
and interest-free shareholder’s loan in the amount of
approximately HK$100,000,000, with a one-year term, for
the Company's partial redemption obligations;

(iii) to provide, subject to certain conditions, an unsecured
and interest-free shareholder’s loan in the amount of
approximately HK$3,000,000, with a one-year term, for
the Company’s general working capital;

(iv) to provide, subject to certain conditions, an unsecured
shareholder’s loan in the amount of HK$15,000,000, with
a one-year term, with an interest rate equal to the coupon
rate of the 2019 Bonds for the Company's general working
capital;

(v) to, from time to time, if it shall receive any Early
Redemption (as defined in the announcements) payment
(in respect of the 2019 Bonds it holds) from the Company,
provide a further unsecured shareholder’'s loan to the
Company in the amount equal to such Early Redemption
principal payment so received by it; and

(vi) not to exercise the put option in relation to a “Relevant

Event” as stated in the announcements in respect of the
2019 Bonds it holds.

REXLot Holdings Limited fEZe-R #4ZR B PR AR

40. EERRG REREHNZ2EAER

Kingly Profits Corporation ( =% — L& &4
ZEAAN AEERARAEZRRMERLE
2EHE) BRAARREL AR ([&FE])  Hf
BIE

(i) ?‘Hﬂﬁ?ﬁ)ﬁ EREET REERBERL
CHESHIVS: £

(i) ZRRETIEMSE  1R449100,000,000% 7T
2 FHERAREERRED  UER
NAEEITH D E R EE

(i) ZRAHETIEMG  B4£493,000,000% T2
—FHEEALEERRET UAEARA
RAE—REEES:

(iv) ZBRRETHEMH 415,000,000 T2

—FHERARRER EMEEER=

—NEFEFZ2EZBAE  UAEERQAA
E—MEEELS:

(v) WME(HEFABZZ—NAFEHF)RAEQF
ERITMNREREERN(EERZSAM)N
BT RREIINAA R AR EESZERER
S 2 IR B L
BERG R

=
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40. DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,

41.

ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS (continued)

During the year, shareholder’s loans in the aggregate amount of
HK$118,000,000 (as mentioned in (ii) to (iv) above) have been
advanced to the Company pursuant to the Undertaking.

Save as disclosed above, no other significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company has a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

COMMITMENTS
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2015
not provided for in the consolidated financial statements

are as follows:

40.

41.

EERRG RUREHNz2ER#ER (B)

FR-BRERERE 118,000,000 7T (R EX
(NE(Gv)IEM) EARBAREBMN FARF

B EXCPTIREE & S - AN R BN AR B S AR
R EETHAIVERARREEFNAFE
ERAFERRFEARGELHAMEERS RHR
B4

AiE
(@ R=FT—hAG+=-_A=+—"BUERELE
MBMERBEHEZANEAEALEDT

2015 2014
—E-ERF —E—mE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Contracted for =S
— purchase of property, plant and —EEWE BEREE

equipment 383 1,203

— increase in registered capital of —— RN B ARz M & A
a subsidiary 84,000 84,000
84,383 85,203
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41. COMMITMENTS (continued) 41, e (4 E)

(b) At 31 December 2015, the Group's future aggregate by RZZFE—AF+=ZA=1+—RH FXEER
TJ?}TT%(%”“ﬁ*ﬁiﬂﬁ%ﬁZ*IEﬂ&fﬁ#@
leases are payable as follows: BT

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

As at 31 December 2015
R-ZE-HEFE+=-A=+—H

166

Land and Factory
buildings equipment Total
T REF BERE =Eis
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Within one year —F A 17,105 8,960 26,065

In the second to fifth year F-EZERF
inclusive (BREEMF) 6,160 35,730 41,890
More than five years AFRE - 53,199 53,199
23,265 97,889 121,154
As at 31 December 2014
RZEBE-—NE+_-_RA=+—H

Land and Factory
buildings equipment Total
T R EF = & B &t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET TET FET
Within one year — £ R 25,490 9,375 34,865

In the second to fifth year FE-E=FERF

inclusive (BREEMF) 23,274 37,500 60,774
More than five years AFUE - 65,234 65,234
48,764 112,109 160,873
The Group leases various office and factory premises, office REER TJ* CEEEMEAZEPERE KK
equipment and warehouses under operating leases. The EMHE PAEZHBREE - ZEZHEYS
leases run for an initial period of 1 to 11 years (2014: 1 to E%,Hﬂ—i+—¢ (Z2E—mMF:—ZF+=

12 years). The leases do not include any contingent rentals.

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

42. BERE D 2EMIA
REERR SERMT AR ZREENT :

Financial assets SRMEE
2015 2014
“E-1f —E-mE
Financial Financial
assets at asset at
fair value fair value
through through
profit Available- profit Available-
or loss for-sale or loss for-sale
held for  Loansand financial held for  Loans and financial
trading receivables assets Total trading  receivables asset Total
BARE BARE
TEZER HEZEE .
BE- EXR EH_?%EE BE- Bk W{ﬁ’% ‘
BEFEE ELHE  SREE i BEEEE  RUGE  SREE &3t
Notes  HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
hat TEx TEx FEx FEx AT FAT FET FAT
Available-for-sale financial assets fHESREE 21 - - 307810 307,810 - - 77,182 77,182
Trade receivables WS S8R 24 - 760,152 - 760,152 - 916772 - 916772
Utlity and other deposits RASERAMES 25 - 1,600,474 - 1,600,474 - 1,782,347 - 1,742,347
Other receivables Hftr YA 2 - 1,791,221 - 1,791,221 - 2,087,115 - 2,087,115
Financial assets at fair value though ~ BBEREALEHEL
profit or loss SHEE 27 63,935 - - 63,935 53,102 = = 53,102
Cash and bank balances Re RBTER 28 - 1,008,073 - 1,008,073 - 1293032 - 1,293,032
63,935 5,249,920 307,810 5,621,665 53,102 6,039,266 77,182 6,169,550
Financial liabilities - 3=
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BREBELLI R HEE
2015 2014
—2-H% —TmF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FHET T
Trade payables eI & 5 BR K 33 2,728 26,871
Other payables and accruals H A JE {5 038 e JEET R IR 34 64,311 157,897
Bank borrowings RITIEE 35 - 87,500
Convertible bonds AREKES 36 2,075,402 1,900,452
Obligations under finance BERERB
leases 37 25,905 43,943
Amount due to a shareholder  [Eft— & IR 1B 48 118,000 -
Amount due to a joint venture  fEf —E & & (b FEHKIE 20 46,195 46,195
2,332,541 2,262,858
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

168

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the
normal course of its business and financial instruments.
The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance as follows:

(i) Market risk
(1)  Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to
adverse movements in foreign exchange rate
relating to foreign currency deposits with banks.
The Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from the trade and
other receivables in the current and prior years.

In addition, foreign exchange risk arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments
in foreign operation. The Group's lottery
business operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in RMB. The conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of the foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

At 31 December 2015, if HK$ had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against the RMB, with all
other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have been lower/higher by approximately
HK$92,983,000 (2014: Nil) and equity would
have been approximately HK$54,517,000 (2014:
HK$127,868,000) lower/higher due to foreign
exchange realignment arising from translating

investments in foreign operations into HKS$.

REXLot Holdings Limited fEZe-R #4ZR B PR AR

43. MBEEAREEREMIAZAAE

(a) MBEMREZE

AEEXBE-REBEETRESRT
AEmp kR BRAR: TERERR (B
SNERBE - RAEFEEAR  RERERN X
RREERRR) EERREREBE SR
B ASE 2 BERAREEEZIN SR
MG AABERER X SKEHREE
BBERBERZBETFZERERE

HEmT

(i) TEmEE
(1) SMEmE

SINBE [ Fi A B B2 A7 PR SR 1T 2 S
KERERZERTNEBTE
EZEERR - NREERKNEE
MBEFEYEAERNERE S
R EMERREMELEZE

RS e iz

SN RRBEER S CHEABE
ERBERRRINEHREFE
BEELINERR NEBZF
SXBERRRALE KA
RHUANREEE - AR
R BINEAR R BEBF A

Z SN B R B R 4R

R-—E—RE+-_A=+—8"
WATHARBERAME, B
B5% @ i FT A E b & B H T
B BHRBEINERZRERE
BBTTEEEN AL FEHH
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)
(i)  Market risk (continued)

(1)

(2)

3)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The above sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that a change in foreign
exchange rate had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to the
exposure to foreign exchange risk for financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 5%
increase or decrease represents management's
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
exchange rate over the period until the next
reporting date. The analysis was performed on
the same basis for 2014.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to cash at banks on a floating
rate basis. Management does not anticipate
significant impair on interest-bearing assets
resulted from changes in interest rates because
the interest rates of bank deposits are not
expected to change significantly. Therefore, the
Directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk is not significant
and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been
prepared.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from investments in equity securities classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss. The Group is not exposed to commodity
price risk. To manage its price risk arising from
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, the Group diversifies its portfolio. The
sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end
of the reporting period.

MEEAREERESMIAZAAE (F)

(a) MBEBREZE ()
(i) TEmE(E)

(1)

(2)

3)

SME R (&)

ETE DA ESURE D AT I T R AR EE
RRRERRESELER W /E
ARZBEFEZeMIEmEZ
SMEE PR o 5%IE MR D R E
BEMFEEE T @RS AL
HR AR EHRZ S IRERE
B —T-NFREURRELEE
T e

HewBRA EFFELE
REBRRITR SRF A X5T
BEmMEAERESREF KRR - A
RIBERIRITIF A A EEFH A
EREW TR R E B e Hat
BEEELEEATE Bt K
RAIEER B NEBAE 2 F =
I SN O e R
BT e

1B E
REFRAERRAZHFIRE (5
HARBRER EZ\\)L@u+EZf‘E

REE) MELEZRERR &
& B 0 AR B R o N
%l”%ﬁ&ﬁ@A'Mﬁﬁl
BEEREAREFEZE®ME
EEMEE Z EE R - LAT B
BT TH IR IR ¥R 25 HA R P 45
Z BB b EEE
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

170

(a)

Financial risk factors (continued)

()

(ii)

Market risk (continued)

(3)  Price risk (continued)
At 31 March 2015, it is estimated that an
increase/a decrease of 10% in the market
value of the Group’s financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, with all other
variables held constant, profit for the year
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$6,394,000 (2014: decrease/increase loss
for the year by approximately HK$5,310,000).
The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
the market value of the Group's investment
portfolio over the period until the next annual
reporting date. The analysis is prepared on the
same basis for 2014.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables, listed investments and
other financial instruments. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible to
compile the credit and risk management policies, to
approve credit limits and determine any debt recovery
action on those delinquent receivables. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount for each
individual account receivable at each reporting date
to ensure that adequate allowances for impairment
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is also limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. In
this regard, the Directors of the Group consider that
the Group's credit risk is effectively controlled and
significantly reduced.

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR

43. BHEBREEREMIAZAAE(B)

(a)

MHEABRER (&)
(i) TEmE(E)

(ii)

(3) 1EELE (&)
R=-F—haF=ZA=+—8"
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D10%  MATE B FHAERFD
2 R[G5 5| BUF E % A 3 0
/R 476,394,000 7T (= &
—MmFE: FEBIERD LMY
5,310,000/ 7T) - Lt & H) &
EEEFMNGEEE T —EAFER
SEHIEEHBATRELEE 2 AE
BEREHETEAEZH =T
— N FE AR EEEITHHN -

= B /m B
AEBzEERBREIEREEREKES
AR EMERRIE ETRERE
themMITAE-EREREEERE
VR BEEEAAEZEERR R
EREEERR AEEEEEDR
E—xBh- BAEWNTEERERE
BEHER BHEERBRAERIER
P& U TR IR R ER 2 Y [ B IR 1T & - it
Sh - REBN R R E A FH SR EH
FEWHR R 2 Al W Bl 58 - LATEGRE 5L
A AU A 5 B 1 5T R R B B

HRRZHFRERBREETREE
ARSEEFRZRT BWRADES
EFERBRITBAR -SRI E A&
BE=RR AEEZEERARXE
B R ) I 58 R -



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Credit risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a
certain concentration of credit risk as approximately
8% (2014: 8%) of the total trade and other
receivables were due from the five largest customers.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group's exposures to credit risk arising from
trade receivables, utility and other deposits, and
prepayments and other receivables are set out in
Notes 24, 25 and 26 respectively.

Liquidity risk

The Group is exposed to liquidity risk on financial
liabilities. To address the risk, management is
responsible for its own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the management when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

43. BHEBREEREMIAZAAE(B)

(a) MBEBREZE(E)
(i) EEmE (&)
RBERAR BARO8% (ZF— M
F:8% ) 2 EWE 5 8RR I H A fE U
RAEERAOLRER AN EE %
BETE&EFEERR-

EBEASERERESER RAS
ERHEMBRSURTESRER Mt E
WHEMELEZ EERRZE—FE
EHE - D RENK 24 - 25526 °

(iii) 7 B & % A B
AEBRCRABEMAERDESRE
BernREABARR BEEEAEAN
GrReER RIERS ARG ZEH
RENREEEFRANENBHRR ST
KoMEERBEREZE THEEK
FoRAIABEEEEBZHE - AEE
ZHREDEHEERERBESEX
RBTERERFEZEN  ABRER
MRS REBERAIBEREEBEE
F URESTESRmEBIREZR
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
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43. BHEBREEREMIAZAAE(BE)

REXLot Holdings Limited fEZe-R #4ZR B PR AR

(a) Financial risk factors (continued) (a) HMBERAKREZE(E)
(iii) Liquidity risk (continued) (i) TEBELEE (&)
The following tables detail the remaining contractual TRATAEBSRBERRERK
maturities at the end of the reporting period of 2B TERNRNEIER  ThAE KR
the Group's financial liabilities, which are based RReRE (BEERGOMES (40
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including BEE)BRBHREAREANEGTHE
interest payments computed using contractual rates Z BT R A KA & [ Al E SR E
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of EEBARBZEERABRARKE:
the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:
Total Within More than
contractual 1 year 1 year but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than
amount cash flows demand 5 years
BHRRER —FRAR BR—F
REE RERELE RER BRREF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIET TFET TFET FET
2015 —E-RF
Trade payables B8 SRR 2,728 2,728 2,728 =
Other payables and accruals H fth F& A R IE R FE AT IR 64,311 64,311 64,311 -
Convertible bonds AR ESH 2,075,402 2,199,963 1,883,333 316,630
Obligations under finance leases mEREES 25,905 27,009 18,032 8,977
Amount due to a shareholder FEAT — & PR R FRIE 118,000 118,675 118,675 -
Amount due to a joint venture BN —EAERERE 46,195 46,195 46,195 =
2,332,541 2,458,881 2,133,274 325,607
2014 —E-WF
Trade payables R E SRR 26,871 26,871 26,871 -
Other payables and accruals H fth FE A 3R IE K FE AT ARIE 157,897 157,897 157,897 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 87,500 89,680 89,680 -
Convertible bonds R ES 1,900,452 2,652,513 106,657 2,545,856
Obligations under finance leases BMEREER 43,943 47,959 19,251 28,708
Amount due to a joint venture BN —HEEERE 46,195 46,195 46,195 -

2,262,858

3,021,115

446,551

2,574,564
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Fair value measurement

()

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables present the fair value of the

Group's financial instruments measured at the end of

the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised

into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined

in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level

into which a fair value measurement is classified

is determined with reference to the observability

and significance of the inputs used in the valuation

technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
at the measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are

inputs for which market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

MEBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZZ

—hAF+t_H=1t—BLFE

43. MBEAREERESMTIAZAARE (F)

(b)

Ny

()

REE
7z

BAREBZEHEERER

AR EFR

NREIN AT B IS ERIE 1357
“%@JgJ%ﬁmZEF&#@%
D UREEEEERREHR

JEZ$%IéﬂIEZ’ fAEA
AREFENEZER2REERMPT
AR ABZABRREEREETEN
T~

. —AREE: ENRE-REBA
@(%Eé%m%imﬂﬁéﬁ
BERFEAHZ RAERAER
BIFFEZRAE

s F_AME FBRE_LBAE
(BTN eE—RZ2ABRE
AE) T AFAERDA B E
BABFEZAAE TAIBE
BAERBEENSETSREZEH
AE

o FB=RME: NAERTAHE
BABAEZAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF 43. BBEBREEREMIAZAARME (E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Fair value measurement (continued) (b) ARMEFE(E)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair (i) BAREFNEBZLHEERERE
value (continued) (#&)

Fair value measurements
categorised into

MREHEZIE
Fair value
at
31 December Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R+=A
=t-H2
ARE F-% E-& E=H
HK'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FHET FHET FET
2015 —2-IF
Recurring fair value measurements: BEMRRENE:
Financial assets at fair value through BRABERANEFEZ

profit or loss: SREE:

— Listed equity investment — FTRARKRE 63,935 63,935 = =
2014 —E-|mF
Recurring fair value measurements: BEURARENE:

Financial assets at fair value through BBABERANEFEZ

profit or loss: SREE:

- Listed equity investment — FTRARKE 53,102 53,102 = =
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and BE_Z—NEER-_ZT—HF+=A
2015, there was no significant transfer between =+—HULEFE ZF—REF-_FHZ
investments in Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or REWEERER  NEE AL =Hs
out of Level 3. HE=HEL -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

43. BHEBREEREMIAZAAE(B)

(b) Fair value measurement (continued) (b) DARMEFE(HE)
(i)  Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried (i) BAABEUSEZEIRZ ZHBEER
at other than fair value BEZALE
The carrying amounts of the Group's and the NG DS FIN/NCIR 9% NE % 2 DN |
Company’s financial instruments, including the EremIA(REAHEESHE
available-for-sale financial assets (Note 21), carried E(Kag21) ) 2 FEEER=_Z—H
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different FRZZE—NFF_A=+—HBZA
from their fair values as at 31 December 2015 and RNEWEEAEZE ETIERT AR
2014 except for the following financial instruments, SheRIhe BT A ZBREER A 7 BN
for which their carrying amount and fair value and RARBERFERERNAT
the level of fair value hierarchy are disclosed below:
Fair value measurements
as at 31.12.2015 categorised into
RZB-AF+ZA=t-HZ
AREHESE
Carrying Fair
amount at value at
31.12.2015 31.12.2015 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
R-Z-1F R-ZB-1%F
+=A +=A
=+-8  =t-A
ZERHEE ZDfE £-8 E-R E=/
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Convertible bonds AR E S 2,075,402 1,564,812 - - 1,564,812
Fair value measurements
as at 31.12.2014 categorised into
RZE-ME+=A=+—-H2
AREFHENE
Carrying Fair
amount at value at
31.12.2014  31.12.2014 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
RZFB-—RE RZF-EEF
+=A +=A
=t-8 =1-8
ZIEEA ZANE £ F-% o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FET FET
Convertible bonds AHRES 1,900,452 1,755,071 - - 1,755,071
Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair FE=RAAEFTEAZ G ERMR
value measurements BAE
The fair value of the convertible bonds is estimated Mk ESF 2 AR ERGRARE S
as being the present values of future cash flows, MEZRE DER-ZZE-—HAFR=
discounted at interest rates based on the government Z—NFE+ZA=1+T—HBURBFKE
yield curve as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 plus ERMBTHEZMERER SNRRZ
an adequate constant credit spread, adjusted for the ErEE=E UYHASEELRF 2=
Group’s own credit risk. ERELAE-
1
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

44. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

176

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to
finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light

of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. For this
purpose the Group defines debts as total debts (which includes
bank borrowings, obligations under finance leases, trade and
other payables, amount due to a joint venture and liability
component of convertible bonds plus unaccrued proposed
dividends). Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity,
other than amounts recognised in equity relating to cash flow
hedges, less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the year, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2014, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at
a reasonable level. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR

44.

EXRE TR
AEHEREAZEERBEDNREASEER
HERBRHBEREAELE  KMEBERRK
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AEBEETHRH REREARE  URER
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A PR A B RO A 0 AR M 1 B

HITEEN B AEBRAEEHEAREARLL
REREREARBZELE -BUTE  A5H
RAEBBREBAR (BRERTER BEEE
B BN E SRR REAMEN KA BN —H
BEMEFRANRAIMEES 2 B E# D Nk
RFEEER) RAREXNBIEESE ZAE B
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REABREALREFNAIEKF - BRITHFR
ZHE AEEAREABRRNTRRZEE S
BBITHRGD REEATRE FIEELH
B EEERE-



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ=Z

—hAF+t_H=t—BLFE

44. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 44. EXEBEE (F)
The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 December 2015 and RZE—AFE-ZT—WNF+=-A=+—HZ
2014 were as follows: ERHLEAEERNLEQMAT :
2015 2014
—E-HE —PaF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current liabilities: BB E -
Trade payables FERTE 5 R 2,728 26,871
Other payables and accruals E i FE S FRIE K FE R FRIE 64,311 157,897
Bank borrowings RITEE - 87,500
Current portion of convertible bonds ARRES 2 RBHBH 1,824,629 =
Obligations under finance leases MEHEE® 17,038 16,681
Amount due to a shareholder FE — B FRIE 118,000 -
2,026,706 288,949
Non-current liabilities: BB E -
Amount due to a joint venture FET — & &R 46,195 46,195
Convertible bonds, the liability component AR EH - B EILH 250,773 1,900,452
Obligations under finance leases BREHERR 8,867 27,262
Total debts (EREE 2,332,541 2,262,858
Proposed final dividend EERARERE = 79,680
Adjusted debts R B ETS 2,332,541 2,342,538
Adjusted capital B E K 6,085,403 6,060,426
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B FEECAEE AR L= 38% 39%
The Group is not subject to either internally or externally AEBHANEINGBEARTFEMERERK.

imposed capital requirements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

45. ACQUISITIONS OF LOTTERY BUSINESSES 45. WL Z XK

178

Acquisition of a subsidiary during 2014

A wholly owned subsidiary of the Company entered into a
memorandum and a supplemental memorandum in May 2014
and July 2014 respectively to acquire 100% equity interest in
Pointe Global Limited (“Pointe”) by stages, from an independent
third party at a total cash consideration of RMB85,500,000
(equivalent to HK$106,952,000). The acquisition of 51%
equity interest of Pointe at a consideration of RMB5,500,000
(equivalent to HK$6,952,000) was completed in August 2014. In
accordance with the terms of the memorandum, the vendor of
Pointe agreed to form a company (the “Operating Subsidiary”)
in the PRC with a subsidiary of the Group that the Group will
hold 60% equity interest of the Operating Subsidiary. The
Operating Subsidiary will engage in the provision and related
services for Sports video lottery terminals in the PRC.

The Group has an option to purchase the remaining 49%
equity interest in Pointe at a consideration of RMB80,000,000
(equivalent to HK$100,000,000). Upon all conditions in the
memorandum and supplemental memorandum are fulfilled, the
Group will exercise its option to acquire the remaining 49%
equity interest of Pointe (Note 46). Otherwise, all the amount
paid will be refunded.

Pointe did not commence its business in 2014 and thus did not
contribute any revenue and profit to the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of Pointe were
considered as Nil at the date of acquisition, therefore, goodwill
of HK$6,952,000 (Note 18) arose as a result of the acquisition.

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR

R-ZE—NFRE-—HEHEAR
R-ZE—NERAR-_S—NFE+LH KAAF—
HE2EWB AR AEERERERER
LAY B BR [ — 2 78 37 55 = J7 W B X Pointe Global
Limited ([Pointe ] ) Z100% /% # #2318 & K (&
A AR ¥85,500,0007T (#8557 106,952,000
JL) ° Pointe 51% M EZWEE R =T —MF
NA R KE#A AR%S5,500,0007T (HER
6,952,000 7T ) ° IREBEHE 8K Pointez B
FREAARNER —FHWEAREFHKL—MH
Al ([EEMRBRA]) BAARKEREE SEMN
BATZ60%MKE - LEHBRAGNTRESE
RS SRS =2 Rin R AR RS -

ANEE A EENREARK80,000,0005T (48
% #100,000,0007 7T ) B8 E Pointeft T49% %
B R E SRR T B IR EXE -

NEE AT E R EE R Pointeft T49 % Ak
W (fiatd6) BRI FIBENRIERSRE:-

PointeRZ T —MNFHABFE HREBEE=-ZT
—MFE+ A=+ BULEFEYELALAEERS
FAEAULA B %% F ° PointeZ AT BIEE - B &
ERIARBBEZARERBEBHRERAST K
It - B 2 TE WS T EE A 78 26,952,000 T (A
i£18) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HZEZ=Z

46. ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

In October 2014, the Group acquired an additional 6.60%
of the equity interest in MBEZXR (It R)BERDERA A
Ltd*) (“Beijing Okooo") for a
purchase consideration of HK$381,100,000. The Group now
holds 66.60% of the equity capital of Beijing Okooo. The Group

(Beijing Okooo Technology Co.,

derecognised non-controlling interests of HK$22,985,000 and
recorded a decrease in equity attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of HK$358,115,000.

In December 2014,
memorandum and supplemental memorandum had been

all terms and conditions of the

fulfilled and the Operating Subsidiary had commenced to
prepare the operation, the Group exercised its option to
acquire the remaining 49% of the equity interest in Pointe
(Note 45) at a consideration of RMB80,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$100,000,000). The Group now holds 100% equity capital of
Pointe. The carrying amount of the non-controlling interests in
Pointe on the date of acquisition were Nil. The Group recognised
the consideration paid at HK$100,000,000 directly in equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company.

The effect of changes in the ownership interest mentioned
above on the equity attributable to shareholders of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2014 is

summarised as follows:

46.

MBEHRKE (&)

—hAF+t_H=t—BLFE

RKTB ARz B

RZZT—MFE+A AEEKBRRERZR (4
FO)OREBRMBERAR ([EFRE]) Z @I
6.60% A% #% - & & LB /381,100,000 7T ° A&
SEAKIFEILRRBE 266.60%KRE - AEHE
4R ERERIEFE AR 2522,985,000/8 7T © W £ 15 AR

A A)HE 2 IR SR FE (G A 25 R 42358, 115,000 T °
R_Z—NE+_A B hkfxnEniiz

Fﬁﬁﬂmﬂ&ﬂﬂiﬁﬁé%ﬁﬁi & E B A A
EHpEREE ANEETELREREKE
PointeZ 88 N49% X #E (f/7745) HRE /AR
#80,000,0007T (85 5 100,000,000/ L) °
7K £ B IR IF 35 B Pointe 2 100% % 4% ° A Pointe
ZIERERERERR 2 EAEAT - ASE
RARTERRREGCEZEERRENNE
100,000,000/ T °

LA EER B E T —NF+ A
=+ BLEFEARRBRRELHERZZER
MR ¢

HK$'000
TET
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired & Uk B FE 12 iR i 25 2 BRI B 22,985
Consideration paid to non-controlling interests BN EERERRE (481,100)
Excess of consideration paid recognised BHERAEEERERCENRE
in Group's equity (458,115)
Annual Report 2015 =—Z—H4F4Fif 179



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

47. DECONSOLIDATION OF A SUBSIDIARY
As detailed in Note 4B, the Group deconsolidated the PRC
Company as the Group determined that the Group did not have
control or significant influence over the PRC Company. The
Group therefore concluded to deconsolidate the PRC Company
from the consolidated financial statements with effect from 1
January 2014.

The net assets of the PRC Company as of 1 January 2014 are set

47.

RIEGREAR—BHRELR

MUK EEABRAT AL ARBE R I E ARZT
BAR REARASEEEASEL ESZHH
RAGEEEGEIBAZE N - At REBR
EH_Z-—NF-A-BERGEaUBHRRE
LA ARZBBE AR -

FZHEARR -_E-—HFE-A-—HZEEFE

out below:

FHHME

HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) M BE NEE (M 16) 864
Trade and other receivables FE W E 5 AR 3k & H i & U R IE 65,751
Cash and cash equivalents ReERAEEEY 35,933
Trade and other payables &1 8 5 R 3 I B 8 A< R IR (18,892)
Current tax liabilities EHTIEAE (3,892)
Net assets deconsolidated ERILGE AREEFE 79,764
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR 4 2 (31,905)
Cost of investment reclassified to available-for-sale ENOEEAHEESREELZ
financial assets (Note 21) WEKA (H5E21) (38,462)
Loss on deconsolidation of a subsidiary RIEGEAEAE—MHNBARZEE 9,397
Loss on deconsolidation of a subsidiary attributable to: LA TN AL EERIEGAEAR—HBARZ
18
Equity shareholders of the Company AR E RS IR 5,638
Non-controlling interests FE 2 A% 42 25 3,759
Loss on deconsolidation of a subsidiary RIEGAEAERE—BNBRARZERE 9,397
Net cash outflow arising on deconsolidation of RILGAEAER—RNBRAREELEZ
a subsidiary RE ML FE
Cash and cash equivalents of a subsidiary ERIEGREARZ —HRBARZ
deconsolidated RekREEEY 35,933
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

48. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED
PARTIES

(a)

48. BBH R 5 R &R

Details of the Group's significant transactions and balances (@) ANEBRENZGELTEEEFETEAR
with the following related parties during the year are as S REH FIEWT
follows:
2015 2014
—E2-AfF —T—mF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Director/Shareholder: B RE:
Balance due from the Group JE UK = [ 4 4 118,000 -
Subscription of convertible bonds REBARRES (AE360))

(Note 36(i)) - 300,000
Redemption of convertible bonds HE B AT AR B & 15,000 -
Convertible bonds interest paid B AR ESRT E 13,443 7,178
Consent fee paid for delaying HIEEBERATMRESENZAER

redemption of convertible bonds 3,000 -

In the opinion of the Directors, including the Independent
Non-executive Directors, the above transactions were
entered into in the Group’'s ordinary course of business
or at terms agreed by both parties. The balance due to
a shareholder is unsecured and repayable within one
year. Except for the balance of HK$15,000,000 bearing
interest at 4.5% per annum, the remaining balance of
HK$103,000,000 is interest free.

During both years, compensation of key management
personnel represents Directors’ emoluments and those of
senior staff as stated in Notes 10 and 11. The Directors’
emoluments are determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance,
responsibilities and experience of individuals and market
trends.

EXZ(REBYEATES)RA LA
SIRAEB B EXEBBREPLIZEFH
TEZARFRAEAT o BB — B IR R 45 65 1 A 35 3
MR —FN{EE-%15000,000%8 T2
HEERRF R F4.5F 5 250 103,000,000
BILTZBRTEHRREE -

RMEFER T2EE A8 FHMEME
TORNAINZEZERRRETZHM &
EFEFNEEe2REARE BA
REBARTSBEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 49. EEMERKRENZIET FENRRER
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT BELE2HE
YET EFFECTIVE
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial HEAGEVBHRERTNZEAS AESHAAE

statements, the HKICPA has issued the following amendments,
new standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and which have not been

adopted in these consolidated financial statements:

EREHATRBE-_ZE-—AF+-_A=+—H
IEFE M ARERE W RN AL S B REK AR
M2Ea] HERRRE:

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

RIS BEHR &R Z
EhRlTER

Amendments to HKFRSs
BB GG LR 2BF]

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

EBE R LR E10H R
BB G ERIE28% 2 B4

Amendments to HKFRS 11
BB B ELERNENRZAEFT

Amendments to HKAS 1
BB EANE1R ZEET

Amendments to HKAS 7
BEGFTERNETIR ZIEFT

Amendments to HKAS 12
BB ERE125 2185

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28

BB
LR T

X RIS 1058
=
BB g ER

SEAFE125 R
H285 2 ER]

N

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

EH e ERE 168 R
7 @ =1 BI| B 3898 > (& 2T

182 REXLot Holdings Limited #1242 AR AT

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

BB GRS ER 2 FEEGE
(Z2E——FZEZ_Z—FHEH)

Sales or contribution of assets between an investor

and its associate or joint venture
KEEEABENANEERERZ
BEHEIRA

Accounting for acquisitions of interests
in joint operations

WEaERG#EE 2t Rz

Disclosure initiative

WEERT B

Disclosure initiative

AT &

Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised loss
AR BEERBRENIALE

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation
exception
REER : EBREEARZOIIMER

Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

BRI ZTEREHITE

1 January 2016
—E—XRF—A—H

To be determined

FE

1 January 2016

1 January 2016
—Z2—XF—-A—H

1 January 2017
—ET—tF—H—H

1 January 2017

- tF-A—A

1 January 2016

—T—R~F—HA—H

1 January 2016
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49. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 49. EHEMEEARERZET FEARZREN

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

REEZEE (E)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RTI Bz &SR
ChERIEES

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
BEGETERE 1698 R
BB ERE45 2 EE]

Amendments to HKAS 27
BB ERE275 255

HKFRS 16
BBMGHRE LN 165

HKFRS 14
BB RS ERIE 1458

HKFRS 15
BB MG E L 155

N

HKFRS 9
BB B s 2 A S 95%

The Group is yet to assess the full impact of these amendments
and new standards on its consolidated financial statements. In HREMBHRERZEE

the opinion of Directors, all of the new developments are not

Agriculture: Bearer plants

B¥E EEMNEEY

Equity method in separate financial statements

B B WmR A A

Leases
HE

Regulatory deferral accounts
EERLERA

Revenue from contracts with customers

BEPAKKA

Financial instruments
SETHE

expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial

statements.

1 January 2016
—E-RF—-HA—H

1 January 2016

—E-RF—HA—H

1 January 2019
—ZET-hFE—HA—H

1 January 2016
—ZT-AF—A—H

1 January 2018
—ZT-N\FE—-—HA—H

1 January 2018
—Z-N\F—HA—H

REBRFAAREFERFE LA EREE
TE-BEERR BHME
MBERITGHEAMBRREREATZE -
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50. RTBRARZRE
TREJNEHAKE 2 XS BEXRBEREXN
TEZMBARFE-

50. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the

Group.
Place of Principal Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation/ activities and registered and interest
Name registration place of operation paid up capital held
BRI/ EMK
=L AR AR LR A i 2 TEXBREXME BRAERE ERFEE FrisBE s
REXCAPITAL Financial Group  British Virgin Islands Investment holding 197,400,856 ordinary shares 100%
Limited KBEXES in Hong Kong of HK$1 each
REBETREZR 197,400,856k G AR (B 175 7T
2 Bk
REXCAPITAL Financial British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
Management Limited RBEXHES in Hong Kong 1REEIELZ EEBR
REBETREZR
Genius Nation Limited British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
EBRZHES in Hong Kong IREEIET TR
REBETREZR
Huge Top Enterprises Inc. British Virgin Islands Investment holding 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
EBRZES in Hong Kong IREEIET TR
REBETREZR
Hilson Gold Limited British Virgin Islands Provision of system 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
KBRS software in the PRC 1REEIETZ LT BR
R BER ft R
Luxjoy Overseas Limited Samoa Provision of system 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
TEEED software in the PRC 1REEIETZ L BR
R BER ft R
Wai Tian Limited British Virgin Islands Provision of system 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100%
INRBBRA A KBRS software in the PRC 1REEIETZ L BR
R ER ft R
Oriental View Limited Hong Kong Investment holding Ordinary share of HK$1 100%
EBHRAA BB in Hong Kong 18T EBR
REBETREZR
REXCAPITAL Corporate Hong Kong Arrangement of Ordinary shares of HK$2 100%
Management Limited B administration services 28Tz EER
HEEEEERRAA for group companies in
Hong Kong
REBREERNRIRH
1TH RS
REXCAPITAL Finance Limited ~ Hong Kong Money lending and Ordinary shares of 100%
HREERRDA BB investment trading in HK$2,000,000

Hong Kong 2,000,000/ 7T 2 & B AR

REBETERRKRE

BE
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

50. RMMBARZRE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

Place of Principal Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation/ activities and registered and interest
Name registration place of operation paid up capital held
BRT/ 2K
=L AR AR LR i 2 TEXBREXME BRAERE ERFEE FrisBE &
BMERRERRDA PRC Investment holding HK$153,885,941 100%
(REXLot Investment H in the PRC 153,885,941 7T
(Guangzhou) Co Ltd*) P B HETTIR & R
I B AL EUE B Al PRC Provision of lottery RMB35,560,000 100%
BRAR H machines and software AR #35,560,0007T
(Shenzhen Sinodata system in the PRC
Technology Co Ltd*) R BRI R
I B AL U R RS PRC Provision of maintenance RMB2,000,000 100%
BRAT H service for lottery AR #2,000,00070
(Shenzhen Sinodata machines in the PRC
Equipment Services R BREYRELES
Co., Ltd.*) PR 75
I B SR AR Al PRC Provision of non- RMB30,000,000 100%
BEREEAA H traditional Welfare AR #30,000,0007C
(Shenzhen Sinocyber CTG and paperless
Tech Co., Ltd.*) lottery system and
services to industry
specific channels
RiEEERREREE
BRENEKRRE
BECRR RS KRG
RN & 0N B Bl PRC Production of lottery RMB55,000,000 100%
BRAA il machines in the PRC AR #55,000,0007T
(Shenzhen Kingsail RABEERER
Software Tech Co Ltd*)
RN T EFRFAERE PRC Investment holding RMB30,000,000 100%
ARRF G in the PRC AR #30,000,0007C
(REXLot Investment R B THR B ER
(Shenzhen) Co Ltd*)
ERELTHERE PRC Provision of lottery RMB44,000,000 100%
BERAA H printing service AR #44,000,0007C
(Beijing Xinan Sino-lottery in the PRC
Technology Co Ltd*) PA FR B 4R 1 %2 2= Bl PR 75
BEMT AR PRC Production of lottery RMB55,000,000 90%
BRAA H machines in the PRC AR #55,000,0007C

(Guangzhou Latech
Technology Co Ltd*)

R B AEEY F#
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

50.

186

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

50. RMMBARZRE ()

Place of Principal Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation/ activities and registered and interest
Name registration place of operation paid up capital held
BRI/ EMK
=L AR AR LR i 2 TEXBREXME BHRERA ERFEE EERER
JE R EERN 5 & §H R RS PRC Lottery distribution and RMB 1,280,000 60%
BERAA H marketing business AR #1,280,0007T
(Beijing Lohowin in the PRC
Marketing Co Ltd*) R BLEITR Ehe xR
BEES
R 1E R A4 {5 B B PRC Provision of marketing RMB 10,000,000 80%
BERAA H services for lottery AR #10,000,0007T
business in the PRC
RABRHEYREBZ
3% R 75
RIS R B R A A PRC Lottery distribution and RMB 10,000,000 100%
H marketing business AR #10,000,0007C
in the PRC
PR B HETT R R ALK R
BEES
TREBZEZHBEARDA  PRC Investment holding RMB 100,000 100%
G in the PRC AR #100,0007C
P B HETTIR & R
FEAMK (4t =) B PRC Provision of mobile RMB30,000,000 50%*
BRAT H value-added services AR #30,000,0007T
(Elottery Vision (Beijing) for lottery business
Technology Co Ltd*) in the PRC
R BB F R B Rt
FRIEERSE
ERSBEBREARAR  PRC Provision of mobile RMB 10,000,000 50%"*
H value-added services AR #10,000,0007C
for lottery business
in the PRC
R BB R R it
FHRIZERS
ERRABEREARAR  PRC Provision of mobile RMB1,010,000 50%"
H value-added services AR#1,010,0007T
for lottery business
in the PRC
P BB R R R TR it
FHIZERT
I S R B AR AR PRC Provision of mobile RMB2,000,000 50%*
BEREEDA H value-added services AR #2,000,0007T

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 50. RMBRARIZRE (&)

Place of Principal Particulars of issued/ Effective
incorporation/ activities and registered and interest
Name registration place of operation paid up capital held
BRT/ 2K
=L AR AR LR i 2 TEXBREXME BRAERE ERFEE FrisBE &
BEZR (ER)BEkn PRC Provision of services RMB50,000,000 66.6%"
BRAR H to paperless and AR #50,000,0007T
(Beijing Okooo Technology electronic lottery
Co., Ltd.*) platform in the PRC
RABERERLEFEER
FaRMRE
RINTREE HERR A PRC Investment holding and RMB 100,000 100%
H provision of services AR #100,0007T
to paperless and
electronic lottery
platform in the PRC
R BETREER R
AEACETFHETR
R RS
RN B MR PRC Provision of lottery system  RMB10,000,000 50%"
MEARARF H support services AR #10,000,0007C
(Shenzhen Siyuan Zhuoyue REXZEZHTIERAE
Technology Development
Co., Ltd.*)
# These investee companies are regarded as subsidiaries of the & BELREBEREZSERRERAZ50%%F

B EZEERRRERAIRERDFEEZ N E L
Al BEEZEim s MR P EEFFALZEFERRE
REBFYURERE K AEEHEREHLTERE

BaiE TR EERIRENAZIEMBEE -

Group, although the Group has only 50% ownership in these
investee companies. The Directors concluded that the Group has a
sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities
of these investee companies as the Group holds more than half the
voting rights in these investees.

interest entity structure which has been in place since 2011. In
August 2014, the Group perfected the arrangement by entering
into a nominee agreement in respect of the 60% interest. In
October 2014, the Group further acquired an additional 6.6%

B The Group holds 60% interest in Beijing Okooo through a variable s

AR =F——FHEEB BT E W BEREEE
FHEILFREC0% Bz - R —FE—PFNA AE
EEBRZ60% BRI LR EANGHE TEFH
ZH-R_F—HFE+H FEEZBRELFFZ
P — SR B R E6.6% 1

interest in Beljing Okooo through a nominee arrangement.

The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the none
of the Group’s subsidiaries that has non-controlling interests
are material to the consolidated financial statements as a whole
and therefore, the financial information in respect of those

ARFEFRE BAEFERESZAKENE
RAHGEEMBEREERLIEA FKt- A
FEHREES ZME AR 2P B ER AL IR
BE B R R E 125 [REXE b E e
subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests are not presented | 25
under HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entitites.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

51.

188

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 51. AREEZHEAMRRR
POSITION
2015 2014
—E—FHF —E-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt F#ET FE
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KB AR Z s 7,050,476 5,824,074
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary &Y — & M B 2 &) FUE 426,000 1,500,000
Prepayments TEH R IE 4 25
Cash and bank balances e RIBRITHER 2,404 47,166
Total current assets REBEEHE 428,408 1,547,191
Total assets EEHE 7,478,884 7,371,265
EQUITY Ex
Capital and reserves EAREERRELEELRRHERE
attributable to
equity shareholders of
the Company
Share capital [N 30 99,835 99,600
Reserves (see Notes (a)) s (K i) 5,176,022 5,266,772
Proposed final dividend EEARERE - 79,680
Total equity A 5,275,857 5,446,052
LIABILITIES & 1&
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible bonds Al R E 5 250,773 1,900,452
Current liabilities b ==
Other payables and accruals E i JE A 5RIE & B AT UE 9,625 24,761
Shareholder loan B& R E 118,000 =
Current portion of ARKRESZRBIBD
convertible bonds 1,824,629 -
Total current liabilities RBEEHEE 1,952,254 24,761
Total liabilities EEAE 2,203,027 1,925,213
Total equity and liabilities EEREERE 7,478,884 7,371,265
Net current (liabilities)/ RE(EE) EEFE
assets (1,523,846) 1,522,430

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board on 31 March 2016 and are signed on behalf of the

Board by:

Chan How Chung, Victor

(]
Director

EF

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR

MBEBRRER T R"F=ZA=1+HEEZF
BRERRETE ITHTINEETSRRES:

Boo Chun Lon
I BE
Director

EF
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION (continued)

Note (a) Reserve movement of the Company

51. AREEZMBRRER (F)

Kiit(a) RRBRZRERBRE

Capital Convertible Share-based Proposed
Share redemption bonds payment Contributed Retained final
Premium reserve reserve reserve surplus profits dividend Total
&% ARR  ARBXA B3
R4 RE WE A BHERE HEZRE E-ON:A- REEF AERE At
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2014 3,180,903 2,345 212,388 346 199,605 468,518 168,644 4,232,749
Profit for the year - - - - - 483,339 - 483,339
Issue of new shares BITHBRH 112,020 - - - - - - 112,020
Recognition of share option BRAR ERREREET
benefits at fair value - - - 13,708 - - - 13,708
Repurchase of shares L4890 (53,357) 680 - - - (680) = (53,357)
Transfer to share premium ArBREnERZERHER
on exercise of share options 5,651 - - (5,651) - - - -
Issue of shares upon conversion of  FAEIR AR E 5K B 1TRH
convertible bonds (Note 36) (Hiz#36) 647,768 - (94,079) - - - - 553,689
Convertible bonds - equity AHRRES-REHH
component, net of (IR BRAK) (Hii136)
transaction costs (Note 36) - - 296,730 - - = = 296,730
2013 proposed final dividend paid —T-=FRRMAEHERERE 48,401 - - - - (5,989) (168,644) (126,232)
Interim dividend (Note 13) RS (HiE13) 60,987 - - - - (227,181) = (166,194)
2014 proposed final dividend T -MERERARE (HH13)
(Note 13) - - - - - (79,680) 79,680 -
At 31 December 2014 and R-ZZ-EME+-A=+-AK
1 January 2015 —E-R%—A—-H 4,002,373 3,025 415,039 8,403 199,605 638,327 79,680 5,346,452
Loss for the year FEFRE - - - - - (86,816) = (86,816)
Lapse of share options B R 2K - - - (2,074) - 2,074 = =
Redemption of convertible bonds B ARk ES (H2236)
(Note 36) - - (20,752) - - 6,261 - (14,491)
2014 proposed final dividend paid “Z-MERRNEBERBRS
(Note 13) (Hrit13) 10,557 - - - - - (79,680) (69,123)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-AF+=-A=t-H 4,012,930 3,025 394,287 6,329 199,605 559,846 - 5,176,022
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBHERRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #EZZE—RAF+-_A=+—HILFE

52. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

190

(i)

As disclosed in Note 15 in relation to the Disposal,
Restructuring needs to be completed before completion
of the Disposal to put the Disposal Group in place. The
Restructuring involves the transfer of certain equity
interests in the PRC. The contracts and all necessary
documents and reports to effect such equity transfer have
been executed by the relevant parties and submitted to
the relevant PRC authority for approval and registration,
but the relevant approval and registration have not yet
been effected (collectively, “Outstanding Restructuring
PRC Approval”).
PRC Approval is still pending, completion of the Disposal

Since the Outstanding Restructuring

has not yet taken place as at the date of approval of
these consolidated financial statements. The Company,
having consulted its PRC legal counsel, expects that the
Outstanding Restructuring PRC Approval should be able to
be obtained and completion of the Disposal should be able
to take place, by no later than 29 April 2016. Accordingly,
the Company has made an announcement that the seller
and the purchaser have agreed to extend the long stop
date defined under the Sale and Purchase Agreement to
29 April 2016 so that the completion of the Disposal may
take place on or before such date, subject to the obtaining
of the Outstanding Restructuring PRC Approval. Further
details are disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 29 March 2016.

REXLot Holdings Limited 2=/ #4ZR B R AR

52. MEMKRKRIARER

)

HMBEBHESFRZMEIANE 54
ANBHEERTKRAI K AELEEE
PRI -EEFREENFEZE T E-
CHEBEREEEERZANRMAEBEX
HRBEEHBHETHABELLER T H
B 4 B8 B PT A L HEE K B AT - MEARBE AL &
REGLHATK (78 [ HARDEATE
B ~ER AR B ERTBEIEDSF
BRIt EFSMBHRKR A HESE
HARTERK o LR AR R BDEEBER %R AR
AR BB BE RIS W AR IR i B AR P B LU
MEEERZ KB NER TR
MA-+hBEEE- -FEit ARARE A%
BEHEESTERBHEE RN E 2K
BREITEHEEE—"Z-—R"FEA=-TAI
B B EFEA N % A #2352

HAFREHARHOEATEAER 7
AJERE - E—THBERARRABHA -
E-REF=ZA-+NBZRMHEE-



Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

MBEHRKE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 #HEZZ—RF+-_A=+—RHILFE

52. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD (continued)

(if)

As disclosed in Note 36, the Company is required to
redeem the Bonds which are subject to redemption
notices and in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$1,848,415,000 on 31 March 2016. Given that the
completion of the Disposal could not take place before 31
March 2016 because the Outstanding Restructuring PRC
Approval could not be obtained in time, the Company does
not have sufficient cash resources to satisfy its redemption
obligations in relation to the Bonds on 31 March 2016. The
Company will, starting from 1 April 2016, be in default
under the Bonds. The trustee or the Bondholders through
the trustee may take legal actions against the Company
in respect of the Bonds. In that case, the business of
the Group and the interests of the Company and the
shareholders may be materially and adversely affected.
However, the Company, having consulted its legal advisers,
expects the possible courses of actions to be taken by the
trustee would not have substantial impact on the Company
provided that the completion takes place before 29 April
2016.

The Company is seeking the Bondholders’ consent to delay
the redemption date from 31 March 2016 to a date no
later than 29 April 2016 in order to allow sufficient time
for the Company to complete the Disposal so as to enable
the Company has sufficient cash resources to satisfy its
redemption obligations under the Bonds. The proposal for
the delay will only take effect if the conditions set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 29 March 2016 are
satisfied on or before 12 April 2016. One of the conditions
require that written resolutions have to be passed by not
less than 90 per cent of the aggregate principal amount
of the Bonds outstanding and the total maximum amount
of consent fees up to approximately HK$7,058,000 will be
payable to the eligible Bondholders who vote in favour of
the written resolution in the prescribed manner (subject to
the satisfaction of the relevant conditions). Further details
are disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
29 March 2016.

The English translation of Chinese names or words are for
information purpose only, and should not be regarded as the
official English translation of such Chinese names or words.

52. MEBMRRFABEE(E)

(ii)

MM E3CPT I E - AR BAR T — X
F=A=+—"REBECLELBMMSAEE
#81,848,415,0008 T2 ZEE 5 < X A
R B B B HRAS W) R 3% 2 AR B O 7 B
EHEFREERN _E-—R"F=ZA=+—
BRI A RBEIRZ EHREERUN
E-RF=ZA=t-HETHEAEBEZERE
HFZBEEREE-ARAEET—ARFN
A-ARBEAZZEFEORE -ZEA
AELFREAAEBIEARZSES Y
ARAREERTH -RZBR T AEH
Z R R AR F) Je RR 2 T 5 A gE X B
BERTNZE - AT KRB AERBEMFER -
AABREH RETRAR T~ <FHOA
“HABZAERE XEAFTERRZIT
I ARAREREALE -

ARARESREFFAEARE  HEDAH
H-ZE-—RE=ZA=+—HEEEZTER
—E-RFEHA-TAR BTARAAR
EREANREREHEERLENEHRESE
BRABTEEMZEEF 2EBLEE (£
EARAREHA-_TE-REF=A=-1+1A
ZRTABEHER-_E—AREFWNA TR
K2 REMRE  REZEZ T EER - Hph—
B ERBERRBBRZEFES MER
0% 2 AL HEBIBE EIRZARMARN
BT EERRARRETARTERE
HRERZEERBEFHAEAXMNEZS R
BEBHE RS 47,058,000/ T o # — Har
BREARAARAR-FE-—REF=ZA=-TA
HZ AP #HE-

FXEFHR AR EXBZFERD L T RS
ZEPX B AR IEN R GFEE -
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Five Year Financial Summary

EFFUBRE

The following is a summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the five years ended 31 December 2015, which have been
prepared on the basis set out in Notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

NTRAEERE T -—AF+-_A=+—HILAE
FEZFE BEENRBERE EDRRESUBR
KUTE2 M3z B EREL -

RESULTS E
For the year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=t-HLEE
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-Hf —T—@mfg —T—=F —T—-fF T—F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&ET FET F&ET FErT
(Restated) (Restated)
(g =51) (&g=51)
Revenue WA 1,554,394 1,687,953 2,165,474 1,961,560 1,717,190
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEADREF () 205,358 (141,541) 1,000,939 920,168 801,759
Taxation B (41,124) (30,559) (74,489) (53,249) (49,292)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERHM/ (FE) 164,234 (172,100) 926,450 866,919 752,467
Non-controlling interests EIE R (13,355) 68,408 (57,468) (45,620) (29,015)
Equity shareholders of the Company 772 &l & % & 150,879 (103,692) 868,982 821,299 723,452
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-8
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-1f —ET—nmF —ET—=F —FT-—F T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(=E5) (&E5)
Total assets BERE 8,730,468 8,566,521 7,596,344 7,010,998 5,773,040
Total liabilities BELE (2,645,065)  (2,426,415)  (1,373,672)  (1,212,562)  (1,236,226)
Total equity e

2 6,085,403

In order to comply with HKFRS 11, in 2013 the Group changed
its accounting policy with respect to joint ventures. This change
in accounting policy has been applied retrospectively. As a result,
turnover, profit before taxation and taxation for the years 2011 and
2012 have been restated. This change in accounting policy has no
effect on profit for the year, non-controlling interests and total equity
for the years 2011 and 2012 of the Group.

192 REXLot Holdings Limited #ZEARi AR A 7]

6,140,106 6,222,672 5,798,436 4,536,814

RECERUBRELNENR R-FE—=F K
SEFREEHAELECSTBR  hEBRE
BHEEPER B —F——FR-_F-—_F2%
FH BRAGENEHBACKEY - EABERED
TAHEAEER T ——FR-_F-——_F2FEH
M IR S RE R R o
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